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SECTION I - GENERAL

DEFINITIONS AND ABBREVIATIONS

Unless the context otherwise indicates or implies, the following terms have the following meanings in this Information
Memorandum and references to any statute or regulations or policies or guidelines or circular, notification or clarifications shall
include amendments thereto, from time to time.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, terms in “Main Provisions of the Articles of Association”, “Statement of Tax Benefits” “Industry
Overview”, “Our Business”, “Key Regulations & Policies in India”, “Risk Factors”, “Scheme of Arrangement”, “Financial
Statements”, and “Outstanding Litigation and Material Developments” shall have the meaning ascribed to such terms in those

respective sections.

Company and Scheme Related Terms

Term

Description

“the Company” or “our Company”
or” the Issuer” or “we” or “us” or
“our” or “Resulting Company”

Means NMDC Steel Limited, a unlisted Government Company incorporated on January
2, 2015 under the Companies Act, 2013 with CIN U27310CT2015GOI001618, having
its registered Office at C/O NMDC Iron & Steel Plant Nagarnar Bastar, Chhattisgarh
494001, India and corporate Office at 10-3-311/A, Khanij Bhavan, Castle Hills, Masab
Tank, Hyderabad — 500 028

“Appointed Date”

April 1, 2021

“Articles” or “Articles of
Association” or “AoA”

The Articles of Association of our Company, as amended from time to time

“Auditors” or “Statutory Auditors”

The Statutory Auditors of our Company, being N.G Rao & Associates, Chartered
Accountants

“Audit Committee”

The Audit Committee of our Board constituted in accordance with the Companies Act,
2013 and the SEBI Listing Regulations

“Board of Directors” or “the Board”
or “our Board”

The Board of Directors of our Company or a duly constituted committee thereof

“Corporate Office” 10-3-311/A, Khanij Bhavan, Castle Hills, Masab Tank, Hyderabad — 500 028

“Company Secretary and | Ms. M. Amala

Compliance Officer”

“Corporate  Social Responsibility | The Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of our Board constituted in accordance

Committee” or “CSR Committee” with the Companies Act, 2013

“Demerged Company” Demerged Company means NMDC Limited, a public listed company incorporated on
November 15, 1958 under the Companies Act, 1956 with CIN
L13100TG1958G0OI1001674, having its registered office at Khanij Bhavan 10-3-311/A
Castle Hills, Masab Tank, Hyderabad 500028, Telangana, India

“Demerged Undertaking” Demerged Undertaking means the business of NMDC Iron & Steel Plant at Nagarnar,

Chbhattisgarh, including without limitation, the assets and liabilities described in Scheme
on a going concern basis.

Without prejudice or limitation to the generality of the above, the Demerged
Undertaking shall mean and include, amongst others:

1. the property and assets of the Demerged Undertaking including without
limitation, NISP and the assets and liabilities described in Schedule I annexed
in the Scheme, wherever such property or assets are situated, whether movable
or immovable, leasehold or freehold, owned, leased or licensed, tangible or
intangible, including all computers and accessories, software and related data,
leasehold improvements, plant and machinery, offices, capital work in
progress, vehicles, furniture, fixtures, office equipment, electricals, appliances,
accessories pertaining to or relatable to the Demerged Undertaking;

il. all rights and licenses, all assignments and grants thereof, all permits,
clearances and registrations whether under Central, State or other laws, rights
(including rights/ obligations under agreement(s) entered into with various
persons including independent consultants, subsidiaries/ associate companies
and other shareholders of such subsidiary/ associate / joint venture companies,
contracts, applications, letters of intent, memorandum of understandings or any
other contracts), non-disposal undertakings, certifications and approvals,
regulatory approvals, entitlements, other licenses, consents, tenancies,
investments and/ or interest (whether vested, contingent or otherwise), taxes,
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share of advance tax, tax deducted at source and minimum alternate tax credits
(including but not limited to credits in respect of sales tax, value added tax,
service tax, goods and services tax and other indirect taxes), deferred tax
benefits and other benefits in respect of the Demerged Undertaking, cash
balances, bank accounts and bank balances, deposits, advances, recoverable,
receivables, casements, advantages, financial assets, hire purchase and lease
arrangements, funds belonging to or proposed to be utilized for the Demerged
Undertaking, privileges, all other claims, rights and benefits, powers and
facilities of every kind, nature, and description whatsoever, utilities, provisions,
funds. benefits of all agreements, contracts and arrangements and all other
interests in connection with or relating to the Demerged Undertaking;

ii. all books, records, files, papers, governance templates and process information,
records of standard operating procedures, computer programmes along with
their licenses, manuals and back-up copies, advertising materials, and other
data and records whether in physical or electronic form, directly or indirectly,
in connection with or relating to the Demerged Undertaking;

iv. any and all earnest monies and/ or security deposits, or other entitlements in
connection with or relating to the Demerged Undertaking;

v. all employees of Demerged Undertaking that are determined by the Board of
Directors of the Demerged Undertaking, to be substantially engaged in or
employed in relation to the Demerged Undertaking, on the date immediately
preceding the Effective Date;

vi. Specific loans and borrowings raised, incurred and utilized for the activities or
operations of the Demerged Undertaking;

Vii. All existing securities, mortgages, charges and other encumbrances, if any,
subsisting over or in respect of the property and assets or any part thereof
relating to the Demerged Undertaking;

viii. All other liabilities, pertaining to or relatable to the Demerged Undertaking;

iX. All legal proceedings of whatsoever nature by or against the Demerged
Company pending and relating to the Demerged Undertaking;

Explanation to the term “Demerged Undertaking”: It is hereby clarified that Excluded
Assets and Liabilities do not form part of the Demerged Undertaking and shall continue
to vest with and belong to the Demerged Company. The balance sheet of the Demerged
Undertaking as on the Appointed Date shall be jointly drawn up by the Board of
Directors of the Demerged Company and the Resulting Company. Any question that
may arise as to whether a specified asset or liability pertains or does not pertain to the
Demerged Undertaking or whether it arises out of the activities or operations of the
Demerged Undertaking shall be decided mutually by the Board of Directors of the
Demerged Company and the Resulting Company.

Please refer to the section titled “Scheme of Arrangement” on Page 70 of this
Information Memorandum

“Directors” or “our Directors”

The Director(s) on the Board of our Company, as appointed from time to time, unless
otherwise specified

“Equity Shares”

Unless the context otherwise requires, refers to Equity shares of our Company having a
face value of INR 10 (Indian Rupee Ten Only) each

“Executive Director”

An Executive Director of our Company

“Effective Date”

October 13, 2022

“Group Companies”

The companies (other than promoters and subsidiaries) with which our Company had
related party transactions, during the period for which financial information is disclosed
in this Information Memorandum, as covered under the applicable accounting standards.
For further details, see “Our Promoter, Promoter Group and Group Companies” on page
78

“Independent Director(s)”

A Non-Executive, Independent Director as per the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI
Listing Regulations

“KMP” or “Key Management

Key Management Personnel of our Company in terms of the Companies Act, 2013 and
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Personnel”

as disclosed in “Our Management — Key Management Personnel” on page 71

“Memorandum” or “Memorandum
of Association” or “MoA”

The Memorandum of Association of our Company, as amended from time to time

“NISP” or “Project Site”

3.0 MTPA Integrated Steel Plant or NMDC Iron & Steel Plant located at Nagarnar,
Chhattisgarh

“Nomination and Remuneration
Committee”

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of our Board constituted in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations

“Non-Executive Director”

A Director not being an Executive Director

“Promoter”

The President of India (acting through the Ministry of Steel, Government of India). For
details, see “Our Promoter, Promoter Group and Group Companies” on page 78

“Promoter Group”

Persons and entities constituting the promoter group of our Company, in accordance
with the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations

“Record Date”

October 28, 2022

“Registered Office”

C/O NMDC Iron & Steel Plant Nagarnar Bastar, Chhattisgarh 494001, India

“Registrar of Companies” or “RoC”

The Registrar of Companies, Chhattisgarh

“Registrar and Share Transfer Agent”
or “RTA”

Aarthi Consultants Pvt. Ltd.

“Scheme of Arrangement” or
“Scheme”

Scheme of Arrangement between NMDC Limited and NMDC Steel Limited and their
respective shareholders and creditors pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230-232 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the other applicable provisions thereof and applicable
rules thereunder, as approved by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of
India, New Delhi by way of order dated October 6, 2022

“Shareholders” Equity Shareholders of our Company, from time to time
“Stakeholders” Relationship The Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee of our Board constituted in accordance with
Committee” the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI Listing Regulations

Conventional and General Terms / Abbreviations

Term

Description

“AGM”

Annual General Meeting

“Alternative Investment Funds” or
GLAIFS,’

Alternative Investment Funds as defined and registered under the SEBI AIF Regulations

“Applicable Laws”

Any statute, notification, by-laws, rules, regulations, guidelines, rule of common law,
policy, code, directives, ordinance, schemes, notices, orders or instructions enacted or
issued or sanctioned by any appropriate authority, including any modification or re-
enactment thereof for the time being in force

“AS” or “Accounting Standards”

Accounting Standards issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India

“BSE”

BSE Limited

“CDSL” Central Depository Services (India) Limited
“CSE” Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited
“CIN” Corporate Identity Number

“Companies Act”

Companies Act, 1956 and / or the Companies Act, 2013 as applicable

“Companies Act, 1956”

The erstwhile Companies Act, 1956, and the rules thereunder

“Companies Act, 2013”

The Companies Act, 2013, read with the rules, regulations, clarifications and
modifications thereunder

“Depositories” NSDL and CDSL
“Depositories Act” The Depositories Act, 1996 as amended from time to time
“Designated Stock Exchange” BSE

“DIN”

Director Identification Number

“DPIT” Department for Promotion of Industry and Internal Trade, Ministry of Commerce and
Industry, Government of India (earlier known as the Department of Industrial Policy and
Promotion)

“DIPAM” Department of Investment and Public Asset Management, Ministry of Finance,

Government of India

T3]

“DP” or “Depository Participant

A Depository Participant as defined under the Depositories Act

“DP ID”

Depository Participant’s Identification Number

“EBITDA” Earnings before Finance Cost, Tax, Depreciation and Amortisation

“EGM” Extraordinary General Meeting

“EPS” Earnings Per Equity Share

“FDI” Foreign Direct Investment

“FEMA” Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 read with the rules and regulations there
under as amended from time to time

“FEMA Rules” Foreign Exchange Management (Non-Debt Instruments) Rules, 2019 as amended
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Term

Description

“Financial Year” or “Fiscal” or “FY”

Unless stated otherwise, the period of 12 months ending March 31 of that particular year

“FPIs” Foreign Portfolio Investors as defined under the SEBI FPI Regulations
“GAAP” Generally Accepted Accounting Principles

“Gol” or “Central Government” Government of India

“GST” Goods and Service Tax

“Half Year” Unless stated otherwise, the period of 6 months of that particular period
“HUF” Hindu Undivided Family

“IFRS” International Financial Reporting Standards

“Income Tax Act” or “IT Act”

The Income Tax Act, 1961, read with the rules made thereunder as amended from time
to time

“India” Republic of India

“Ind AS” IFRS converged Indian Accounting Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Rules,
2015

“Indian GAAP” Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in India

“Information Memorandum”

This document dated February 15, 2023 filed with BSE, CSE and NSE and referred to as
the Information Memorandum

“IST” Indian Standard Time

“MCA” Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India

“Mutual Fund(s)” Mutual fund(s) registered with the SEBI under the Securities and Exchange Board of
India (Mutual Funds) Regulations, 1996

“MTPA” Million Tonnes Per Annum

“MT” Metric Tonnes

“NR” or “Non-Resident”

A person resident outside India, as defined under the FEMA and includes NRIs, FPIs
and FVClIs registered with the SEBI

“NRE Account” Non-Resident External Account, and has the meaning ascribed to such term in the
Foreign Exchange Management (Deposit) Regulations, 2000

“NRI” A person resident outside India, who is a citizen of India or a person of Indian origin,
and shall have the meaning ascribed to such term in the FEMA Rules

“NSDL” National Securities Depository Limited

“No.” Number

“NSE” National Stock Exchange of India Limited

“p.a.” Per Annum

“PAN” Permanent Account Number allotted under the Income Tax Act

“RBI” Reserve Bank of India

“Rs.” or “%”or “Rupees” or “INR” or
“Indian Rupees”

The legal currency of the Republic of India

“RoNW” Return on net worth

“SCRA” Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 as amended from time to time

“SCRR” Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957 as amended from time to time

“SEBI” Securities and Exchange Board of India constituted under the SEBI Act

“SEBI Act” Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 as amended from time to time

“SEBI Circular” Circular  No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017, Circular No.
CFD/DIL3/CIR/2018/2 dated January 3, 2018, Circular No.
SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2020/215 dated November 3, 2020, and Master Circular
No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/0000000665 dated November 23, 2021, issued by
the SEBI and as amended from time to time

“SEBI AIF Regulations” Securities and Exchange Board of India (Alternative Investment Funds) Regulations,
2012 as amended

“SEBI FPI Regulations” Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Portfolio Investors) Regulations, 2019
as amended

“SEBI FVCI Regulations” Securities and Exchange Board of India (Foreign Venture Capital Investors)

Regulations, 2000 as amended

“SEBI Listing Regulations” or “SEBI
(LODR) Regulations”

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 as amended

“SEBI (ICDR) Regulations”

Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2018 as amended

“SEBI VCF Regulations” Securities and Exchange Board of India (Venture Capital Fund) Regulations, 1996 as
amended

“Sr. No.” Serial Number

“Stock Exchanges” BSE, CSE and NSE

“STT” Securities Transaction Tax
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Term

Description

“US GAAP” Generally Accepted Accounting Principles in the United States of America
“VAT” Value added tax
“VCFs” Venture capital funds as defined in and registered with the SEBI under the SEBI VCF

Regulations or the SEBI AIF Regulations, as the case may be

Industry / Business Related Terms

Term Description
“BF” Blast Furnace
“BOF” Basic Oxygen Furnace
“CAGR” Compounded Annual Growth Rate
“CDCP” Coal Dry Cooling Plant
“CDI” Coal Dust Injection
“CO” Coke Oven Plant
“COG” Coke Oven Gas
“CRISIL” CRISIL Limited
“CSEB” Chhattisgarh State Electricity Board
“CSR” Corporate Social Responsibility
“EOT” Electric Overhead Travelling
“FDI” Foreign Direct Investment
“HR” Hot Rolled
“HMDS” Hot Metal De-sulphurisation
“HSM” Hot Strip Mills
“LPG” Liquefied Petroleum Gas
“LDCP” Lime & Dolomite Calcinations Plant
“LRF” Ladle Refining Furnaces
“MW” Megawatt
“RCC” Reinforced Cement Concrete
“RMHS” Raw Material Handling System
“Sp” Sinter Plant
“SPCB” State Pollution Control Board
“SMS” Steel Melting Shop
“TPD” Tonnes per Day
“TRT” Top Gas Pressure Recover Turbine
“TSC” Thin Slab Caster




CURRENCY OF FINANCIAL PRESENTATION AND USE OF MARKET DATA
Certain Conventions
All references in this Information Memorandum to “India” are to the Republic of India.

Unless stated otherwise, all references to page numbers in this Information Memorandum are to the page numbers of this
Information Memorandum.

Currency of Financial Presentation
In the Information Memorandum, the terms “we”, “us”, “our”, the “Company”, unless the context otherwise indicates or implies,
refers to NMDC Steel Limited. In the Information Memorandum, unless the context otherwise requires, all references to one
gender also refers to another gender and the word “Lac / Lakh” means “one hundred thousand”, the word “million (mn)” means
“ten lakh”, the word “Crore” means “ten million” and the word “billion (bn)” means “one hundred Crore”.

Throughout the Information Memorandum, unless otherwise stated, all figures have been expressed in Crores/Cr. Unless indicated
otherwise, the financial data in the Information Memorandum is derived from our financial statements prepared in accordance
with Ind AS and included in the Information Memorandum.

There may be some differences between Ind AS and IFRS and / or US GAAP, accordingly, the degree to which the Ind AS
financial statements included in the Information Memorandum will provide meaningful information is entirely dependent on the
reader’s level of familiarity with Indian accounting practices and Ind AS. Any reliance by persons not familiar with Indian
accounting practices on the financial disclosures presented in the Information Memorandum should accordingly be limited. We
have not attempted to explain those differences or quantify their impact on the financial data included herein, and we urge you to
consult your own advisors regarding such differences and their impact on our financial data.

For additional definitions used in the Information Memorandum, please see the section titled “Definitions and Abbreviations” on
page 3 of the Information Memorandum. In the section titled “Main Provisions of the Articles of Association” on page 130,
defined terms have the meaning given to such terms in the Articles of Association of our Company.

Currency and Units of Presentation
All references to “Rupees” or “X” or “Rs.” or “INR” are to Indian Rupees, the official currency of the Republic of India.

In this Information Memorandum, our Company has presented certain numerical information. Where any figures that may have
been sourced from third-party industry sources are expressed in denominations, such figures appear in this Information
Memorandum expressed in such denominations as provided in their respective sources.

Time
All references to time in this Information Memorandum are to Indian Standard Time.
Financial Data

Our Company publishes its financial statements in Indian Rupees. Unless stated otherwise, the financial data in this Information
Memorandum is derived from our Audited Ind AS Financial Statements

Our Audited Ind AS Financial Statements, including the reports issued by the Statutory Auditor included in this Information
Memorandum, have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS and the Companies Act. Our Company’s Financial Year
commences on April 1 of the immediately preceding calendar year and ends on March 31 of that calendar year, so all references to
a Financial Year or Fiscal are to the 12-month period commencing on April 1 of the immediately preceding calendar year and
ending on March 31 of that calendar year.

Unless the context requires otherwise, all references to a year in this Information Memorandum are to a calendar year and
references to a Fiscal / Financial Year are to the year ended on March 31, of that calendar year.

Certain figures contained in this Information Memorandum, including financial information, have been subject to rounding off
adjustments. All decimals have been rounded off to two decimal points. In certain instances, (i) the sum or percentage change of
such numbers may not conform exactly to the total figure given; and (ii) the sum of the numbers in a column or row in certain
tables may not conform exactly to the total figure given for that column or row. Further, any figures sourced from third-party
industry sources may be rounded off to other than two decimal points to conform to their respective sources.



Use of Market Data
Unless stated otherwise, market data used throughout the Information Memorandum has been obtained from CRISIL report.

One fiscal year commences on April 1 and ends on March 31 of each year, so all references to a particular fiscal year are to the 12
month period ended March 31 of that year. In this Information Memorandum, any discrepancies in any table between the total and
the sums of the amounts listed are due to rounding.

The data used in these sources may have been reclassified by us for the purposes of presentation. Data from these sources may
also not be comparable. The extent to which the market and industry data used in this Information Memorandum is meaningful
depends on the reader’s familiarity with and understanding of the methodologies used in compiling such data. There are no
standard data gathering methodologies in the industry in which the business of our Company is conducted, and methodologies and
assumptions may vary widely among different industry sources.

Disclaimer of CRISIL Limited
This Information Memorandum contains data and statistics from the CRISIL Report, which is subject to the following disclaimer:

“CRISIL Research, a division of CRISIL Limited (CRISIL) has taken due care and caution in preparing this report (Report) based
on the Information obtained by CRISIL from sources which it considers reliable (Data). However, CRISIL does not guarantee the
accuracy, adequacy or completeness of the Data / Report and is not responsible for any errors or omissions or for the results
obtained from the use of Data / Report. This Report is not a recommendation to invest / disinvest in any entity covered in the
Report and no part of this Report should be construed as an expert advice or investment advice or any form of investment banking
within the meaning of any law or regulation. CRISIL especially states that it has no liability whatsoever to the subscribers / users /
transmitters/ distributors of this Report. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, nothing in the Report is to be construed
as CRISIL providing or intending to provide any services in jurisdictions where CRISIL does not have the necessary permission
and/or registration to carry out its business activities in this regard. NMDC Steel Limited will be responsible for ensuring
compliances and consequences of non-compliances for use of the Report or part thereof outside India. CRISIL Research operates
independently of, and does not have access to information obtained by CRISIL Ratings Limited / CRISIL Risk and Infrastructure
Solutions Ltd (CRIS), which may, in their regular operations, obtain information of a confidential nature. The views expressed in
this Report are that of CRISIL Research and not of CRISIL Ratings Limited / CRIS. No part of this Report may be
published/reproduced in any form without CRISIL’s prior written approval.”



FORWARD LOOKING STATEMENTS
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This Information Memorandum includes statements which contain words or phrases such as “will”, “would”, “aim”, “aimed”,
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“will likely result”, “is likely”, “are likely”, “believe”, “expect”, “expected to”, “will continue”, “will achieve”, “anticipate”,
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“estimate”, “estimating”, “intend”, “plan”, “contemplate”, “seek to”, “seeking to”, “trying to”, “target”, “propose to”, “future” ,
“objective”, “goal”, “project”, “should”, “can”, “could”, “may”, “will pursue”, or other words or phrases of similar expressions or
variations of such expressions, that are “forward-looking statements”. Similarly, statements that describe our strategies, objectives,

plans or goals are also forward-looking statements.

Our forward- looking statements contain information regarding, among other things, our financial condition, future plans and
business strategy. We have based these forward-looking statements on our current expectations and projections about future
events. Although we believe that these expectations and projections are reasonable, such forward-looking statements are
inherently subject to risks, uncertainties and assumptions that could cause actual results to differ materially from those
contemplated by the relevant forward-looking statement. This may be due to risks or uncertainties associated with our
expectations with respect to, but not limited to:

- General political, social and economic conditions in India and other countries;

- Regulatory changes and the Company’s ability to respond to them;

- Our ability to successfully implement our strategy, our growth and expansion plans and technological changes;

- Technology changes;

- Change in domestic and foreign laws, regulations and taxes and change in the competition in the industry;

- Fluctuation of the operating cost;

- Company’s ability to attract and retain qualified personnel,

- Any adverse outcome in the legal proceedings in which the Company is involved,;

- Strikes or work stoppages by our employees or contractual employees;

- Increasing competition in, and the conditions of, the industry;

- Failure to undertake projects on commercially favorable terms;

- Changes in government policies, including introduction of or adverse changes in tariff or non-tariff barriers, foreign

direct investment policies, affecting the steel industry generally in India;
- Accidents and natural disasters; and
- Other factors beyond our control.

Future-looking statements speak only as of the date of this Information Memorandum. We undertake no obligation to publicly
update or revise any forward looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise. In light of the
foregoing, and the risks, uncertainties and assumptions discussed in the section titled “Risk Factors” given on page 14 and
elsewhere in this Information Memorandum, any forward looking statement discussed in this Information Memorandum may
change or may not occur, and our actual results could differ materially from those anticipated in such forward-looking statements.
Given these uncertainties, investors are cautioned not to place undue reliance on such forward-looking statements and not regard
such statements to be a guarantee of our future performance
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SECTION II - INFORMATION MEMORANDUM SUMMARY

This section is a summary of specific disclosures included in this Information Memorandum and is not exhaustive nor does it
purport to contain a summary of all disclosures or details relevant to prospective investors. For additional information and
further details with respect to any of the information summarised below, please refer to the relevant sections of this Information
Memorandum. Unless otherwise stated, the financial information in this section is derived from the Financial Statements.

Summary of the Industry

Steel is the most common metal alloy in the world. In its simplest form, it consists of iron and carbon with carbon varying
between 0.02% to 1.7% by weight. Steel serves a variety of purposes from manufacturing paper-clips and razor blades to bridges,
beams and columns for skyscrapers. Steel forms the backbone of all industries, and is one of the basic ingredients for a country's
growth and development. Products obtained on hot rolling/forging of semi-finished steel (blooms/billets/slabs) from both carbon
and alloy steel can be broadly classified as long products and flat products. India is now racing to build steel capacities that meet
the domestic demand and at the same time can supply to the global markets.

Summary of our Business

Our Company was incorporated as an unlisted Government Company under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 on January 2,
2015 as wholly owned subsidiary of NMDC Limited. On implementation of the Scheme, Demerged Undertaking i.e. under
construction 3.0 MTPA Integrated Steel Plant was transferred from NMDC Limited to NMDC Steel Limited. The estimated
project cost for implementation of the NISP is INR 21,940 Crores. The plant is designed to produce HR Coils / Sheets / Plates.
Our Promoters

The Promoter of our Company is the President of India (acting through the Ministry of Steel, Government of India).

Shareholding of our Promoter

The shareholding of our Promoter as on the date of this Information Memorandum is as detailed below.

Sr. No. Name No. of Equity Shares % of total Equity Shares of
the Company
1 The President of India 1,78,16,33,571 60.79%
(Acting through the Ministry of Steel, Government of
India)

Size of Issue
No Equity Shares are sold or offered pursuant to this Information Memorandum.
Objects of Issue

There are no Objects of Issue except listing of 293,06,05,850 (Two Hundred and Ninety Three Crores Six Lacs Five Thousand
Eight Hundred Fifty) Equity Shares of INR 10/- (Rupee Ten Only) each fully paid up of our Company

Selected Financial Information

Following are details as per the audited financial statement of the Company for the Financial Year ending on March 31, 2022 and
for the Audit Period:

Sr. As at As at As at
No. Particulars (Amount in INR) 31st March 31st March September
2021 2022 30, 2022
1 Share Capital 6,00,000 11,00,000 11,00,000
2 Net Worth 8,165 4,16,530 4,22,389
3 Revenue 1,722 7,684 5,859
4 Profit / (Loss) after tax (72,317) (91,635) 5,859
5 Earnings per share (1.21) (0.94) 0.05
6 Net Asset Value per equity share 0.14 3.79 3.84
7 Total borrowings (as per balance sheet) - - -

Note: (1)Net-worth: Net- worth is equity share capital plus reserves and surplus
(2)Net asset value per equity share means Net Worth of the Company divided by the outstanding number of equity shares at the end of the period.
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For further details, please see section titled “Financial Statements” given on page 81 of the Information Memorandum.
Audit Qualification

There have been no qualifications or adverse remarks by our Auditors in the audited financial statements of the Company for the
Financial Year ended on March 31, 2022 and for the Half Year ended September 30, 2022.

Outstanding Litigations

The summary of outstanding or pending litigations involving our Company, Directors, Promoters and Group Companies, as
applicable, on the date of this Information Memorandum is set out below:

Type of proceedings Number of cases Amount* (Fig in INR
Crores)
Cases against our Company
Criminal proceedings Nil N.A.
Actions taken by statutory or regulatory authorities Nil N.A.
Claims related to direct and indirect taxes Nil N.A.
Other pending material litigation Nil N.A.
Total Nil N.A.
Cases by our Company
Criminal proceedings Nil N.A
Actions taken by statutory or regulatory authorities Nil N.A
Claims related to direct and indirect taxes Nil N.A
Other pending material litigation Nil N.A
Total Nil N.A
Cases against our Directors
Criminal proceedings Nil N.A
Actions taken by statutory or regulatory authorities Nil N.A
Direct and indirect taxes Nil N.A
Other pending material litigation Nil N.A
Total Nil N.A
Cases by our Directors
Criminal proceedings Nil N.A
Actions taken by statutory or regulatory authorities Nil N.A
Claims related to direct and indirect taxes Nil N.A
Other pending material litigation Nil N.A
Total Nil N.A
Cases against our Promoters
Criminal proceedings Nil N.A
Actions taken by statutory or regulatory authorities Nil N.A
Claims related to direct and indirect taxes Nil N.A
Other pending material litigation Nil N.A
Total Nil N.A
Cases by our Promoters
Criminal proceedings Nil N.A
Actions taken by statutory or regulatory authorities Nil N.A
Claims related to direct and indirect taxes Nil N.A
Other pending material litigation Nil N.A
Total Nil N.A
Cases involving the Group Companies which have a material impact on our Company
Pending material litigation Nil N.A
Total Nil N.A

Pursuant to and in accordance with the terms of Part B of the Scheme, the Company shall bear the burden and the benefits of any
legal or other proceedings initiated in respect of the Demerged Undertaking. If any suit, appeal or other proceeding of whatever
nature by or against Demerged Company in respect of the Demerged Undertaking be pending, the same shall not abate, be
discontinued or in any way be prejudicially affected by reason of the transfer of the Demerged Undertaking or of anything
contained in the Scheme but the proceedings shall be continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the Company in the same
manner and to the same extent as it would or might have been continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against Demerged
Company. The Company shall take appropriate steps to have such legal or other proceedings initiated by or against Demerged
Company in respect of the Demerged Undertaking, transferred in its name and to have the same continued, prosecuted and
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enforced by or against the Company to the exclusion of Demerged Company. The Company shall also handle all legal or other
proceedings which may be initiated against Demerged Company after the Effective Date relating to the Demerged Undertaking in
respect of the period up to the Effective Date, in its own name and account and further undertaken to pay all amounts including
interest, penalties, damages, etc. which Demerged Company may be called upon to pay or secure in respect of any liability or
obligation relating to Demerged Company for the period up to the Effective Date, in respect of the Demerged Undertaking.

For further details, please see section titled “Outstanding Litigations and Material Developments” given on page 116 of the
Information Memorandum.

Risk Factors

For details of the risks applicable to our Company, please see section titled “Risk Factors” given on page 14 of the Information
Memorandum.

Contingent Liabilities
The Company has no contingent liability as on March 31, 2022.

Contingent liabilities & Commitments, as on March 31, 2022, transferred to the Company upon demerger of Demerged
Undertaking is as follows:

Sr. No. Particulars Amount (Upon demerger of NISP into and with the
Company)
1 Contingent Liabilities - Claims against the company not Rs. 978.74 Crores
acknowledged as debt
2 Commitments — Estimated amount of contracts Rs. 1,661.86 Crores
remaining to be executed on Capital Account

Related Party Transactions

For details of our related party transactions, please see section titled “Financial Statements” beginning on page 81 of the
Information Memorandum.

Financing arrangements for purchase of securities of the Company

There are / have been no financing arrangements whereby the Promoters, member of Promoter Group, the Directors of our
Promoter Group, the Directors of our Company and their relatives have financed the purchase by any other person of securities of
our Company during the period of six months immediately preceding the date of this Information Memorandum.

Weighted average price of acquisition of the Equity Shares by our Promoters in the last one year

Not applicable, as the Promoters have not acquired any Equity Shares of the Company during last one year preceding the date of
this Information Memorandum except pursuant to the Scheme.

Issue of Equity Shares for consideration other than cash

Other than allotment of 293,06,05,850 Equity Shares on November 8, 2022, pursuant to the Scheme, our Company has not issued
any Equity Shares during last one year preceding the date of this Information Memorandum for consideration other than cash.

Split or consolidation of Equity Shares

Our Company has not undertaken a split or consolidation of the Equity Shares during last one year preceding the date of the
Information Memorandum
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SECTION III - RISK FACTORS

This section describes the risks that we currently believe may materially affect our business and operations. An investment in
Equity Shares involves a high degree of risk. You should carefully consider the following, in addition to any forward-looking
statements and the cautionary statements in this Information Memorandum and the other information contained in this Information
Memorandum, before making any investment decision relating to the Equity Shares. The occurrence of any of the following
events, or the occurrence of other risks that are not currently known or are now deemed immaterial, could cause our business,
results of operations, cash flows, financial condition and prospects to suffer and could cause the market price of our Equity Shares
to decline or fall significantly and you may lose all or part of your investment.

This Information Memorandum also contains forward-looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. Our actual results
could differ materially from those anticipated in these forward-looking statements as a result of certain factors, including the
considerations described below and elsewhere in this Information Memorandum. See “Forward-Looking Statements” beginning
on page 10.

The risks described below are not the only ones relevant to us or the Equity Shares. Additional risks that may be unknown to us
and some risks that we do not currently believe to be material could subsequently turn out to be material. Some risks may have an
impact which is qualitative though not quantitative. Although we seek to mitigate or minimize these risks, one or more of a
combination of these risks could materially and adversely impact our business, financial condition and results of operations. In
making an investment decision, prospective investors must rely on their own examination of us and the Equity Shares, including
the merits and risks involved. Investors should pay particular attention to the fact that our Company is an Indian company and is
subject to a legal and regulatory regime which in some respects may be different from that applicable in other countries. Investors
should consult tax, financial and legal advisors about the particular consequences of an investment in the Equity Shares.

Unless specified or quantified in the relevant risk factors below, we are not in a position to quantify the financial or other
implications of any of the risks described in this section. Accordingly, unless otherwise stated, the financial information used in
this section is derived from our Financial Statements.

Internal Risk Factors

1. We have not earned any revenue from operations till date and there can be no assurance that we will commence
operations or earn revenue from operations.

Our Company was formed with the intention of holding the Demerged Undertaking of NMDC Limited. Till date we have
not earned any revenue from operations. Our Company has limited operational history and our primary asset is the
Demerged Undertaking held by us. There can be no assurance that we will be able to commence operations and generate
revenue in a timely manner or at all. Failure to generate revenue from operations may limit our ability to become
profitable.

2. Demerged undertaking is subject to certain litigation and there are certain title disputes relating to land at Project
Site and any adverse determination of ruling and/or title in any such pending matter may adversely impact our
assets and future profitability.

Demerged undertaking is subject to certain litigation and there are certain title disputes relating to land at Project Site. If
any of these claims are determined adversely against our Company or our interests, we may be required to relinquish
claims to all or part of the disputed land or may be required to pay compensation to such claimants. Any such adverse
determination would impact our ability to commission NISP and any amounts to be paid out may require additional
infusion of funds from our Promoter or from other sources, which may not be available to us on commercially viable
terms or at all.

3. NISP is located at Nagarnar, Chhattisgarh, and accordingly, our operations will be heavily dependent on the
performance of, and the conditions affecting, area in and around Chhattisgarh.

Our Project Site is currently located in Nagarnar, Chhattisgarh. As a result, our business, financial condition and results
of operations will be heavily dependent on the performance of, and the prevailing conditions affecting, area in and
around Chhattisgarh. This area may be affected by various factors outside our control, including prevailing local and
economic conditions, changes in the applicable governmental regulations, demographic trends, employment and income
levels and interest rates, among other factors. These factors may contribute to fluctuations in steel and raw material prices
and the availability of raw material and may adversely affect our business, financial condition and results of operations.
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Our business and growth plan could be adversely affected by the incidence and change in the rate of taxes.

We are subject to tax regime in India. These taxes could increase in the future, and new types of taxes may be introduced
which will increase our overall costs. If these taxes increase, the cost of production and selling may rise. Additionally.
Any such changes in the taxes could have an adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations

We are subject to extensive government regulation and if we fail to obtain, maintain or renew our statutory and
regulatory licenses, permits and approvals required to operate our business, our business and results of
operations may be adversely affected.

Our operations are subject to extensive government regulation and we are required to obtain and maintain a number of
statutory and regulatory permits and approvals under central, state and local government rules in the geographies in
which we operate, generally for carrying out our business. For details of approvals relating to our business and
operations, see “Government and Other Approvals” on page 125. A majority of these approvals are granted for a limited
duration. We cannot assure you that such approvals will be issued or granted to us in a timely manner, or at all. If we do
not receive such approvals or are not able to renew the approvals in a timely manner, our business and operations may be
adversely affected.

The approvals required by us are subject to numerous conditions and we cannot assure you that these would not be
suspended or revoked in the event of non-compliance or alleged non-compliance with any terms or conditions thereof, or
pursuant to any regulatory action. If there is any failure by us to comply with the applicable regulations or if the
regulations governing our business are amended, we may incur increased costs, be subject to penalties, have our
approvals and permits revoked or suffer a disruption in our operations, any of which could adversely affect our business.

Our inability to implement our business strategy or effectively sustain and manage our growth could have an
adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition.

Our Company currently does not have commercial operations and as and when our Company enters commercial
operations, business strategy will be formulated. We cannot assure you that our growth strategies will be successful or
that we will be able to commence operations or expand. Our inability to manage commissioning of NISP effectively and
execute our growth strategy in a timely manner, or within budget estimates or our inability to meet the expectations of
our customers and other stakeholders could have an adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial
condition. Our future prospects will depend on our ability to grow our business and operations, which could be affected
by many factors, general political and economic conditions in the geographies in which we operate, government policies
or strategies in respect of specific industries and prevailing interest rates.

In order to manage our growth effectively, we must implement, upgrade and improve our operational systems,
procedures and internal controls on a timely basis. If we fail to implement these systems, procedures and controls on a
timely basis, or if there are weaknesses in our internal controls that would result in inconsistent internal standard
operating procedures, we may not be able to meet our customers’ needs, hire and retain new employees or operate our
business effectively. Moreover, our ability to sustain our rate of growth depends significantly upon our ability to select
and retain key managerial personnel, maintaining effective risk management policies and training managerial personnel
to address emerging challenges.

We cannot assure you that our existing or future management, operational and financial systems, procedures and controls
will be adequate to support future operations, or establish or develop business relationships beneficial to future
operations. Failure to manage growth effectively could have an adverse effect on our business and results of operations.

Non-compliance with and changes in, safety, health and environmental laws and other applicable regulations, may
adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial condition.

We are subject to a broad range of safety, health, environmental, labour, workplace and related laws and regulations in
the jurisdictions in which we operate, which impose controls on the disposal and storage of raw materials, noise
emissions, air and water discharges; on the storage, handling, discharge and disposal of chemicals, employee exposure to
hazardous substances and other aspects of our operations. The discharge of substances that are chemical in nature or of
other hazardous substances into the air, soil or water beyond these limits may cause us to be liable to regulatory bodies
and incur costs to remedy the damage caused by such discharges. Any of the foregoing could subject us to litigation,
which may increase our expenses in the event we are found liable, and could adversely affect our reputation.
Additionally, the government or the relevant regulatory bodies may require us to shut down our facilities, which in turn
could lead to product shortages that delay or prevent us from fulfilling our obligations to customers.

The adoption of stricter health and safety laws and regulations, stricter interpretations of existing laws, increased
governmental enforcement of laws or other developments in the future may require that we make additional capital
expenditures, incur additional expenses or take other actions in order to remain compliant and maintain our current
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11.

operations. Complying with, and changes in, these laws and regulations or terms of approval may increase our
compliance costs and adversely affect our business, prospects, results of operations and financial condition.

We are also subject to the laws and regulations governing relationships with employees in such areas as minimum wage
and maximum working hours, overtime, working conditions, hiring and termination of employees, contract labour and
work permits. There is a risk that we may inadvertently fail to comply with such regulations, which could lead to
enforced shutdowns and other sanctions imposed by the relevant authorities, as well as the withholding or delay in receipt
of regulatory approvals for our new products. We cannot assure you that we will not be involved in future litigation or
other proceedings, or be held liable in any litigation or proceedings including in relation to safety, health and
environmental matters, the costs of which may be significant.

Our inability to meet our obligations, including financial and other covenants under our debt financing
arrangements could adversely affect our business and results of operations.

As of March 31, 2022, Demerged Undertaking had a total outstanding Secured Rupee Term Loan of INR 1,144.42 Cores.
Our ability to meet our debt service obligations and repay our outstanding borrowings will depend primarily on the cash
generated by our business. In the event we breach any financial or other covenants contained in any of our financing
arrangements or in the event we had breached any terms in the past which is noticed in the future, we may be required to
immediately repay our borrowings either in whole or in part, together with any related costs.

We may also be forced to sell some or all of our assets if we do not have sufficient cash or credit facilities to make
repayments. Our failure to meet our obligations under the debt financing agreements could have an adverse effect on our
business, results of operations and financial condition.

We may experience losses exceeding our insurance limits, which may have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations.

We currently maintain insurance coverage. If we suffer physical damage from fire or other causes, it may result in losses.
The proceeds of any insurance claim with respect to insurance that we have taken may be insufficient to cover any
expenses faced by us including higher rebuilding costs as a result of inflation, environmental issues as well as other
factors. Should an uninsured loss or a loss in excess of insured limits occur, we may remain liable for any debt or other
financial obligation related to such loss. We cannot assure you that losses in excess of insurance proceeds will not occur
in the future. In addition, any payments we make to cover any uninsured loss may have a material adverse effect on our
business, financial condition and results of operations. If we suffer any losses, damages and liabilities in the course of our
operations, we may not have sufficient insurance or funds to cover any such losses. In addition, any payment we make to
cover any uninsured losses, damages or liabilities could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

We are dependent on a number of key personnel, including our senior management, and the loss of, or our
inability to attract or retain such persons could adversely affect our business, results of operations and financial
condition.

Our performance depends largely on the efforts and abilities of our senior management and other key personnel. We
believe that the inputs and experience of our senior management and key managerial personnel are valuable for the
development of business and operations and the strategic directions taken by our Company. We cannot assure you that
we will be able to retain these employees or find adequate replacements in a timely manner, or at all. We may require a
long period of time to hire and train replacement personnel when qualified personnel terminate their employment with
our Company. We may also be required to increase our levels of employee compensation more rapidly than in the past to
remain competitive in attracting employees that our business requires.

Any failure of our information technology systems could adversely affect our business and our operations.

We have information technology systems that support our business processes, human resources, accounting and finance.
These systems may be susceptible to outages due to fire, floods, power loss, telecommunications failures, natural
disasters, break-ins and similar events. Effective response to such disruptions will require effort and diligence on the part
of our third-party vendors and employees to avoid any adverse effect to our information technology systems. In addition,
our systems and proprietary data stored electronically may be vulnerable to computer viruses, cybercrime, computer
hacking and similar disruptions from unauthorized tampering. If such unauthorized use of our systems were to occur,
data related to our product formulas, product development and other proprietary information could be compromised. The
occurrence of any such events could adversely affect our business, interrupt our operations, subject us to increased
operating costs and expose us to litigation.
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15.

16.

We may have negative cash flows in the future.

Our inability to generate and sustain adequate cash flows from operations in the future could adversely affect our results
of operations and financial condition. For further details, see “Financial Statements” and “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” on pages 81 and 80, respectively. We cannot assure you that
our net cash flows will be positive in the future.

Fraud or improper conduct may delay the commissioning of NISP and adversely affect our business and results of
operations.

We are not immune to the risks of fraud or improper practices. Projects provide opportunities for corruption, fraud or
improper conduct, including bribery, deliberate poor workmanship, theft or embezzlement by employees, contractors or
the deliberate supply of low quality materials. If we or any other persons involved in any of the projects at NISP are the
victim of or involved in any such practices, our reputation or our ability to commission NISP as contemplated may be
disrupted, thereby adversely affecting our business and results of operations.

Our Company’s ability to pay dividends in the future will depend on our Company’s earnings, financial condition,
working capital requirements, capital expenditures and restrictive covenants of our Company’s financing
arrangements.

As on date, our Company has not adopted any formal dividend policy. In the past, we have not made dividend payments
to the Shareholders of our Company. For further information, see “Dividend Policy” on page 79.

Our Company’s ability to pay dividends in the future will depend on a number of factors, including but not limited to our
earnings, capital requirements, contractual obligations, results of operations, financial condition, cash requirements,
business prospects and any other financing arrangements, applicable legal restrictions and overall financial position of
our Company. The declaration and payment of dividends will be recommended by the Board of Directors and approved
by the Shareholders, at their discretion, subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association and applicable law,
including the Companies Act, 2013.

Our Board may also, from time to time, declare interim dividends from the profits of the Financial Year in which such
interim dividend is sought to be declared. We may retain all future earnings, if any, for use in the operations and
expansion of the business. We cannot assure you that we will be able to pay dividends in the future. Accordingly,
realization of a gain on Shareholders’ investments will depend on the appreciation of the price of the Equity Shares.
There is no guarantee that our Equity Shares will appreciate in value.

We will continue to be controlled by our Promoter after the completion of listing, subject to the process for the
disinvestment.

After the completion of listing, our Promoter will hold majority of our outstanding Equity Shares. Our Promoter has
initiated a process for the disinvestment of 50.79% of Equity Shares of our Company to strategic investors. If the
disinvestment process is successful, on completion of the disinvestment, our Promoter will no longer be a promoter of
our Company. Our Promoter will no longer continue to exercise significant control over us, including being able to
control the composition of our Board and determine matters requiring shareholder approval or approval of our Board.
Significant control over us will be held by the strategic investor that acquires the 50.79% of Equity Shares that our
Promoter proposes to disinvest. The interest of the acquirer may conflict with interests of our other Shareholders and they
may take or block actions with respect to our business, which may conflict with our interests or the interests of our
minority shareholders. We cannot assure you that either our Promoter or the new strategic investor may take actions that
are in the best interests of the Company or our other Shareholders. Further, we cannot guarantee that our Promoter or the
new strategic investor will act in our interest while exercising their rights.

Some of the agreements entered into by us may not be adequately stamped or may not have been registered,
which may adversely impact us.

Some of the agreements entered into by us may not be adequately stamped or may not have been registered. While the
failure to stamp a document does not affect the validity of the transaction embodied therein, it renders the document
inadmissible in evidence in India (unless stamped prior to enforcement with payment of requisite penalties, which may
be up to 10 times the stamp duty payable, and other such fees that may be levied by the authorities). Further, documents
which are insufficiently stamped are capable of being impounded by a public officer. Moreover, the failure to register an
agreement may, in certain circumstances, render such documents inadmissible in evidence in India. We cannot assure
you that such agreement, which is inadequately stamped or that have not been registered, can be enforced by us. In
addition imposition of penalties by the authorities on us for inadequate stamping of such agreements may have a material
adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.
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External Risk Factors

17.

18.

19.

A slowdown in economic growth in India could adversely affect our business, results of operations, financial
condition and cash flows.

We are dependent on domestic, regional and global economic and market conditions. Our performance, growth and
market price of our Equity Shares are and will be dependent to a large extent on the health of the economy in which we
operate. There have been periods of slowdown in the economic growth of India. Demand for our products may be
adversely affected by an economic downturn in domestic, regional and global economies. Economic growth in the
countries in which we operate is affected by various factors including domestic consumption and savings, balance of
trade movements, namely export demand and movements in key imports, global economic uncertainty and liquidity
crisis, volatility in exchange currency rates, and annual rainfall which affects agricultural production. Consequently, any
future slowdown in the Indian economy could harm our business, results of operations, financial condition and cash
flows. Also, a change in the government or a change in the economic and deregulation policies could adversely affect
economic conditions prevalent in the areas in which we operate in general and our business in particular and high rates of
inflation in India could increase our costs without proportionately increasing our revenues, and as such decrease our
operating margin.

Changing laws, rules and regulations and legal uncertainties, including adverse application of tax laws, may
adversely affect our business and financial performance.

Our business and financial performance could be adversely affected by unfavorable changes in or interpretations of
existing, or the promulgation of new laws, rules and regulations applicable to us and our business. Please refer to “Key
Regulations and Policies in India” on page 63 for details of the laws currently applicable to us.

There can be no assurance that the Government of India may not implement new regulations and policies which will
require us to obtain approvals and licenses from the Government of India and other regulatory bodies or impose onerous
requirements and conditions on our operations. Any such changes and the related uncertainties with respect to the
applicability, interpretation and implementation of any amendment to, or change to governing laws, regulation or policy
in the jurisdictions in which we operate may have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and
results of operations. In addition, we may have to incur expenditures to comply with the requirements of any new
regulations, which may also materially harm our results of operations. Any unfavorable changes to the laws and
regulations applicable to us could also subject us to additional liabilities.

The application of various Indian tax laws, rules and regulations to our business, currently or in the future, is subject to
interpretation by the applicable taxation authorities. If such tax laws, rules and regulations are amended, new adverse
laws, rules or regulations are adopted or current laws are interpreted adversely to our interests, the results could increase
our tax payments (prospectively or retrospectively) and/or subject us to penalties. Further, changes in capital gains tax or
tax on capital market transactions or sale of shares could affect investor returns. As a result, any such changes or
interpretations could have an adverse effect on our business and financial performance.

We may be affected by competition law in India and any adverse application or interpretation of the Competition
Act could in turn adversely affect our business.

The Competition Act was enacted for the purpose of preventing practices that have or are likely to have an adverse effect
on competition in India and has mandated the CCI to separate such practices. Under the Competition Act, any
arrangement, understanding or action, whether formal or informal, which causes or is likely to cause an appreciable
adverse effect on competition is void and attracts substantial penalties.

Further, any agreement among competitors which, directly or indirectly, involves determination of purchase or sale
prices, limits or controls production, or shares the market by way of geographical area or number of subscribers in the
relevant market is presumed to have an appreciable adverse effect in the relevant market in India and shall be void. The
Competition Act also prohibits abuse of a dominant position by any enterprise. On March 4, 2011, the Central
Government notified and brought into force the combination regulation (merger control) provisions under the
Competition Act with effect from June 1, 2011. These provisions require acquisitions of shares, voting rights, assets or
control or mergers or amalgamations that cross the prescribed asset and turnover based thresholds to be mandatorily
notified to, and pre-approved by, the CCI. Additionally, on May 11, 2011, the CCI issued The Competition Commission
of India (Procedure in regard to the Transaction of Business Relating to Combinations) Regulations, 2011, as amended,
which sets out the mechanism for implementation of the merger control regime in India. The Competition Act aims to,
among other things, prohibit all agreements and transactions which may have an appreciable adverse effect in India.
Consequently, all agreements entered into by us could be within the purview of the Competition Act. Further, the CCI
has extra-territorial powers and can investigate any agreements, abusive conduct or combination occurring outside of
India if such agreement, conduct or combination has an appreciable adverse effect in India. However, the impact of the
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provisions of the Competition Act on the agreements entered into by us cannot be predicted with certainty at this stage.
We are not currently party to any outstanding proceedings, nor have we received notice in relation to noncompliance with
the Competition Act or the agreements entered into by us. However, if we are affected, directly or indirectly, by the
application or interpretation of any provision of the Competition Act, or any enforcement proceedings initiated by the
CCI, or any adverse publicity that may be generated due to scrutiny or prosecution by the CCI or if any prohibition or
substantial penalties are levied under the Competition Act, it would adversely affect our business, financial condition,
results of operations and prospects.

If acts of terrorism and other similar threats to security, communal disturbances or riots erupt in India, or if
regional hostilities increase, this would adversely affect the Indian economy, and our business, results of
operations and cash flows.

India has experienced communal disturbances, terrorist attacks and riots in the past. If such events recur, our operational
and marketing activities may be adversely affected, resulting in a decline in our income. The Asian region has from time
to time experienced instances of civil unrest and hostilities among neighboring countries, including those between India
and Pakistan & India and China. Hostilities and tensions may occur in the future and on a wider scale. Military activity or
terrorist attacks in India, as well as other acts of violence or war could influence the Indian economy by creating a
perception that investments in India involve higher degrees of risk. Events of this nature in the future, as well as social
and civil unrest within other countries in Asia, could influence the Indian economy and could have an adverse effect on
the market for securities of Indian companies, including our Equity Shares.

Inflation in India could have an adverse effect on our profitability and if significant, on our financial condition.

Inflation is typically impacted by factors such as governmental policies, regulations, commodity prices, liquidity and
global economic environment. Any change in the government or a change in the economic and deregulation policies
could adversely affect the inflation rates. Continued high rates of inflation may increase our costs such as salaries, travel
costs and related allowances, which are typically, linked to general price levels. Accordingly, high rates of inflation in
India could have an adverse effect on our profitability and, if significant, on our financial condition.

The occurrence of natural or man-made disasters may adversely affect our business, results of operations and
financial condition.

The occurrence of natural disasters, including hurricanes, floods, tsunamis, earthquakes, tornadoes, fires, explosions,
pandemic disease and man-made disasters, including acts of terrorism and military actions, may adversely affect our
financial condition or results of operations. The potential impact of a natural disaster such as the coronavirus disease
2019 (COVID-19), H5N1 "avian flu" virus, or HIN1, the swine flu virus, MERS (Middle East Respiratory Syndrome),
Zika, the mosquito virus, on our results of operations and financial position is speculative, and would depend on
numerous factors. Although the long-term effect of such diseases cannot currently be predicted, previous occurrences of
COVID-19, avian flu, swine flu, MERS and Zika had an adverse effect on the economies of those countries in which they
were most prevalent. In the case of any of such diseases, should the virus mutate and lead to human-to-human
transmission of the disease, the consequence for our business could be severe. An outbreak of a communicable disease in
India or in the particular region in which we have projects would adversely affect our business and financial conditions
and the result of operations. We cannot assure prospective investors that such events will not occur in the future or that
our business, results of operations and financial condition will not be adversely affected.

A significant change in the Government’s economic liberalization and deregulation policies could disrupt our
business.

We are incorporated in India and all of our assets are located in India. Consequently, our performance and liquidity of the
Equity Shares is affected by changes in exchange rates and controls, interest rates, Government policies, taxation, social
and ethnic instability and other political and economic developments affecting India. The Government has traditionally
exercised and continues to exercise a dominant influence over many aspects of the economy. Our business and the
market price and liquidity of the Equity Shares may be affected by changes in exchange rates and controls, interest rates,
changes in Government policy, taxation, social and civil unrest and political, economic or other developments in or
affecting India. In recent years, India has been following a course of economic liberalization and our business could be
significantly influenced by economic policies followed by the Government. Further, our businesses are also impacted by
regulation and conditions in the various states in India where we operate. There can be no assurance as to the policies a
new elected government will follow or that it will continue the policies of the outgoing government. The rate of
economic liberalization could change, and specific laws and policies affecting foreign investment, currency exchange
rates and other matters affecting investment in India could change as well. A significant change in India’s economic
liberalization and deregulation policies, in particular, those relating to our business, could disrupt business and economic
conditions in India generally and our business in particular.
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Financial instability, economic developments and volatility in securities markets in other countries may also cause
a decline in the price of the Equity Shares.

The Indian market and the Indian economy are influenced by economic and market conditions in other countries,
particularly emerging market countries in Asia. Financial turmoil in United States of America (“US”) & Europe and
elsewhere in the world in recent years has affected the Indian economy. Although economic conditions are different in
each country, investors’ reactions to developments in one country can have adverse effects on the securities of companies
in other countries, including India. Recently, the currencies of a few Asian countries including India suffered
depreciation against the US Dollar owing to amongst other, the announcement by the US government that it may
consider reducing its quantitative easing measures. A loss of investor confidence in the financial systems of other
emerging markets may cause increased volatility in Indian financial markets and, indirectly, in the Indian economy in
general. Any worldwide financial instability could also have a negative impact on the Indian economy. Financial
disruptions may occur again and could harm our business, prospects, future financial performance and the prices of the
Equity Shares.

The global credit and equity markets have experienced substantial dislocations, liquidity disruptions and market
corrections in recent years. Since September 2008, liquidity and credit concerns and volatility in the global credit and
financial markets increased significantly with the bankruptcy or acquisition of, and government assistance extended to,
several major US and European financial institutions. These and other related events, such as the European sovereign
debt crisis, have had a significant impact on the global credit and financial markets as a whole, including reduced
liquidity, greater volatility, widening of credit spreads and a lack of price transparency in global credit and financial
markets. In response to such developments, legislators and financial regulators in the US and other jurisdictions,
including India, have implemented a number of policy measures designed to add stability to the financial markets.

However, the overall impact of these and other legislative and regulatory efforts on the global financial markets is
uncertain, and they may not have the intended stabilizing effects. In the event that the current difficult conditions in the
global credit markets continue or if there is any significant financial disruption, such conditions could have an adverse
effect on our business, prospects, future financial performance and the trading price of the Equity Shares.

Our performance is linked to the stability of policies and the political situation in India. Any political instability in
India may adversely affect the Indian economy and the Indian securities markets in general, which could
adversely affect our business, our results of operations and could also affect the trading price of our shares.

The Government has pursued policies of economic liberalization, including significantly relaxing restrictions on the
private sector. Any political instability could delay the reform of the Indian economy and could have a material adverse
effect on the market for our Equity Shares. There is no assurance that these liberalization policies will continue if there is
a change in political climate. Protests against privatization could slow-down the pace of liberalization and deregulation.
The rate of economic liberalization could change, and specific laws and policies affecting companies in the steel sector,
foreign investment, currency exchange rates and other matters affecting investment in our securities could change as
well. Further, if there is any political unrest or political instability or change of policies as a result of the introduction of
any new political regime in India, which is not in advancement of the steel sector or in furtherance of our business
activities, then our business, results of operations and financial position may be adversely affected.

Any downgrading of India's debt rating by an independent agency may harm our ability to raise financing.

Any adverse revisions to India's credit ratings for domestic and international debt by domestic or international rating
agencies may adversely affect our ability to raise additional financing and the interest rates and other commercial terms
at which such additional financing is available. This could have an adverse effect on our capital expenditure plans,
business and financial performance and the price of our Equity Shares.

A decline in India’s foreign exchange reserves may affect liquidity and interest rates in the Indian economy, which
could adversely impact us. A rapid decrease in reserves would also create risk of higher interest rates and a
consequent slowdown in growth.

Flows to foreign exchange reserves can be volatile, and past declines may have adversely affected the valuation of the
Rupee. There can be no assurance that India’s foreign exchange reserves will not decrease in the future. Further, a
decline in foreign exchange reserves, as well as other factors, could adversely affect the valuation of the Rupee and could
result in reduced liquidity and higher interest rates, which could adversely affect our business, financial condition, results
of operations and cash flows.

Investors in the Equity Shares may not be able to enforce a judgment of a foreign court against us, our directors
or executive officers.

Our Company is incorporated under the laws of India. Our Company’s assets are located in India and substantially all of
our Company’s Directors and Key Management Personnel are residents of India. As a result, it may not be possible for
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investors to effect service of process upon our Company or such persons in jurisdictions outside India, or to enforce
against them judgments obtained in courts outside India.

Financial difficulty and other problems in certain long-term lending institutions and investment institutions in
India could have a negative impact on our business.

We are exposed to the risks of the Indian financial system which may be affected by the financial difficulties faced by
certain Indian financial institutions because the commercial soundness of many financial institutions may be closely
related as a result of credit, trading, clearing or other relationships. This risk, which is referred to as “systemic risk,” may
adversely affect financial intermediaries, such as clearing agencies, banks, securities firms and exchanges with whom we
interact on a daily basis. Our transactions with these financial institutions expose us to credit risk in the event of default
by the counter party, which can be exacerbated during periods of market illiquidity. As the Indian financial system
operates within an emerging market, we face risks of a nature and extent not typically faced in more developed
economies, including the risk of deposit runs notwithstanding the existence of a national deposit insurance scheme. The
problems faced by individual Indian financial institutions and any instability in or difficulties faced by the Indian
financial system generally could create adverse market perception about Indian financial institutions and banks. This in
turn could adversely affect our business, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows.

The Equity Shares have never been publicly traded, and, after listing, the Equity Shares may experience price and
volume fluctuations, and an active trading market for the Equity Shares may not develop.

There has been no public market for the Equity Shares, and an active trading market on the Stock Exchanges may not
develop or be sustained after the listing. Listing and quotation does not guarantee that a market for the Equity Shares will
develop, or if developed, the liquidity of such market for the Equity Shares. The market price of the Equity Shares may
be subject to significant fluctuations in response to, among other factors, variations in our operating results of our
Company, market conditions specific to the industry we operate in, developments relating to India, volatility in securities
markets in jurisdictions other than India, variations in the growth rate of financial indicators, variations in revenue or
earnings estimates by research publications, and changes in economic, legal and other regulatory factors.

Any future issuance of Equity Shares, or convertible securities or other equity linked securities by us and any sale
of Equity Shares by our Promoter may dilute your shareholding and adversely affect the trading price of the
Equity Shares.

Any future issuance of the Equity Shares, convertible securities or securities linked to the Equity Shares by us, including
through exercise of employee stock options may dilute your shareholding in our Company, adversely affect the trading
price of the Equity Shares and our ability to raise capital through an issue of our securities. In addition, any perception by
investors that such issuances or sales might occur could also affect the trading price of the Equity Shares. We cannot
assure you that we will not issue additional Equity Shares. The disposal of Equity Shares by our Promoter, or the
perception that such sales may occur may significantly affect the trading price of the Equity Shares.
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SECTION IV - INTRODUCTION

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The Audited Balance Sheet of the Company as on September 30, 2022, as on March 31, 2022 and as on March 31, 2021 is

as under:

(In Rs)

Particulars

As on September

30, 2022

As on March
31,2022

As on March
31, 2021

Assets

Non-current assets

Financial assets

Other financial assets

Total non-current assets

Current assets

Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

4,65,927

4,63,568

39,015

Other financial assets

162

162

Other current assets

Total current assets

4,66,089

4,63,730

39,015

Total Assets

4,66,089

4,63,730

39,015

Equity and Liabilities

Equity

Equity share capital

11,00,000

11,00,000

6,00,000

Other equity

(6,77,611)

(6,83,470)

(5,91,835)

Total equity

4,22,389

4,16,530

8,165

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Financial liabilities

Borrowings

Trade payables

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises

Other financial liabilities

43,700

43,700

30,850

Other current liabilities

3,500

Total current liabilities

Total Liabilities

43,700

47,200

30,850

Total Equity and Liabilities

4,66,089

4,63,730

39,015

The Audited Profit and Loss Account Statement of the Company for the Financial Year 2020-21, 2021-22 and for the Half

Year ended September 30, 2022 is as under:

(In Rs)
Particulars Half Year ended FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21
September 30,
2022
Income
Revenue from operations - - -
Other income 5,859 7,684 1,722
Total income 5,859 7,684 1,722
Expenses
Other expenses - 99,319 74,039
Finance costs - - -
Total expenses - 99,319 74,039
Loss before tax (I-1I) 5,859 (91,635) (72,317)
Tax expenses - - -
Loss for the period 5,859 (91,635) (72,317)
Other Comprehensive Income for the period, net of tax - - -
Total Comprehensive Income for the period, net of tax 5,859 (91,635) (72,317)
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IV +V)

Earnings per equity share:

~Basic & Diluted (Rs) 0.05 (0.94) (121)

The Audited Cash Flow Statements of the Company for the Financial Year 2020-21, 2021-22 and for the Half Year ended
September 30, 2022 is as under:

(In Rs)
Particulars Half Year ended FY 2021-22 FY 2020-21
September 30,
2022
A. Cash flow from operating activities :
Loss before tax 5,859 (91,635) (72,317)
Less : Adjustments for
Interest income (5,859) (7,684) (1,722)
Operating loss before working capital changes (99,319) (74,039)
Add/ (less) : Adjustments for change in working capital
(Increase) / Decrease in other financial liabilities 12,850 (4,720)
Increase / (Decrease) in other current liabilities (3,500) 3,500 -
Cash generated from operations
Add/ (less) : Income tax paid
Net cash inflow from operating activities (3,500) (82,969) (78,759)
B. Cash flow from investing activities: 5,859 7,522 1,917
C. Cash flow from financing activities :
Proceeds from current borrowings - -
Proceeds from issue of shares - 5,00,000 -
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from financing activities - 5,00,000 -
Net increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 2,359 4,24,553 (76,842)
(A+B+C)
Add: Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of year 4,63,568 39,015 1,15,857
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of year 4,65,927 4,63,568 39,015
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GENERAL INFORMATION

Our Company was incorporated as an unlisted Government Company under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 on
January 2, 2015 within the jurisdiction of the Registrar of Companies, Chhattisgarh. There have been no changes to the
name of our Company since incorporation.

For further details, please see “History and Certain Corporate Matters” on page 67 and for details of the business of our
Company, please see “Our Business” on page 57.

Corporate Identity Number: U27310CT2015GOI001618

Registered Office: C/O NMDC Iron & Steel Plant Nagarnar Bastar, Chhattisgarh 494001, India

Corporate Office: 10-3-311/A, Khanij Bhavan, Castle Hills, Masab Tank, Hyderabad — 500 028

The Registrar of Companies: Chhattisgarh

Board of Directors of our Company: The Board of our Company comprises the following -

Sr. No. Name & Designation Address DIN

Mpr. Sumit Deb, H.No.8-2-269/H/20, Plot No 20, Road No. 2, Banjara

Chairman-Cum-Managing Director Hills, Near TDP oﬁ’ice, Hyderabad— 500 034 08547819

Ms. Sukriti Likhi,

2. ] ) C-7, Tower 10, New Moti Bagh, New Delhi 01825997
Non-Executive Director
3 Mr. Amitava Mukherjee, Flat No 1901, Crystal Tower — F, PBEL City, Near 08265207
' Wholetime Director TSPA Junction, Hyderabad — 500 091
4 Mr. Dilip Kumar Mohanly NCC Urban Gardenia, 09296720
’ Wholetime Director Tower-I, Block-B, F/No.1002, Gachibowli, Hyderabad

For further details of our Directors, please see “Our Management” on page 71.
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer:

Following are the details of Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of our Company-
Ms. M. Amala

10-3-311/A, Khanij Bhavan,

Castle Hills, Masab Tank,

Hyderabad — 500 028

Contact Number: 040-23538757

Email: cs_nisp@nmdc.co.in

Bankers to the Company:

State Bank of India,

NMDC Branch,

10-3-311/A, Khanij Bhavan,

Castle Hills, Masab Tank,
Hyderabad — 500 028

Telephone number of the banker:-
Email address of the banker:-
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Registrar and Share Transfer Agent of the Company:

Aarthi Consultants Pvt. Ltd.

Domalguda, Hyderabad - 500029

Contact Person: Mr. G. Bhaskara Murthy
Contact Number : 040-27638111, 27634445
Fax: 040-27632184

Email: info@aarthiconsultants.com
Website: www.aarthiconsultants.com

Statutory Auditors to our Company:

NG Rao & Associates, Chartered Accountants

H.No.6-3-1186/A/6 (New No.325),

2nd Floor, Chinna Balreddy Building,

Adjacent Lane to ITC Kakatiya Hotel,

Begumpet, Hyderabad — 500 016

Phone: 040-6661 7089 / 9848018791 / 9849135573 / 9542187777
Email: nageswararaog207@gmail.com / nageswararaog@rediffmail.com
G. Nageswara Rao, Partner

Membership No.207300

Change in auditors:

The Auditors of the company are appointed by the Comptroller & Auditor General of India, New Delhi.

Legal Counsel of the Company:

M/s K. Raghavacharyulu (Standing Counsel)
Plot no. 23, Nandagiri,

HUDA, Road No. 69,

Jubliee Hills,

Hyderabad -500 033.

Contact person : K.Raghavacharyulu

Contact No: 9618841414

Email Address: kradvocates@amail.com

Filing

A copy of the Draft Information Memorandum and this Information Memorandum has been filed with BSE, CSE and NSE.

Authority for Listing

In accordance with the Scheme, the Equity Shares of our Company issued pursuant to the Scheme shall be listed and admitted to
trading on the Stock Exchanges. Such admission and listing is not automatic and will be subject to fulfilment of the respective
listing criteria of BSE, CSE and NSE by our Company and also subject to such other terms and conditions as may be prescribed
by the Stock Exchanges at the time of the listing application made by our Company to the Stock Exchanges for seeking approval
for listing.

Our Company has nominated BSE Limited as the Designated Stock Exchange.

Eligibility Criteria

There being no initial public offering or rights issue, the eligibility criteria prescribed under the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations is not
applicable. However, SEBI vide its letter no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DCR/RAC-2/P/OW/2023/2574/1 dated January 18, 2023, granted
relaxation of Rule 19(2)(b) of the SCRR to our Company pursuant to an application made by our Company to SEBI under sub-
rule (7) of Rule 19 of the SCRR as per the SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 as amended read
with SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/0000000665 dated November 23, 2021, as amended. Our
Company has submitted this Information Memorandum, containing information about our Company, and including disclosures in
line with the disclosure requirement for public issues, as applicable, to BSE, CSE and NSE, and this Information Memorandum
shall be made available to the public through the websites of the Stock Exchanges at www.bseindia.com, www.cse-india.com and
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http://www.cse-india.com/

www.nseindia.com and at our website nmdcsteel.nmdc.co.in. Our Company shall also publish an advertisement in the newspapers
containing the details in terms of SEBI Circular. The advertisement shall draw specific reference to the availability of the
Information Memorandum on our Company’s website.

General Disclaimer from the Company

Our Company, our Promoters and our Directors do not accept any responsibility for statements made otherwise than in this
Information Memorandum, or otherwise than in the advertisement published by the Company in terms of the SEBI Circular or any
other material issued by or at the instance of Company. Anyone placing reliance on any other source of information would be
doing so at his or her own risk. All information shall be made available by Company to the public and investors at large and no
selective or additional information would be available for a section of the investors in any manner.
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE

Our Company’s Equity Share capital, as on the date of this Information Memorandum, is set forth below:

Particulars Amount (Rs.)
Authorized Share Capital

300,00,00,000 equity shares of INR 10/- each 30,00,00,00,000
Total 30,00,00,00,000
Issued, Subscribed and Paid Up Share Capital

2,93,06,05,850 equity shares of INR 10/- each 29,30,60,58,500
Total 29,30,60,58,500

Notes to Capital Structure
1. Share capital build-up of our Company
(a) History of Equity Share capital of our Company

(1) 110,000 Equity Shares were allotted as per following table for cash at face value as initial subscription to
the MoA, and as further allottments of Equity Shares by our Company.

Name Nature of Transaction Date of | No of Equity | Face Value per
Allotment shares equity share
NMDC Ltd Upon incorporation of the | 02.01.2015 10,000 10
company
NMDC Ltd Additions 12.07.2018 50,000 10
NMDC Ltd Additions 29.06.2021 50,000 10
(ii) The 110,000 Equity Shares allotted to the subscribers to our MoA and as further allotment were cancelled

and 2,93,06,05,850 Equity Shares were allotted as fully paid up on November 8, 2022 to the shareholders of
NMDC Limited in the ratio of one Equity Share for every one equity share of NMDC Limited held as on
the record date i.e. October 28, 2022.

(b) Equity Shares issued for consideration other than cash
Other than 2,93,06,05,850 Equity Shares allotted pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement, no Equity Shares have
been issued by our Company for consideration other than cash on the date of this Information Memorandum.
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2. Shareholding pattern of the Company as per SEBI (LODR) Regulations is as follows

The table below presents the shareholding pattern of our Company as on the date of this Information Memorandum

Annexure - |
Format of holding of specified securities

1 Name of the Listed Entity : NMDC STEEL LIMITED

2 Scrip Code/Name of Scrip/Class of Security : /NMDC STEEL LIMITED/EQUITY

3 Share Holding Pattern Filed under : Reg.31(1)(a)/Reg.31(1)(b}/Reg.31(1}(c)
a. If under 31(1)(b) then indicate the report for Quarter ending : 28/10,/2022
b. If under 31(1)(c) then indicate date of allotment/extinguishment

4 Isin INEONNSO1018
5 Declaration: The Listed entity is required to submit the following declaration to the extent of submission of information :-

Particulars *Yes No* Promaoter and Promoter Group Public Share Holders Non Promoier-MNon Public
1|Whether the Listed Entity has issued any partly paid up shares? No No No No
2|Whether the Listed Entity has issued any Convertible Securities? No Mo No No
3|Whether the Listed Entity has issued any Warrants? No No No No
4|Whether the Listed Entity has any shares against which depository receipts are issued? No Mo No No
5|Whether the Listed Entity has any shares in locked-in? No No No No
6|Whether any shares held by promoters are pledge or otherwise encumbered? No No N.A N.A
7|Whether company has equity shares with differntial voting rights? No No No No
8|Whether the listed entity has any significant beneficial owner? Na

Notel :- We provided significant benfeficiary owner status as per
the latest communication from your end. If any changes are there, kindly
update the details to us.

Note2 :- Data against Table-lll S.No 4(a),4(b),4(c),4(d),4(e),Column XV, Table-|V SIno 2,Table-VI was provided based on inputs given from your side. Flease check
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Table | - Summary Statemeant holding of specified sacurities

No.of | Shareholding
Shares asa%
Shareholdingas| Number of Voting Rights held in each class of Securities Underlyin| assuming full | yymber of Locked in shares| "o oo O Shares aledged
No.of full = of total no. (ix) g conversion of it} or otherwise encurnbered
Cat offully | o of partly |Nos.of shares L 4 Outstandi| convertable (i Number of
Nocikshiarg paid up aldsi underying Total nos. of shares i S equity shares
“eo Category of shareholder (i1} - equity P P shares held | (calculated as . held in
y holders (i) equity shares| Depository converta | a percentage
shares held (vii = ivtusvi) | per SCRR, dematerialize
(1] held [v) Receipts (vi) ble of diluted
(iv) 1957)(Viii) As a I d form (x1v)
%% of (A+8+C2) securities | share capital)
(including| (xi)={vii)+(x)
Warrants| asa‘%of
e 1 (%) (A+8+C2)
No.of Voting Rights
Asa ™ of
Totalasa % As a % of total
Class eg:X* Class eg:Y Total of [A+B+C) higsi (2} m;::r;:r'ﬂ Ll shares neld (b)
(A} |Promoter & Promoter Group 1[1781633571 0 0} 1781633571 60.79] 1781633571 0] 1781633571 60,79 1] 60.79 ] o 8] 0| 1781533571
(B) |Public 692091| 1148972279 0 0] 1148972279 39.21] 1148972279 0| 1148972279 39.21 1] 39.21 Q 0| N.A MN.A 1198882282
{C} [MNon Promoter-Non Public
[C1) |Shares underlying DRs 4] 0 1] a 0] NA 0 0 0 1] 1] [u] 0 0| M.A N.A a
(C2) |Shares held by Employee Trusts 1] 0 0 a 0 0 0 1] [4] 1] o] 0 0 O MN.A N.A 1]
Total 692092 | 2930605850 0 0] 2930605850 100| 2930605850 0] 2930605850 100 0 100 1] 0 Ol 0| 2930515853

*¥ = Equity




[ Table Il - 1t showing shareholding pattern of the Premoter and Promater Group

asath
Number of assuming full
Share | yoring Righes cormersion
hoiding % hald in aach Ne.of Shares o Number of Locked in Number of Shares pleiged or
shares [Xi] otherwise encumber:d (X1
Noof | Nooffully | partypaid | BT ||| o of onaartr™® | convertable i AR | Number of
Category & Name of the Sharsholdars | Entity type Le. promoter OR pramoter| 1 share | peldup | upequity | R held el Lo | Securities (i) . s nab? securities (as equlty sheras
in Eroup entity (except promoter) holders |equity shares| shares hald ¥ e ®la percentage heid In
i} held (iv) v Depository | =lvswwl) | 7Asa% securities | dematerialized
Recefpts (vi) aof (including S form [X1V)
(A+B+C2) Warrants) [¥)
i) capital)
ui)={vii)#(x)}
asa'%of
INo.of Voting Rights Tatal as a AB4C2
As a % of
% of ol Asa%of
T 3 . i
ChssX* | Class¥ Total e Ne-fa) | ghares Mo.lgh | totil shares
Voting held {b) heeld {b)
rights
1|indian
(@) |Individuals/Hindu undivided Family 0| 0 o a [¢] L] 0 [ [} ] [+ 0 o 0 0 4] [
Central Government/ State
|b)_|Government|s) 1| 1781633571 o [t} 1781633571 60.79] 1781633571 0] 1781633571 GO.?gI Lt] 60.75 o 1] o] ) 1781633571
PRESIDENT OF INDIA EXEMPTCATS 1| 1781633571 i} i 1781633571 60.79] 1781633571 0] 1781633571 60.79) 0| 60.78| o o] o [ 1781633571
c) | Financial Institutions/Banks 0 [1] o 0 [4) (4] 1) 0| o (j o 0] 1] 0 o 0| [+
i) | Corporate Bodies 0 0 [ 0 of [+ 0 J 0| 1] 0 0] 0 0 0 0 0
Corpurate Bodies - Group Cempany 0| 0 0 0 0 g 0 0 o o 0 0 i i o 0| o
Trust/ Promoter Q 0 o 1] al 4] i) 0 [} 1] 0 0 0 0 1] 0 1]
Directars/Promaters & their Relatives
& Friends 0| L] 0 0 8] 1] [1] [i] o 4] o a o 0| o 0 a
Sub-Total{A){1} 1| 1781633571 (] 0 1781633571 60.75] 1781633571 0] 1781633571 60.78 Y] 60.79) [ 0 o o 1781633571
Forei|
{Non-Resident Indhvidual
Forelgn Individuals) 0| [s] o o [s] ] 0 [} o 0 0| 1] 0| D 1] 0 0
Govemment 0| 1] i 0 0| [ 1] 0| [} 0| [ 1 [ ) 1] ] 0
Institutions 0| i 0 0 0 0 0 o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 [i o
0 LY 0 0 0) 4] 4 0] 0 [¢] ] o 9 L] [u] 0 [
gn Bod 0| aj ] 1) ] 4] [} [} 0 [+ 4] o [ v 0 Q 0
Corporate Bodies - OCB Non
Repatriable 1] [1] 0 0 [i] [+] 0j 0 o o [ 0| 4] 4] )
f-
fif] _|Corporate Badles - GCB Repatrisble ] o o 0 o) o o | o 0 0| 0 0 0 0
Farelgn institutlonal invester {Fil) -
Others o (] o 1] 0| Y] 1] a o o 0 [ 0 [4] 1]
Fareign Institutional Investor (FIf) - DR o [+] o 1] ] Q| a a o 1] 0 0| 0 1] 0
- |
i) |Bank - Foreign Bank 0| 1] 0 0 0 ] 0] o o 0. L] 0 0 0 0
0| [1] o 1] ] ] 4] a 0 0 [1) 0| a 1] o
0 0 [ [] 0| j [ 0 0 u! of q 0 [ [
Total shareholding of Promoter and
Promotar Group (A)={A){1)H{A}2) 1| 1781633571 0 0| 1781633571 60.79| 1781633571 0| 1781633571 0 0 o 0 1781633571

*X = Equity



Table lll - Statement showing sharcholding pattern of the Public shareholder

Shareholding -
Fhatr asa
holdings|  Number of Voting Rights held In each class of | pyo,of shares | ™8 fl | Number of Locked in | Number of Shares pledged or —_— )
sl | s pariypai|| s calaulate Securtties (i) Underlying mwm'::":' shares (xIi) otherwise encumbered (X | Number of i Catm govtztion of sharss (Y]
Category & Name of the Shareholders share paid up up equity shares Tatel mo bl Outztarsding securities fas equity shares
PAN (i) underlying | shares held (vIi | SCRR,195 convertable hald in
1)} holders | equity shares| shares held N P B percentage
Depository = i) Thsa% securities dematerialized
] held {iv) ) of diluted b o
Receipts (v of {including " ital Form [XIv)
(A+B+C2) Warrsnts) (x| - P 4
e (i) =iviip{x)
asa% of
A+B+C2
No.of Voting Rights Share holding |No.ofshares) under
Total a5 a As 0% of — 1
M atToc Na. (3] Vo, Mo, [a) l:&:lns:::s
Class X* Class ¥ Total Voting Shares held (&) Sub Category {i) | Sub Crtegory (i) | Sub Category (1)
rights held {b)
1 = D 1
i tual Funds 14 109736526 0| 0 109236526, 373 109236526 0] 105236526 373 a 109236526 1 [ a
venture Capital Funds o [ 0| 0 [ o 0 [i] 0| [i 0 o 0 o ry
Funds & 4071014 [t} 1] 4071014 0.141 4071014 1] 4071014, 014 [} ao71014 o 0 ]
9|  2BTISDAE] 0| 0 IETTSOME 0.98| 2BTTS04E 0]  ZETTS04E 0.98 [ 28775048 0 [ o
12| 439028575) 0| [i 439026575 14.98] 430026575 0] 430026575 14.92 9| 439028575 [ o o
UCI ANNUITY NON-PAR AAACLOS82H 1| 414885432 0| 0 414885432]  14.16]  4l4@essz| 0] 41485432 14.16 [ 414885432 0 i [
f] _|Provident/Pension Funds 1 8715210 ] [t} B715210 0.3] 8715210 L1} 8715210 0.3 of A715210] o o [
Asset Reconstruction Companies 1] D 0| 0 0 o o [i] 0 [} 0 0 [1] 0 [
{h| |Soverign Wealth Funds 1] 0 0| 1] | 1] a 0| 0 a 0 0
[t _[mercs aeg with REl l 75965 o] a q 75965, a [ 75565 a| o D
i Other Financial Institutions 1 1564540 [+] a 0| 1564540 0,05 0f 1564540 U! i) o
Any Other {Specify) i 0 0| [ [ [1 [ [ [i af 0 o
Sub-Total(B}[1)} 52| 591464878 o a 0] 591464878 20.18 o S91464878 a 1] [+]
Instituticns(Forelgn|
Foreign Direct Investment a 1] 1] 1] 1} L1l 0 0 o ON.A NA i} 1] [i] o
Foreign Venture Capital Investors o 1] Le] a a 0| 0j 0 o OM.A HA 0 a o [
Soversign Wealth Funds a 0 0 0] a 0 0j 0] 0 OjN.A A 0 a 1] [']
Forelgn Portfolio Investors Category | 188 151701129 0 1] 151701129 151701123 0| 151701139 5.18] 0| 5.18) 0 [ [[% NA 151701129 a 0 o
|Foreign Portfalio Investars Catsgery Il 17| 19323545 1] 0| 19323595 19322595 o 19322595 .66 1] G.Q 1] Y N.A 19372505 a [i] 0
Overseas Depositories (holding DAs|
balar Tegure| 2 3700 o 0| a7naj 3700 o 3700 0f 0 0 o [u] [N N.A 3700( a o o
Any Other [Specify) [+] 4] 1] [\ [4] ] 0 i} a O 1] o o OfM.A H.A 1} a o o
lg-i} | Foreign Portfolio Investors Categary 1l [+] 1] a 1] [+] o 0| o 1] 0] 1] o o [N N.& 0 1] 1] o
Foreign Institutional Investors o ) o 1] 9| ol 0 0 o i 1] a 1] OfM.A N4 0| [ o o
Bank - Foreign Bank [ 0| [ o ] [] [ 0| o o) 1 o 0 [1] (1) NA 0| ] 0 0
(-
iv] |Qualified Foreign Investor - Corporate [+] 0 0 0 0| [+] o 0 1] 0j o o o OM.A N.A ] ] o [s]
3
v| _[Corporate Bodies - Foralgn Bodies L¥] o) o o 0 Le] 0 0 1] 0 a [} 1] OM.A N4 2] o 0 o
Sub-Total(B)(2) 206  171027424] [ [ 171027424 5.84| 171027424 0]  171027424) 5.84 0 5.84 0| 0[M.A N.A 171027424 [ [ i
Central Government [ State
3|Government{s)
(a) |Central resident of India o 0 o a 1] o 1] 4] o a (1] o [+] OiNA E.A 0| o [+] o|
(b} |State Government / Governer o o 0| a 1] o a [+] o 1] a 0 [+] oN.A A [s] o o 8]
Shareholding by Companles or Bodies
Corporate where Central / State
lc}_|Government is a promater [} 1] 0| 1] o o 1) 0| 1] a o 0 0 O[N.A& M.A 0| o
sub-Total{B)(3) o L) o 1] a o o] i o 1] ] 0| 0 0N N.A 0 0
4| Non-institutions
[a) |Associate companies /Subsidiaries a o 0 o) a a o [ o a 0| 0| o oA MNA o o
Directors and thelr relatives |exchiding
independent directors and naminee
ib] 1] o o o o 4] [ o 1] o 0; 0 o OJM.& NA [s] o
{c} [key Managarial Personnel 1] 3020/ i} 0 3020 0 3020] o 2020 L] Bl 0| o Ofh.A ji 3020} o
Relatives of promoters [other than
immediate relatives of promoters
disclosed under Promoter and
(d) |Promoter Group category) o 0 4] o [ o o o 1] o) 0 o o O|h.A NA ¥l ]|




*¥ = Equity

Trusts where any parson belonging to
Promoter and Promater Group
category is trustee, beneficiary, or

{e] |auther of the trust 9| [ o 0| ] ] 0 0 [ s 1 o 0 On.A NA o [ [ 0
Investor Education and Protection Fund

{f] |1IEFF) 1] 33174 o 0j 33174 o 39174 o 39174 0| a o 0| OfN.A A 39174 0 0 1]
Resident individwals holding nominal

{g] |share capital up to Rs. 3 lakhs 580392 260380114 o o) 260380114 B.88| 260280114 0] 260380114 8.88| o ¥ ] ofN.A MNA 260308907 0 1] o
Resident individuals holding mem inal
share capital In excess of Rs. 2 lakhs 67 34983512 o 0j 34583512 115 34983512 o 34983512 1.19 0 119 34933512 D 1] o
Mon Aesident Indians (NRs; 8646 13883356 o 1] 13833358 0.47] 13883356 0 13883356 0.47) o 047 13BE3356 0| 1] i}
Foreign Nationals 1 1500 o 0| 1500 o 1500 0 1500 [ o o 1500 [ 0 1]
Foreign Companies a 0 o D o o [] o a o) o o [i] [ 0 0
Bodies Corporate 2364) 65618259 0 D) 55618259 2.24] 65618259 0] A5618359 2.24) o 2.24 BEE16258 o) 0 o
Any Dther (Specify) a o o 0| 4 0 0| 1] a 0| o] o o [ 0 o

(-

I|__|Foreign Partfalio Investor i i 0 0| [ o o 0 0 0| o [ o ol o o

{m-

iij _|Employess 160 144387 o Y 144387 0 144387 ] 144387 0 0 ) 127507 [ 0 0

{m-

i) | Cwalified Foreign Investes - Corporate 0 a 0 [ o 0| 0 0 0 0| 0 [ o 0 0 o

[m-

‘H‘[ Trust a3 894495 0 0 0.03 254435 0 8594495 0.03) o 0.03) E044085 [ [1] [1]

{m-

i) | dent-Directors [ o 0 0| a o 0| a 0 0 o 0 0| i o

(m- .

vl _|Clearing Member 153 10532160 0 0| 10532160 0.36 10532 160 [+ 10532150 0.36| 0 0.36) 10532160 aj a [i]

[m- I

vi) | Oualified Foreign investor - Individual a 1] [+] [ o o 0 4] a 0 o 1] 0| o [ 1] 1]

|m- | Overssas Depasitories [holding DRs)

wil] | [balancing figure| 1] a o 0 a 1] 0 ke a 0| [a] o 0 [ o a

(m-

viil) |Unelaimed Susp Alc a o ] o) Q ] ] 0 0 0| 1] 0 . o a a Q
Sub-TotallB){1) 691833 386479977 0 0 386479977 13.19 7 0] 386479977 13.19| o 13.19 [ O{NA MNA 3R63IE9980 Q| 1] 0
Total Public Sharehaolding 4‘
lllHBulH!ulH!lﬂ] 502001| 1148872378 a aj 1148972279 39.21( 1148972279 0] 1148872279 39.21 ol 39.21 o ojnN.A LY 1148882282 Q [1] [+]




Table IV - showing pattern of the Non P MNon Public 5k
Sharehelding
asa%
Share ing full
holding3|  MNumber of Voting Rights held in each class of No.of Shares ‘““":{”'““ Number of Locked in | Number of Shares pledged or
Securith i
No.of | No.offully | partly pald- N:::: -y l:mulate ecurities (i) srnderl\:Tg i shares (Xii) otherwise encumbered (Xill) Number of
Category & Name of the Shareholders share | paidup | upequity | bt ki) SIAAING | s s equity shares
PAN [il} underlying | shares held [vii | SCRR,195 convertable held In
1] helders |equity shares| shares held &% a percentage
p: Depository = fwsu+ui) TAsa% securities dematerialized
(i) held (iv) v of diluted
Receipts (vi) of (Including shiae Form (V)
(A+B4+C2) Warrants} (¥)
{vili) capital)
{xi={vli)+x)
asasof
Ho.of Voting Rights TU;:l::I ABC2 o
As a % of
Total No. (a) total Mao. (a) total shares
Class X* Class ¥ Total Shares
Vating held (b} held (b)
rights
1= /DR Holder
13} |Custodian/DH Holder 0 0 0 a O NA 0 [ 0] 0] o 0 OfM.& N [
Sub-Total(C){1) [ 0] 9 [ [T a [ [ [ q 0 ojm.A N.A 0
Employees Benefit Trust (Under SEBI
(Share based Employee Benefit)
| 2|Regulations, 2014
Employees Bemnefit Trust [Under SEBI
(Share based Employes Benefit)
{2} |Regulations, 2014 0 0 0 a a 0 0 i i a 0f 0 ol [T M o
Employees Benefit Trust/Employee
Welfare Trust under SEBI (Share based
Employes Benefits and Sweat equity)

b) |Regulations, 2021 0 0 0 o a 0 0j i a a 0| 0 o|N.A M.A n
Sub-Total[C)(2) [} 0j 0 [] [i] [i] ] 0] 0j [i] 0| 0[N.A N.& [
Total Non-Promater-Non Public
shareholding |C)={C){1}+{C](2} ] 1] ] 0 ] 0| 0] 0 0 5] 0| ofjn.A N.A 0

*¥ = Equity




Annexure B
Table Vi-Statement Showing foreign Ownership limits

Benpos Date Board approved limits Limits Utilized

As on shareholding date

As on the end of previous 1st quarter

As on the end of previous 2nd quarter
As on the end of previous 3rd quarter
As on the end of previous 4th quarter

Note to company :- Where ever Dates and limits not shown in above table (i.e Appearing as Blank cells but not zeros),
It indicates that Either Company has not provided the Foreign Ownership data to R.T.A till now / This sheet is not applicable to the company as informed by company earlier



Major shareholders

(a) Our major shareholders as of 2 years, 1 year, 10 days prior to the date of the Information
Memorandum is as below:

Sr. Name Number of Equity % of total capital
No. Shares held
1. | NMDC Limited 110,000 100.00
Total 110,000 100.00

(b) Our major shareholders as on date of the Information Memorandum is as below:

Sr. Name Number of Equity % of total capital

No. Shares held

1. LICI ANNUITY NON-PAR 41,48,85,432 14.16
Total

As on date, our Company has 6,92,092 shareholders

Other Confirmations

a.

b.

None of our Directors or KMPs hold any Equity Shares in our Company

As on the date of this Information Memorandum, there are no outstanding warrants, options or rights to
convert debentures, loans or other instruments into Equity Shares.

Except, the allotment of the Equity Shares pursuant to the Scheme, no Equity Shares have been issued
pursuant to a scheme approved under Sections 391-394 of the Companies Act, 1956 or Sections 230 to
232 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Our Company has not had an employee stock option scheme since incorporation.
Our Company has not issued any Equity Shares out of revaluation reserves.

Our Company, our Directors and our Promoter have not entered into any buy-back, standby or similar
arrangements to purchase Equity Shares from any person.

There shall be only one denomination of Equity Shares, subject to applicable regulations and our
Company shall comply with such disclosure and accounting norms, specified by SEBI from time to
time.

Except as provided above in the shareholding pattern provided above, as on the date of this Information
Memorandum, none of the Equity Shares held by our Promoters are pledged.
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SECTION V - ABOUT OUR COMPANY INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

The information presented in this section has been obtained from CRISIL’s report. You should read the following summary
together with the “Risk Factors” on page 14 and the more detailed information about us and our financial results included
elsewhere in this Information Memorandum.

Introduction

Steel - most widely used metal globally

Steel is the most common metal alloy in the world. In its simplest form, it consists of iron and carbon with carbon varying
between 0.02% to 1.7% by weight. Carbon is the most cost-effective material to make an alloy with iron, but other alloys can also
be used along with carbon to give steel certain properties. The flexibility to adjust its composition and customise its properties
makes steel a versatile material. Thus, steel serves a variety of purposes from manufacturing paper-clips and razor blades to
bridges, beams and columns for skyscrapers.

Steel forms the backbone of all industries, and is one of the basic ingredients for a country's growth and development.

Traditionally, the steel industry's fortunes have been linked to the economic cycle of a country. Steel is also the most commonly
traded commodity across the globe.

Properties of steel

Properties Description

It is a shiny metal with an attractive finish, and is used in architecture, cutlery and various

Lustre '
appliances.
Conductivity It is useful in transfer of heat and electricity.

It can be rolled into thin sheets, rods, and bar or beams and used in roofing, buildings or

2 forged into different shapes like gears and tools.

It can be stretched and drawn out into thin wires (wire fences) or pressed into various

Ductility shapes (e.g. auto body panels).
Strength- It i; a strong metal, resistarﬁ to breakage (used in building frames, security doors, trains,
* ships). The strongest steel is the one with the most carbon.
. As it 15 a durable and long-lasting matenal, it is used to construct buildings, rail lines, and
Durability

bridges._ Its resistance to wear makes it ideal for machines and equipment.

Stainless steel contains chromium, nickel and molybdenum that make it rust-resistant. It
Alloying is used in kitchens. Manganese is added to steel to increase its toughness. while steel rods
have tungsten and cobalt to keep them hard, even when heated.

Steel can also be coated with substances such as tin, plastics, paint, zinc, etc. A coating

Coatin . . - .
g of zinc makes it resistance to corrosion.

Source: CRISIL Research
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Steel applications

Steel is the most widely used and most widely recycled metal on earth. Steel, in its various forms and alloys, offers different
properties which help to meet a wide range of applications. Manufacturers also use it extensively for various purposes because
of its strength and low cost of production. Its usage ranges from industry applications to everyday tools and materials. It is used in
power transmission towers, natural gas pipelines, machine tools, military weapons, etc.

Applications of steel

Applications Description

Most of the steel produced is used in the construction industry as its strength is
Construction very helpful in construction of sustainable steel structures at a low price. It can be
alloyed differently to meet the requirements of different environments.

Engineered steels are wrought steels that are designed to have certain levels of
elasticity, strength, ductility and corrosion resistance. It is mostly used in the

Transport transport sector in the construction of car bodies, engine components, wheels,
axles, trucks, transmission equipment, trains, rails, ships, anchor chains, aircraft
undercarriages, and jet engine components.

All the segments of energy sector need steel for the construction of basic
infrastructure. Steel is used to extract natural resources which are the main

Sl sources of energy and it is also used to transport the same. For instance, it is
used in pipelines, earth-moving and guarrying equipment, cranes and fork-lifts.
Steel packaging protects goods from water, sun and light exposure, and it is fully

Packaging recyclable. Steel packaging products are generally made from low-carbon cold-

rolled sheet and are are surface finished. It is mostly used in manufacturing food
and beverage containers.

Steel is used to make household appliances like fridge, air-conditioners, washing
Appliances and industry machines, microwave, etc. It is also used to make industnal products such as farm
vehicles and tools, storage tanks, structures, etc.

Source: CRISIL Research

Types of steel
Carbon steel - commonly produced variant of steel

Based on its composition, steel is classified into plain carbon steel and alloy steel.

Carbon steel

Carbon steel is also known as non-alloy steel. It is composed of iron and carbon and is the most commonly produced variant of
steel (90% of global steel output). It contains carbon in varying proportions (up to 1.7%) along with manganese (up to 0.9%) and

silicon (up to 0.3%). A change in the composition of carbon affects the properties of carbon steel. Mild steel is the most widely
used variety of steel. These steels, by definition, do not contain any alloying element in specified proportions.

Categories of carbon steel

Type of Steel Carbon Percentage Properties Uses
Low carbon (mild steel) 0.07-0.25 Easily cold worked Car bodies

Rails and Rail
Medium Carbon 0.25-0.50 Wear resistant products: couplings,

crank shafts, axles,
gears, forgings
Cutting tools, Railway
lines

High Carbon (carbon tool
stesl)

Cast iron 2538 Easy to cast but brittle Pistons and cylinders
GP: Galvanised plains; GC: Galvanised corrogated; TMBP: Tin mill black plates; El: Elec. sheets

Source: CRISIL Research

08512 Strong and wear resistant
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Alloy steel

Steel that is produced

different applications.

with one or more elements in a specified proportions to impart specific physical, mechanical, metallurgical
and electrical properties is known as alloy steel. Common elements used to make alloys include manganese, silicon, nickel, lead,
copper, chromium, tungsten, molybdenum, niobium and vanadium. Alloy steel comes in different grades, which have varying
proportions of carbon and other elements. These elements determine the property of steel. Different types of alloy steel have
For instance, hard abrasion-resistant steel is used to make industrial tools, heat-resistant steel is used in
high-temperature applications, and fatigue-resistant steel is meant for mechanical applications. Although this category consists of
high-value steel alloys, volumes are very low in the segment compared with those of carbon-steel products.

Properties added to steel by alloying elements

Alloying element
Cobalt

Manganese
Molybdenum

Mickel and chromium
Titanium

Tungsten

Vanadium

Properties given to steel Uses

High magnetic permeability Magnets

Strong and hard Heawy duty railway crossings
Maintain high strength at high High speed drill tips
temperature

Resists corrosion Surgical instruments
Increased hardness and tensile High speed tool steels,
strength permanent magnets

High melting temperature, tough Cutting and drilling tools

Strong , hard Tools

Source: CRISIL Research

The most widely used alloy steel is stainless steel. It is a corrosion-resistant metal and has chromium and nickel as major alloying

elements.

(a) Stainless steel: It essentially contains chromium (normally more than 10.5% with/without nickel or other alloying elements).
stainless steel resists staining/corrosion and maintains strength at high temperatures. It is used widely in
utensils, architecture and in industrial applications, namely, automotive and food processing products, as well as in medical and

As the name implies,

health equipment.

Commonly used grades of stainless steel (SS) are:

Applications

Type 304

Type 316

Type 410

Type 430

Type 201/202

Description

Chrome-nickel {austenitic) S35, accounting for more than half of 35
produced in the world. 18:8 55 is used for utensils.

Chrome-nickel {austenitic) SS containing 2-3 per cent molybdenum,
intended for specific industial use.

Flain chromium (martensitic) S5 to provide exceptional strength. It is a
low-cost, heat-treatable grade suitable for non-corrosive applications.

Plain chrome (Ferritic) S5, which offers general-purpose corrosion
resistance. It is often used in decorative applications.

Low nickel (austenitic) S5 which contains 2-5 per cent nickel. It is used
as a cheaper substitute of Type 304 grade for production of utensils.

Source: CRISIL Research

(b) Silicon-electrical steel: It usually contains 0.6-6.0% silicon and exhibits certain magnetic properties that makes it suitable for
use in transformers, power generators, and electric motors. It is normally supplied in two categories:

Applications

CRGO

CRMNO/CRNGO

Categories of silicon-electrical steel

Description

Cold rolled grain-oriented silicon-electrical steel sheets/strips. It is
normally used in transformers and generators.

Cold rolled non-grain oriented silicon-electrical steel sheets/strips. It is
normally used in rotating machines such as electric motors.
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Sourcing: CRISIL Research

¢) High speed steel: Alloy steel containing tungsten, vanadium, chromium, cobalt and other metals. Depending upon the
composition, it is classified as cobalt grade and non-cobalt grade. It is used for manufacturing cutting tools.

Types of steel products

Products obtained on hot rolling/forging of semi-finished steel (blooms/billets/slabs) from both carbon and alloy steel can

be broadly classified as long products and flat products.

a) Flat products (flat rolled products)

Flat products are produced from slabs/thin slabs in rolling mills using flat rolls. Flat products comprise hot rolled (HR), cold rolled
(CR) strips and coated products. Hot rolled flat products are produced by re-rolling of slabs/thin slabs at high temperatures (above
1,000 degree C) in plate mills or in hot strip mills. CR strips are produced by cold rolling of HR strips in cold rolling mills
(normally at room temperature). CR strips/sheets are characterised by lower thickness, better/bright finish, closer dimensional

tolerance and specific mechanical/metallurgical properties. The different types of flat products are:

Applications

Plate

Sheet

Strips

Description

A thick flat finished product of width +500 mm and thickness +5 mm, which are
supplied in cut/straight length. Plates are normally produced/supplied in hot rolled
condition with or without specific heat treatments.

Thin flat finished steel products of width +500 mm, thickness -5 mm, supplied in
cut/straight length. Sheets are produced/ supplied in hot rolled /cold rolled/coated
condition and accordingly, known as HR sheets, CR sheets or coated sheets.

Hot/cold/coated flat rolled products supplied in regularly wound coils of super imposed
layers. Accordingly, known as HR strips or CR strips or coated strips. Depending
upon the width, strips are sub-classified as wide strip or narrow strip. Wide strips are
of 600 mm and above widths and narrmow strips are of less than 600 mm widths. They
are also known as coils in India and wide coils in Europe. Accordingly, the terms HR
coils/wide coils or CR coils/ wide coils, etc are commonly used.

Source: CRISIL Research

Coated flat products: These are CR products coated with metals or organic chemicals:

Coated flat products

Applications
Galvanised plain/

corrugated (GP/GC)
sheets

Tinplate

Tin free steel

Colour coated
products

Galfan alloy
coated sheets

Galvalume alloy
coated sheets

Description

GP/GC are CR sheets/Strips coated with zinc metal. The process is known as
galvanising. GC sheets are made by corrugating GP sheets in a corrugating machine.
GP/GC sheets are mainly used for roofing, panelling, automaobile bodies and
trunks/boxes.

TMBP (tin mill black plate} coated with tin metal. Used for manufacturing containers.

TMBP sheet/strips coated with chromium metal and chromium oxide.

CR/ galvanised steel sheets/strips are often coated with PVC/ plastics or any other
organic material. This process is called colour coating and is used to manufacture
furniture, auto bodies, roofing, panelling, etc.

These are CR sheets/strips coated with a zinc-aluminium alloy comprising 95 per
cent zinc and 5 per cent aluminium. Uses are similar to GP/GC sheets but they have
better life span and superior corrosion properties.

These are CR sheets/ strips coated with an alloy comprising around 45 per cent
aluminium and 45 per cent zinc with nominal amount of silicon. Uses are similar to
that of GP/GC sheets but they have better life and much better high temperature
performance.

Source: CRISIL Research
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b) Long products

Finished steel products are normally produced by hot rolling/forging of bloom/billets/pencil ingots into useable shape/sizes. These
are normally supplied in straight length/cut length except wire rods, which are supplied in irregularly wound coils. The different
types of long products are:

Long products

Applications Description

Bars and rods are normally obtained by hot rolling/forging of billets/ blooms.
These include rounds, flats (flat bars), squares, hexagons, octagons, which find
direct use in a wide variety of products in engineering and agricultural,
household, furniture sectors, etc with/without further processing.

Bar & rods

CTD (cold-worked twisted and deformed)/ TMT (thermo mechanically treated)
bar and rods are hot rolled round bars/rods with indentations (marks)/ribs
normally supplied in straight length or in folded bundles. Used in civil
construction.

CTDITMT

Hot rolled plain bar/rods (i.e without indentation) in coil form normally used to

Wire rod produce steel wires and, and, at times, steel bars.

Hot rolled structural sections obtained by hot rolling of blooms/billets. These

Angles, shapes include angles, channels, girders, joist, | beams, H beams, etc used in

and section civil/mechanical construction.
. Hot rolled rail sections obtained upon hot rolling of blooms/billets. Used in
Rails - . .
railways/tramways on which trainstrams travel.
Wi Wires are produced by cold drawing of wire rod through a die. These are
res normally supplied in coils.
Bright bars There are cold drawn/ ground/ peeled plain bars produced from hot rolled plain

bars/wire rods.

Source: CRISIL Research

Evolution of steel industry
Humble beginnings: Pre-liberalisation scenario

The Indian steel industry is over 143 years old. The first steel plant was set up by the Iron Work Company at Kulti in West Bengal
in 1870. However, large-scale production commenced only in 1907 when the Tata Iron and Steel Company (currently Tata Steel)
set up its steel plant at Jamshedpur, Jharkhand. This plant commenced production of iron in 1911 and steel in 1913.

Economic self-reliance, balanced regional development led to regulation of steel and user industries

Post Independence, the development of core industries like steel was seen as a means to achieve economic self-reliance. This led
to the introduction of the freight equalisation scheme to facilitate balanced regional development. The scheme ensured uniform
landed price for major input materials for user industries in different parts of India by fixing the ex-factory prices of goods and
controlling railway freight.

Excessive regulations lowered domestic productivity vis-a-vis global standards

Public sector units provided employment opportunities for skilled labour and were committed to social development. As user
industries (construction, automobile, etc.) were highly regulated, market forces could not encourage competition.

Liberalisation improved competition and encouraged private participation

The important policy measures undertaken during this period for the growth and development of the Indian iron and steel industry

were as follows:

e In the new industrial policy announced in July 1991, iron and steel industry among others, was removed from the list of
industries reserved for the public sector and also exempted from the provisions of compulsory licensing under the Industries
(Development and Regulation) Act, 1951.

e The industry was included in the list of 'high priority' industries for automatic approval of foreign equity investment up to
51%. The limit, since then, has been increased to 100%.

e Pricing and distribution of steel was de-regulated from January 1992. However, it was ensured that requirements of certain
essential sectors were met.

e Import duty for the iron and steel industry was lowered. Exports were also freely allowed. Import duty on capital goods was
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reduced from 55% to 25%. Duties on raw materials used in steel production were reduced. These measures brought down
capital costs and production costs of steel plants.

e  Withdrawal of the freight equalisation scheme in January 1992 and levy on account of Steel Development Fund from April
1994, provided greater flexibility to large producers to respond to market forces.

These changes sowed the seeds of competition among players, and the focus shifted towards reducing production and
transportation costs. Huge investments were made in the industry.

Demand
Global

Global demand to fall by 5-6% in fiscal 2023 on inflation induced recessionary headwinds

Demand is set to degrow by 5-6% in current fiscal as Chinese demand takes a blow while western developed regions also
decelerate

After an impressive 9% growth in steel demand in 2019, China witnessed its demand growth fall by ~5% in 2021 as it cut its
manufacturing volume significantly in order to curb environmental emissions during the Winter Olympics. Slowdown in the
property segment coupled with de-growth in automobile production due to chip shortage has been the key reason for weak
demand in China on a high base of last year. Global steel consumption excluding China (world ex-China) fell 10% in 2020 under
the pandemic impact and is estimated to have grown 5% in 2021 with optical recovery seen on a low base of the previous year
even as pick-up in global demand is low. Global demand remained below 2019 level in 2021.

CRISIL foresees further de-growth in China’s steel demand in 2022 by 5-7%, given that the first half has already been weak due
to winter production cuts, surge in covidl9 cases and associated localised lockdowns under zero-covid policy, and struggling
housing and real-estate sector. Despite restrictions being lifted and production curbs being relaxed, China's domestic demand
continues to falter. Property market continues to remain a key concern as consumer confidence is low since Evergrande debt
default. Subsequently, majority of transactions in real estate market are speculative in nature and low 'virgin' demand is
observed. Moreover, China’s latest five-year plan marks a shift away from its earlier quantitative focus towards economic
development, thereby indicating a gradual slowdown in its steel demand in the medium term. Global demand excluding China is
also expected to fall by 4-6% India remains the only major consumer with healthy growth expected in 2022 at 8-10%. All other
major economies are showing sign of lethargy with Russia-Ukraine war impacting their cost structures and rising inflation
impacting demand sentiments.

Total world crude steel production was 1,950.5 million tonne (MT) in 2021, a 3.8% increase from 2020 with China showing a 3%
fall in production as it curbed production to reduce carbon footprint. Production is set to see it's first decline in the past 5-years to
~1860-1880 MT in 2022. China has already charted a 6% decline in output in SMFY22.

Global crude steel production reached 1,864.0 MT in 2020, down by 0.9% compared with 2019. Asia produced 1,374 MT of
crude steel in 2020, an increase of 1.5% compared with 2019. China’s crude steel production in 2020 reached 1,053 MT, up by
5.2% on 2019. China’s share of global crude steel production increased from 53.3% in 2019 to 56.5% in 2020. India’s crude steel
production for 2020 was 99.6 MT, down by 10.6% on 2019. Japan produced 83.2 MT in 2020, down 16.2% on 2019. South Korea
produced 67.1 MT, down 6.0%.

Outlook on global steel demand
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Source: World Steel Association, CRISIL Research

Following are some risks to CRISIL’s demand forecast:
e Covid-19 resurgence across the globe (especially the recent surge in cases in China)

e Impact of the Russia-Ukraine conflict on global trade and prices
e Chinese imposition of supply cuts to curb environmental pollution and become carbon neutral by 2060
e  Global protectionism and escalating trade tensions

e  Weather disruptions for steel and raw materials

Break-up of steel consumption (2021)

World steel consumption breakup World steel consumption breakup
(country-wise) (segment-wise)
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Source: World Steel Association

Steel demand in China to fall by over 5% in 2022

While fiscal and monetary stimulus released in 2020 continued to generate some upward momentum in China’s steel demand in
early 2021, things slowed in the second half of the year. Accordingly, China's steel consumption saw a degrowth of 5% in 2021.
In 2022, CRISIL expects it to further fall 0-2%, given that China’s latest five-year plan marks a shift away from its earlier
quantitative focus towards economic development and recent the surge in Covid-19 cases has dampened already weak demand
prospects.

Over the medium term (2020-2025), CRISIL expects steel demand to see a fall of 1-3% in China. These estimates come with
major downside bias given steel consumption per capita is already high in the country and main consuming segment, infra and
property market, remains under pressure. However, any major government intervention to stoke domestic demand can throw a
spanner in this demand trajectory.

China's capacity cuts and production caps are one of the key structural reasons that could keep steel prices higher than decadal
averages.

For example, in 2015, China released its five-year plan with the aim to cut 150 MT of steel supply in order to check environmental
emissions. This was followed by a capacity replacement programme with BF/BOF(Blast Furnace-Blast Oxygen Furnace) units
being swapped for EAF/IF plants (Electric Arc Furnace / Induction Furnace) - which are more environmental friendly and use
scrap. Winter production cuts to reduce air pollution in 2019 impacted 30% of China’s capacity. After a few policies with only
short- and medium-term impacts, China released its carbon neutral policy in early 2021, which is expected to change the steel
manufacturing process. Production curbs in Tangshan were aimed at lowering carbon emissions and removal of export rebates,
and recent announcements of stricter capacity swap programmes are aimed towards achieving this goal and play a major role in
the recent volatility in steel prices. Hence, CRISIL foresees steel supply in China to remain disciplined and, therefore, limit any
major price correction going ahead. However, June 2022 has seen China's spot prices drop below $700/tonne as demand
sentiments around the world look bleak in a situation where China has emerged from winter-Olympics production curbs and
covid19 restrictions with higher production run-rate. Consequently, China is again active in the export market, offering
significantly lower prices on volumes to southeast Asian countries. Hence, China will continue to play a key role in the pricing
scenario in the global market. Price have fallen below $600/tonne levels in August 2022 and have stabilised in the $575-625/tonne
range.

China, which constitutes 55% of global steel demand, saw a V-shaped recovery right after a quarter. It saw a robust 9% on-year
growth in 2020, aided by machinery and construction. Crude steel production growth was also healthy at 5%. On balance, it led to
global steel production registering flat growth in 2020.
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Moderate demand growth expected for the US steel industry

Steel demand growth slumped by 18% in 2020 amid the pandemic when the US steel industry experienced its worst slump in
demand in decades and was followed by optical recovery of 21% in 2021 on the back of massive stimulus package. However, with
slowdown in the US economy, and rising inflation, we foresee steel demand growth in 2022 to be weak at 1-2%.

Russia-Ukraine conflict to impact the EU steel demand adversely in 2022

2020 saw steel demand fall by 11% in the European Union (EU) as the economy grappled with the pandemic. While demand saw
some optical recovery in 2021 (8-10% on-year demand growth), the Russia-Ukraine conflict and diversion of funds from the EU
to defence and refugee aids are expected to lead to weakening of steel demand in the EU. Output from the country has already
been impacted on demand destruction from the conflict. Going ahead, CRISIL expects the EU steel industry to fall by 2-4% in
2022 with waning momentum in key steel sectors, primarily automobile and capital goods.

Japan to witness stagnant steel demand growth in the medium term
Japan accounts for 4% of global steel consumption. In 2020, its steel demand fell by 17% after declining 3% in 2019. A recovery

of ~9% was observed in 2021. However, with its bleak prospects in global market and already high steel intensity, demand is
expected to show sluggish growth of 1-2% in 2022.

Steel demand growth of major world economies over past seven years

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 201
China 5% 1% 14% 8% 9% 9% 5%
uUs 0% 5% 6% 3% 2% 8% 21%
EU (includes UK) 3% 2% 4% 4% 7% 1% 1T%
Japan 7% 1% 4% 2% 3% AT% 9%
India 6% 4% 6% 8% 6% 3% 19%

Source: World Steel Association

Methodology to forecast global steel demand

Global steel demand
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Domestic
Steel demand estimated to grow by 8-10% led by infra and housing segments

Steel demand in India is expected to see some moderation with 6-8% growth charted for fiscal 2023 as opposed to 11.4% growth
seen in fiscal 2022.
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Fiscal 2022 saw robust growth of 11.4% on account of low-base effect and quick domestic recovery post second wave of covid19
witnessed in first quarter of fiscal 2022. However, with the landfall of Russia-Ukraine war in last quarter, prices of coking coal,
iron ore, pig iron and steel rallied to reach new all-time highs hurting domestic demand. Consequently, export volumes surged.

The effect of elevated prices directly impacted the procurement decisions among end-use segments in first quarter of fiscal
2023. However, CRISIL forecasts a recovery coming in strong in remaining months of fiscal 2023 as prices correct swiftly on
government intervention of culling exports of finished steel. Further, post-monsoon demand revival and festive season will aid in
bringing total demand growth for the fiscal. SMFY23 demand growth stands at ~11% with flat segment leading the growth .
Going ahead, in H2FY23, CRISIL forecasts some sequential deceleration and also high-base impact of last fiscal (when pent-up
demand kicked in post slowdown in second-wave of covid19) bringing the growth rate for the entire fiscal to 8-10%.

e Long steel segment to augur well on infra push and housing executions as elections approach.

e Flat to see relief as semi-conductor shortage steadily alleviates. Further, healthy urban housing progress is ensuring and

continue to push flat demand (in applications like railings, doors, staircases and outdoor construction)

Growth by end-use segments: The healthy domestic demand growth projected this fiscal is expected to be driven by a 10-12% rise
in infrastructure, a decent 6-8% rise in housing driven by government housing construction and private demand.

Growth by steel type: Both segment have been on a growth path this fiscal. However, SMFY23 has seen higher traction in flat
steel segment than long steel segment, as flat steel procurement has seen pent-up offtake after sharp price corrections observed
after export duty imposition. Meanwhile, long steel segment has not seen such a track and extended monsoon has been weighing
down on construction activity. In line with this, long segment has seen 7.5% growth on-year in SMFY23, and the same for the flat
segment has been ~16%.

Review: After printing stellar growth of 8-9% in FY18 and FY19, demand momentum fizzled out in FY20 to 1.4% growth. Fiscal
2021 saw a 5% contraction in demand as industrial and economic activity came to a screeching halt in wake of the covid19
pandemic making landfall in Q1. However, demand and production charted a v-shaped recovery limiting the fall in demand for the
fiscal to only 5%. The fall in long and non-alloyed segment was relatively lower than the same for alloyed and flat segments
owing to higher sensitivity they hold to consumer demand sentiments.

Year-wise steel demand growth trend
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Construction to continue to dominate steel end-use mix

Steel demand end-use mix

Share of steel  Growth in Growth in  Growth in

consumption FY21E FY22E FY23P
Building & construction 35-40% (4-6)% 11-13% 6-8%
Infrastructure 30-35% (3-4)% 12-14% 10-12%
Automaotive 7-9% (9-11)% 9-11% 15-17%

Source: CRISIL Research

Steel demand from building and construction (B&C) accounts for 35-40% of the total steel demand. While in the near term B&C
demand shall be weak, with affordable housing and rural housing being the saviours, in medium term, housing market shall
witness some soft revival, led by commercialisation of tier III/V cities. Constructing with exorbitant steel prices, demand
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weakened and many construction projects being delayed in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2022.
Rural housing

To achieve the objective of the Housing for All by 2022 mission, the government launched a restructured rural housing scheme,
namely Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana-Gramin (PMAY-G), in November 2016, with the target of constructing 29.5 million houses
with basic amenities by 2022. As of September 2022, a total of ~23.8 million units have been sanctioned, of which construction of
~19.9 million houses has been completed (~84% completion rate) As many as ~4.0 million units are under construction. Almost
3.4 million units were constructed in fiscal 2021 and ~4.2 million in fiscal 2022 (~60% and ~25% higher on-year, respectively). In
fiscal 2021, the scheme gained traction on the back of mass exodus of labourers to their native places, which prompted them to
build their own houses during the lockdown. Healthy rabi productivity; increase in crop procurement; and government fund
allocation to the Mahatma Gandhi National Rural Employment Guarantee Act (MGNREGA) also helped. In first half of this
fiscal, construction picked up despite the seasonal weakness in the second quarter due to pent-up demand of April-June as housing
construction was delayed due to high cost of construction during the period.

Under the Phase-I of the PMAY-G during fiscals 2017-2019, the government had set a target to construct 10 million rural
households and it maanged to meet about 80% of it. Under the Phase-1I, 19.5 million houses were targeted to be built over fiscals
2020-22. Despite a higher number of under-construction units, fund release towards the scheme is expected to moderate leading to
slowdown in execution this fiscal 2023 after higher execution in the past two consecutive fiscals. Financial sanctioning of the
houses remains a key monitorable. The slow pace is attributable to factors such as sticky food inflation; saturation of eligible
beneficiaries from the SC and ST category; slow pace of working of remand module; and delay in setting targets for districts.
After fiscal 2023, CRISIL forecasts a pickup in funding under the PMAY-G scheme before elections in fiscal 2024. Rural housing
will also find traction if agricultural production is good, reservoir levels are healthy and farm income remains buoyant.

Progress in Rural Housing

Source: MOHUA, CRISIL Research

Urban housing

The Pradhan Mantri Awas Yojana-Urban (PMAY-U) is an affordable housing scheme under implementation from 2015. It seeks
to achieve the objective of Housing for All by 2022. The scheme comprises four components: (i) in-situ rehabilitation of existing
slum dwellers (using the existing land under slums to provide houses to slum dwellers) through private participation; (ii) credit-
linked subsidy scheme (CLSS) for economically weaker sections (EWS), lower-income groups (LIG) and middle-income groups
(MIG); (iii) affordable housing partnership with States/UTs/Cities including private sector and industries and (iv) subsidy for
beneficiary-led individual house construction. So far, 4,424 cities have been covered under PMAY-U. The housing shortage is
expected to reach 2 crore by 2022. It was estimated that about 56% of this shortage falls in EWS, 40% in LIG, and the balance 4%
in the middle and higher income groups. The ministry estimates the present demand for housing at around 1 crore.

The PMAY-U programme witnessed healthy construction in fiscals 2019 and 2020, but lost momentum in fiscal 2021 as urban
construction was adversely impacted by pandemic-led lockdown. While ~1.51 million and ~1.44 million units were constructed in
fiscals 2019 and 2020, respectively, ~1.26 million were constructed in fiscal 2021 despite the pandemic as construction pace was
healthy in the second half. In fiscal 2022, construction momentum further slowed down to ~1.03 million units due to weak
execution in the second quarter. However, fast-paced and steady execution during fiscals 2019-2020 and recovery in construction
pace in the second half of fiscal 2021 and fiscal 2022 reflects the government's intent to achieve the housing for all objective.
While most of the targeted houses have been sanctioned (~12.1 million houses sanctioned as of August 2022), over ~6 million
houses have already been completed (~50%). Another ~4 million are under various stages of construction as of August 2022. A
significant pickup in houses approved, recovery in the urban affordable housing segment, and a steady release of installments
indicate that steel demand from the segment is expected to maintain the momentum over the near term.
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The budgetary allocation towards the scheme for fiscal 2023 is Rs 28,000 crore, a 3% increase over the actual expenditure in fiscal
2021 (Rs 20,990 crore). The higher allocation is expected to drive steel demand from the segment. The ministry estimates the
demand for housing at ~11.3 million units. The revision of total housing shortage in urban areas to 11.3 million from a previous
estimate of 20 million will lead to slower demand after this fiscal, as the government is on track to complete the revised target by
2024.

Progress in urban housing

Source: MOHUA, CRISIL Research

Over the past two fiscals, the pace of approval and completion by the Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs has picked up
significantly (see the figure below), leading to healthy steel demand growth from the urban housing segment. Slowdown in
financial clearance in the first half of fiscal 2021 was offset by traction in sanctioning and execution in the latter half as the
government provided additional funding to the scheme. However, construction momentum slowed in the first quarter of fiscal
2022, as the second pandemic wave hit urban construction. With afflictions ebbing, demand picked up because of pent-up demand
and pre-monsoon construction demand. However, it again tapered off during the monsoon season. Construction sharply improved
in the third quarter of fiscal 2022, but grounding and sanctioning momentum dropped as the government funding got sluggish.
Further, in the first quarter of this fiscal, construction, grounding and sanctioning momentum picked up, even though sanctioning
remained modest as approved units have already surpassed the scheme target of 11.2 million units.

Trend in houses approved by the Ministry of Housing and Urban Affairs
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For the next five years, steel demand from the building and construction segment is expected to grow at a CAGR of 4-6%, driven
by:
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Government’s focus towards execution of affordable housing
Robust rural housing demand on the backdrop of government's continued focus on rural development, three consecutive good
monsoons, higher minimum support prices (MSP)

e Urban housing demand is also expected to improve owing to increased commercialization of tier III and tier IV cities, led by
better infrastructure connectivity.

e Rising steel intensity

Infrastructure segment to lead steel demand

Steel demand from the infrastructure sector (including railways) comprises 25-30% of the country’s steel demand. Within
infrastructure space, roads and highways, along with railways (including metros) segment, account for 50-60% of steel demand.
Other significant contributors include irrigation and dams, along with water supply and sanitation.

The union government has continued its focus on the infrastructure segment, and has moderately increased its budget for roads -
NHAI & PMGSY ~1% and 3% each in fiscal 2023 budget over revised estimates of fiscal 2022 (~21% higher than fiscal 2021
actuals). This, along with a significant increase in capital expenditure by state governments, is expected to keep infrastructure
demand momentum healthy. Further, fiscal 2023BE gross budgetary support has been raised to Rs 1.87 lakh crore, highest-ever
allocation to the ministry with a robust growth of ~8% and ~1% over fiscal 2022BE and fiscal 2022RE, respectively.

Steel demand growth from infrastructure space has risen by 6-7% over past five years, primarily driven by healthy growth from
national-highways construction as well as steady investments in railways (dedicated freight corridors, railway electrification, and
slew of metro projects across cities).

Gross budgetary support to the railways sector in fiscal 2022RE is ~9% higher than budgeted; however, the budget for fiscal 2023
is ~14% higher than fiscal 2022BE as well as fiscal 2022RE, with the highest-ever allocation of Rs 2.45 trillion, which included
Rs 1.37 trillion from budgetary support and the rest from internal resources.

Rs 19,000 crore has been allocated for rural road construction under Pradhan Mantri Gram Sadak Yojana (PMGSY) in fiscal 2023
budget. This is a ~27% increase from the allocation of Rs 15,000 crore done in the previous budget, and a ~36% increase over the
revised estimate of fiscal 21 of Rs 14,000 crore.

Growth from roads and bridges is likely to be driven by the Bharatmala scheme, under which the government plans to construct
83,000 km of national highways in two phases. Additionally, given the low penetration of surfaced roads across key states, the
state governments are expected to increase their budgetary allocations under roads and bridges.

Steel consumption under water supply and sanitation witnessed moderately healthy growth in the past few years, mainly driven by
sanitation projects such as Swachh Bharat Mission. The government’s vision to ensure safe piped drinking water to all households
through Jal Jeevan Mission is expected to drive healthy growth in investments and potentially generate 11-13 million tonne of
potential steel demand.

Urban infra will be driven by metro rail construction as well as water supply and sanitation segments. Addition of new metro lines
in several tier II cities, such as Bhopal, Patna, and Indore, will drive demand from the segment.

The irrigation segment is likely to see more investments in central, south and east, where irrigation remains low. We have already
seen large projects in Telangana and Andhra Pradesh under construction and we foresee other states scaling up irrigation
investments as well to address the issue of agricultural water shortage.

The Bharatmala project is expected to supersede the National Highways Development Project (NHDP) and envisages the
construction of 65,000 km of highways under the following categories: national corridor (North-South, East-West and Golden
Quadrilateral), economic corridor, inter-corridor roads, and feeder roads. As per the scheme, Phase I of BMP will include the
construction of 24,800 km, along with 10,000 km of the remaining road works of NHDP. As per the ministry, BMP, along with
the schemes currently undertaken, could require a total outlay of Rs 6.9 trillion. About ~10,237 km of roads was constructed in
fiscal 2020 against 10,855 km in fiscal 2019, while phase 2 is likely to be completed by fiscal 2024
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Long-term drivers intact
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Auto industry shows optical recovery; chip shortage and high steel prices to dampen demand prospects

Auto production saw ~10% growth in output in fiscal 2022 on low base. It did face headwinds in the form of chip shortage, but
low base of fiscal 2021 charted optical growth for the sector supply. Fiscal 2023 will see a similar growth as chip shortage

situation alleviates to some extent and consumer demand improves. Auto production is expected to rise by ~15-17% in fiscal
2023.

Looking at segment growth prospects within automotive sector —
e Commercial Vehicles — Bus, MHCV, and LCV demand is expected to grow by ~68-73%, ~17-22% and ~11-16%

respectively.

— Bus segment to grow on low-base at volumes are still 50% lower than pre-pandemic levels
Improving freight demand scenario is expected to result in higher profitability for fleet owner which will spur a
replacement demand cycle.
Further, private and single-fleet-owners (SFOs) segment to see sentiments improve in the fiscal driving fresh
procurement and replacement demand.
e Cars and UVs — Passenger vehicles volumes to see a 14-16% growth in volumes.

= Growth is expected to stem from pent-up demand in the segment from both private and commercial segments

Cost rationalization will come into effect going ahead as relatively lower interest rates and fuel efficiency will limit

growth in cost of ownership in a situation when income growth is expected to be decent
Wholesale volumes are expected to return back to fiscal 2019 levels in fiscal 2023.
e  Tractors — Domestic tractor sales is expected to see a lack-luster growth of 3-5% in fiscal 2023

= Dealer-level inventories are high as sales have been underperforming
A small chunk of active and farm-plying tractors are up for replacement
Farm profitability is under-pressure which directly impacts purchasing decision for the segment
e Two Wheelers — Segment volumes are expected to grow at a moderate pace with 10-11% expected rise

= Green shoots of growth to emerge as rising income and pentup demand in the segment kick-in post fiscal 2022

However, steel demand from the segment is expected to chart a downward trend in the long-run as electric vehicle (EV)

pickup in this segment is the highest with 2W-EV volumes expected to see >70% CAGR in FY23-FY27 period.
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Segment-wise production growth rates for automotive sector
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Flat steel to perform marginally better than long steel segment in FY23

Fiscal 2022 saw long steel perform better again as second-wave (delta variant), third-wave (omicron variant) and runaway prices
in commodities impacted consumer-driven segments which are dominant in flat segment. Meanwhile, executions on housing and
infra space kept pace with hiccups seen near the end of fiscal.

In the current fiscal, SMFY23 demand split shows a robust ~16% growth in flat segment while only 7% growth in long segment.

There are multiple factors driving this trend -

e Flat steel segment had a low-base for FY22 as demand was hit due to second-wave of covid. Meanwhile offtake in long
segment was still healthier during that period as mainly urban centres were hard-hit by the pandemic and rural construction
activity continued

e  Flat steel has seen significant price corrections from its rally in Jan-Apr'22, triggering pent-up demand
Flat steel share in construction and real estate has risen driven by urban infra and urban housing segments where flat
penetration is rising owing to outdoor structures and steel fittings.

e Finally, chip shortage issue that was rampant in last fiscal is seeing some alleviation and approaching festive season is
expected to see a healthy uptick in white good and consumer durable sales.

Review: Fiscal 2021 saw long steel perform better, as consumption-linked segments were severely impacted in the first half, while
construction and infra activities were the first to recover. While long-steel demand fell by 1%, flat steel saw an 11% decline. Alloy
steel demand saw an 8% fall compared with a 6% drop in non-alloy steel demand in fiscal 2021.

In fiscal 2020, alloy steel consumption declined ~21% on-year because of declining automobile production of 16-18%. Non-alloy
steel demand grew at a mere 3.3% in the same period. Moreover, long-steel consumption grew 5.5% in fiscal 2020, while flat-
steel demand declined 3%, primarily due to weak auto sales.

Flat & Long Split (FY22) Alloy & Non-Alloy Split (FY22)
Segment Demand (MT) Growth (Y-o-Y) Segment Demand (MT)  Growth (Y-o-Y)
Flat 486 12% MNon-Alloy 98 2 11%
Long 57.2 1% Alloy 4.5 17%

Note: Steel demand numbers are in million tonnes (MT)

Source: CRISIL Research
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Demand forecast methodology
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Supply & operating rates

India to add 30-35 MT of crude steel capacity over FY22-27, primarily through brownfield route, leading to the consolidation of
steel industry

Utilisation levels to dip in fiscal 2023 as export volumes are set to drop with new capacities coming online. Fiscal 2022 saw a rise
in steel exports as ~13.5 MT of finished steel is estimated to have been exported on weak demand in the domestic market and high
global realisation. Crude steel production growth was thereby healthy on a low base of the previous year as secondary steel
players ramped up production and new capacities came on-stream. CRISIL foresees utilisation levels to average at 76-78% this
fiscal

Several new capacities are expected to come on-stream over the next five years (90-95% of capex by large players), the pace of
which has been accelerated after blockbuster profitability in the past two quarters. We expect a net capacity addition of 35-37 MT
in this period, owing to healthy profitability and debt reduction seen in the past two fiscals. Share of large players is expected to
rise from to 65% in fiscal 2026 from 57% in fiscal 2021, driven by increased capex activities on healthy profitability and strong
revenue. Ramp-up of acquired assets will also help drive capacities up.

With the hit on exports, production of crude steel in expected to see marginal 0-2% growth in fiscal 2023. And with operating
capacity rising in fiscal 2023, utilization levels is expected to remain flat with downward bias. CRISIL Research expects
utilization level to range between 76-78% in this fiscal.

Capacity utilisation level for Indian steel market (million tonnes)
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Source: Joint Plant Committee, CRISIL Research

Prices
Long term outlook

Weak global demand, export duties on steel and correcting raw material prices to bend steel prices. China HR FOB prices correct
on weak domestic demand, EU prices correct as well but will maintain premium to China prices.

After an impressive rally last year, when global steel prices (China HR FOB) rose 76%, prices fell in January-February 2022 on
weak demand in China as it cut its manufacturing output in lieu of the Winter Olympics and Lunar New Year. However, the
recent rise in raw material prices, the Russia-Ukraine war, rising covid-19 cases have again led to an upward rally in prices.

Prices in regions like EU and US which have dependence on Russia for energy and steel products saw their spot prices touch
$1600 per tonne. Even China FOB prices went over $1000 per tonne as an after effect of the Russia-Ukraine war. However, since
mid-May, coking coal prices have started to correct massively and panic procurement of steel in global market has subsided.
Consequently prices have seen a rapid downward trend. China HR FOB prices are already below $700 per tonne level. Even EU
and US prices are hovering in the $800 per tonne level.

Overall, China HR FOB is expected to average at $700-750 per tonne in 2022 in our base-case scenario. EU steel prices however
will remain elevated and maintain a premium to China prices owing to higher energy costs that it is facing on restricting Russian
supplies of coal, gas and steel.

In CY 2023, while prices will correct further, they will continue to remain above the average of the last couple of years owing to a
green cycle in play, and thereby, average at $550-650 per tonne. In fact prices are currently hovering in the $550-600/ tonne range.
CRISIL expects some correction going ahead before witnessing recovery in the second half of CY2023.
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Domestic HR prices will follow global cues; long steel prices also rise on high input costs

The landfall of Russia-Ukraine war set the commodities market into a frenzy as regions that sourced material from these countries
went into panic mode and input costs and finished products prices surged. The surge in export realisations drove domestic prices
on a rally as well, hurting domestic demand at home. As a measure to reign in runaway prices, govt has imposed export duties on
iron ore, steel and pig iron; and removed import duty on coking coal.

This has shown rapid correction in prices, with HR prices falling ~Rs.10,000 per tonne in June 2022 alone. Correction in steel
prices was already on the cards as global prices started correcting. The duty revisions have alleviated the uncertainties linked to
global markets and set the tone for a quicker correction in the near term. As of mid-June, prices are already at Rs 62,000-64,000
per tonne. These corrections continued further into the months of July and August with August spot pricing averaging at
~Rs.56,760 per tonne. Despite these observed corrections CRISIL expects prices to average in Rs.59,000-61,000 for fiscal 2023
given prices in Q1 were significantly elevated and price drops will be much less pronounced going ahead.

Review
In fiscal 2019, domestic steel prices rose 13.7%, mirroring the trend in global steel prices, led by strong domestic demand and

rupee depreciation. Domestic HRC prices surged 20% in the first half of fiscal 2019 owing to elevated global prices and
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weakening rupee. However, prices started moderating in the third quarter of fiscal 2019 due to trend reversal in the
aforementioned factors. Flat steel prices rose 14% on-year in fiscal 2021 to average at Rs 44,396 per tonne. Long steel prices rose
12% on-year to average at Rs 45,175 per tonne in fiscal 2021. Fiscal 2022 saw steel prices surge on account of pent-up demand in
global market paired with logistics and supply-chain challenges and rising input cost. Flat steel prices rose a whopping 51% on-
year to average at Rs. 67,183. Meanwhile, long steel prices rose by 26% to average at Rs. 56,941.

Domestic HRC price outlook
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Domestic long product prices continue to rise in fiscal 2022 on sudden cost pressures and demand pull
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Global iron ore prices hold ground

In 2021, global iron ore prices crossed historic levels of $220 per tonne. Prices then started to correct on increased supply of ore in
market and falling demand as China’s cuts steel production massively. Through the end of December 2021, it was seen to rise up
and remain stable at $110-120 per tonne. Overall, iron ore prices in CY2021 averaged at $162 per tonne, and is expected to
moderate marginally to $115-135 per tonne in CY2022.

Review: The fatal Brumadinho tailings dam failure in January and Cyclone Veronica hitting the Pilbara coast in March severely
affected future iron ore supplies. The events put ~120 million tonne of global seaborne iron ore exports at risk. Additionally,
resumption in production from Vale’s 17 tailings dams and dikes in Brazil, which had failed stability condition declarations, has
compounded the current woes. These concerns led to a 35% surge in global iron ore price in 2019.
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In CY2018, iron ore prices declined ~2.8% on account of increased output from Vale, BHP, and Rio Tinto by 5%, 3%, and 2%,
respectively. Iron ore prices surged 8% on-quarter in the fourth quarter of CY 2018 owing to higher global crude steel production
and terminal maintenance in Australian ports. Supply disruptions caused by BHP train derailment in Australia further contributed
to price increases during the quarter.

Iron ore price outlook
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Source: CRISIL ResearchFor the next five years, steel demand from the building and construction segment is expected to grow at
a CAGR of 4-6%, driven by:

Coking coal prices expected to average $300-350 per tonne in fiscal 2023

Coking coal prices rose to unprecedented levels post landfall of Russia-Ukraine war in late-Feb. Prices went as high as $670 per
tonne as countries that sourced the material from Russia started demanding Australian coking coal. Further, heavy rains due to La-
Nina phenomenon had impacted mining activity in Queensland. However, procurement frenzy has subsided and supply-side
disruptions have also rectified. Consequently, coking coal prices have started trending downwards steeply with spot prices already
below $300 per tonne level. While prices are still significantly elevated to pre-covid levels, these corrections have a direct impact
on steel prices given the high share of coking coal in the cost-structure for steel mills.

Overall, CRISIL foresees prices to average at $300-350 per tonne in 2022 with a volatile trajectory as multiple global factors
come into play such as the Russia-Ukraine war's impact since sanctions will dampen Russian coking coal supply. Australia saw
multiple disruptions owing to floods and logistical issues, which reduced supply. La-nina forecasts for the year point towards
another wet summer season in Australia, stoking fears of yet another round of supply disruptions in the final quarter of CY22 and
first quarter of CY23. However, China is moderating demand for coking coal as it reduces supply on the back of Covid-19-related
issues. Prices dipped to below $200 per tonne levels, before quickly bouncing back to $275 per tonne and settling at around $260-
$270 per tonne level at the moment. Therefore, we foresee continued volatility in coking coal prices in the near term.

Coking coal prices dropped to $124 per tonne in 2020 as demand slumped from major steel producing economies. While usually
coking coal and iron ore prices follow a similar trend, the drop in coking coal was primarily attributed to China meeting most of
its coking coal needs through the domestic market. China and India have also bumped their imports of coking coal from Russia
owing to material discounts to similar grade material originating from Australia. However, CRISIL does not foresee complete
replacement of Australian coking coal owing to high-ash content (hence inferior quality) of Russian coking coal.

Prices will correct in CY 2023 as supply disruptions ease and geopolitical tensions subside leading to average price of $200-300
per tonne for the year.

After beginning 2021 on a weak note, coking coal prices hovered at $400-450 per tonne in late-September 2021 owing to multiple
disruptions in Australia due to derailment on a coal rail route. This was further aggravated by maintenance shutdowns by global
miners. In China, 20 mines were negatively affected by floods, which resulted in a severe shortage of coal in the Chinese local
market, thereby increasing demand for imported coal. The informal quota ban on Australian coal imports led to increased bidding
by steelmakers for imports, which drove prices significantly.

Rail and port maintenance issues pose a major risk to metallurgical coal exports. Bad weather and weather-related damage, as well
as infrastructure problems can hamper exports and fuel price spikes. Therefore, they remain upside risks to our forecasts.

Review: Coking coal prices declined 14% on-year to $177 per tonne in CY 2019. Coking coal prices rose 9.5% in 2018, led by a
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healthy 4.7% growth in global crude steel production, Chinese government’s production curbs on mining, and closure of polluting
induction furnaces in China. During January-October 2018, coking coal prices rose 11% because of supply disruptions caused by
severe floods in Queensland. Further, in the fourth quarter of CY 2018, coking coal prices increased 9% on a low base of the
fourth quarter of CY 2017, when coking coal import by China declined owing to stringent winter capacity cuts in China.

Coking coal price outlook
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Coking coal price forecast methodology
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Non-coking coal prices will rise further on global and domestic uncertainties

Coal companies also sell coal through spot auctions for power and non-power sectors periodically. Power plants that do not have
power purchase agreements with distribution companies (discoms) usually procure coal through spot auctions. Demand for spot
auctioned coal from non-power sectors also increases owing to the diversion of linkage coal to the power sector following coal
shortage amid rising power demand. In fiscal 2021, CIL sold ~43 million tonne of coal through spot e-auctions at a premium of
25%. This is indicative of higher supply from CIL to e-auction participants from the non-power sector amidst surplus coal
availability. Coal offtake from e-auctions saw a sharp uptick from the 67.7 million tonne over April-November 2020, with e-
auction premiums at 12%, to 72 million tonne over April-November 2021, with average premiums at 41%. This was despite the
restrictions on conducting such coal auctions in order to cater to high demand from the power sector. In near term, CRISIL
expects spot auction premiums to rise gradually as demand recovers from the non-power sector.
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Domestic thermal coal price outlook
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Domestic iron ore prices rise on supply crunch; prices to remain high in near term
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Domestic iron ore prices have been soaring since fiscal 2021 owing to limited supply of ore in the market. Steel players saw
utilisation levels recover rapidly. However, iron ore supply could not match demand owing to the supply crunch in key raw
material in the country. This was because Odisha auctions put 65-70 million tonne of iron ore production out of the merchant
market in fiscal 2021. Moreover, a shift from merchant to captive further tightened merchant supply, thereby leading to soaring
domestic iron ore prices.

In the first half of fiscal 2022, prices moved up as demand improved. Global iron ore prices soared again, thereby leading to price
hikes by miners in the merchant market, post which there was a correction in domestic iron ore prices on a free fall of global iron
ore prices. However in early 2022, the price trend reversed yet again, which narrowed the gap between global landed and domestic
prices to nearly 5-10% currently from 45-50% last quarter.

Overall, prices to averaged at ~Rs 6,164 per tonne in fiscal 2022. However, the export duty levied on iron ore and pellets (50%
export duty) is expected to bump domestic supply massively and make exports unviable. This has already led to drop in iron ore
prices with merchant players slashing their prices by 30-35%. In fiscal 2022, India produced 251 MT of iron ore of which ~201
MT was consumed domestically, ~25 MT was exported with negligible imports. Hence, domestic market had sufficient supply in
the fiscal. Now, with major merchant and captive miners planning production ramp-ups, prices will most likely continue
correcting. For fiscal 2023 we expected domestic iron ore prices to average 40-50% lower than fiscal 2022 level.

55



Outlook on domestic iron-ore price
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Iron ore price forecast methodology
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OUR BUSINESS

The following information should be read together with the more detailed financial and other information contained in the sections
“Risk Factors”, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and “Financial
Statements” beginning on pages 14, 80 and 81, respectively. Some of the information in this section, including information with
respect to our plans and strategies, contains forward- looking statements that involve risks and uncertainties. You should read the
section “Forward Looking Statements” on page 10 for a discussion of the risks and uncertainties related to those statements. Our
actual results may differ materially from those expressed in or implied by these forward-looking statements. All financial
information included herein is based on our Financial Statements included in this Information Memorandum in the section
“Financial Statements” beginning on page 81.

Overview

Our Company was incorporated as an unlisted Government Company under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 on January 2,
2015 within the jurisdiction of the Registrar of Companies, Chhattisgarh.

The Equity shares of our Company will be listed on the BSE, CSE and the NSE.

Overview of Demerged Undertaking
NMDC Steel Limited is in the process of setting up 3.0 MTPA Integrated Steel Plant at Nagarnar in the district of Bastar of
Chhattisgarh state. It has been decided to adopt BF-BOF- Thin Slab Caster-Online Tunnel Furnace and Hot Strip Mill route for

the project. Presently this project is in advance stage of construction.

Following are the major technological facilities under installation at site.

Sr. Facilities Capacity Major facility
No.
1. | Raw  Material  Handling | 9.5 MTPA e 4 Wagon tipplers.
System (“RMHS”) e 7 Stacker cum-reclaimers for Ore & Coal handling

~ 35 KM length of conveyor belts

2. | Coke Oven Plant (“CO”) 1.76 MTPA e 2X67 ovens with 7mitrs tall
e Coal Dry Cooling Plant (“CDCP”)

3. | By-Product Plant 83,627 Nm’/hr o FElectrostatic Tar precipitator, Ammonia-H2S-
Napthalene scrubber, Clauskiln, Sulphur condenser
and separator etc

4. | Sinter Plant (“SP”) 1x460 m” Sinter machine - -

5. | Blast Furnace (“BF”) 1x4500m’, 3.32 MTPA e 3 X 1700 TPD pig casting machines

Coal Dust injection (“CDI”)
Top Gas Pressure Recover Turbine-TRT (18 MW)

6. | Steel Melting Shop (“SMS”) 3.00 MTPA 2 x 175 Tonne BOF converter
2 x 175 Tonne HMDS
2xLF

1 x RH-OB

7. | Thin Slab Caster (*TSC”) with | 2.90 MTPA
Hot Strip Mills (“HSM”)

2X1-strand Caster coupled with Hot Strip Mills

8. | Oxygen Plant 2x1250 TPD - -
9. | Lime & Dolomite Calcinations | 2x 500 TPD cal-lime and | - -
plant (“LDCP”) 1x300 TPD cal-dolomite

In addition to above other auxiliary facilities like Power and blowing station (2x40 MW), Turbo Blower station(3x3930 Nm® /min)
and compressed stations etc. are also envisaged in plant to meet the requirement.
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Planned Capex and Actual Expenditure till March 31, 2022

The estimated project cost for implementation of NISP is INR 21,940 crores. Till March 31, 2022, expenditure of INR 20,514.48
Crore has been incurred for implementation of NISP. Item wise total cost and expenditure incurred (till March 31, 2022) is given

below -

Sr. Particulars Planned Capex Expenditure incurred
No. till March 31, 2022
(Fig in INR Crores) (Fig in INR Crores)
A Plant & Machinery
1 Raw material handling system 1,395 1,423.97
2 Coke oven 1,978 2,041.10
3 By Product Plant 509 534.22
4 Sinter Plant 765 804.58
5 Blast Furnace 1,814 1,916.26
6 Steel Melting Shop 2,054 2,001.90
7 Thin Slab Caster & Hot Strip Mills 2,633 2.709.52
Complex
8 Lime and dolomite Plant 148 82.65
9 Oxygen Plant 561 597.37
Sub total 11,859 12,111.57
B Auxiliary packages 4,267 2,446.96
C Infrastructure packages 710.08
D Enabling packages 147.63
E Township Packages 734 56.23
F Miscellaneous packages 333 64.06
G Capital stores Included in Package cost 484.14
H Land Cost 95 106.22
I Site Development 164 Included. in Auxiliaries /
Enabling packages
J Detailed engineering, consultancy fee & 42 676.08
project management
K Included in Preliminary and 37531
Transmission Line cost, if any Preoperative expenses
L Preliminary & pre-operative expenses 366
(including R&R Policy) 1,576.10
M  [Contingencies 111 -
N |Price escalation on INR portion 2,059 Included in Packages
Cost
o [Foreign exchange variation
P Other expenses / Advance (Including PPE, - 1,694.57
Inventories)
Q  [Interest During Construction 1,209 65.54
Total 21,940 20,514.48

Status of construction of NISP till November 15, 2022

Overall progress status of the Plant till November 15, 2022, is as given below:

Sr. No. Work Description Proog/‘;‘ess
1 Civil (RCC) 99.0
2 Structural Erection 98.6
3 Equipment Erection 98.3
4 Refractory Erection 86.5
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The individual package wise progress till November 15, 2022:

. . Structural Equipment Refractory
0,
Unit Excavation (%) Erection (%) Erection (%) Erection (%)
Coke Oven Battery 95.4 98.6 91.5 97.5
By Product Plant 99.6 99.8 99.9 100.0
Sinter Plant 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0
Blast Furnace 100.0 100.0 100.0 99.6
Steel Melting Shop 100.0 100.0 99.9 27.4
Thin Slab Caster with Hot Strip Mill 100.0 100.0 100.0 81.7
Oxygen Plant 100.0 100.0 100.0 100.0
Major Milestones targeted for commissioning of the Plant:
Sr. No. Milestone Commissioning date*
1 Commencement of 1st Coke Pushing October 28, 2022
(1st Battery)
2 Hot metal production from Blast Furnace March 15, 2023
3 Start of blowing in Steel Melting Shop March 31, 2023
4 Hot Trial Start in TSC-HSM (First HR Coil Roll Out)  [March 31, 2023

* As on November 15, 2022

Overview of Steel Making Process

The plant is designed to produce HR Coils / Sheets / Plates. Major raw materials like Iron ore/fines will come from NMDC’s
Bailadila mines and imported Coal from Vizag port. In addition, fluxes required will be received from indigenous/imported
sources. The required quantity of above raw materials received will be stacked at designated areas of RMHS.

Various grades of coal will be stored in Coal Blending Silos, and the same will be blended in conveyors during transferring in to
coal crushing tower. Pre-calculated quantity of blend Coal will be charged to coke oven from top to undergo coking process. Coke
so produced in Coke oven will be sent to Cokel dry cooling plant. Thereafter, sized coke will be conveyed to Blast Furnace stock-
house and some part will be stacked in RHMS area.

Iron ore fines, coke fines, lime stone & dolomite (after crushing) would be sent to sinter plants through various conveyors for
production of burden sinter. Sinters so produced from Sinter Machine will be cooled, sized as per requirements and will be sent to
Blast Furnace stock-house and storage bunkers at RMHS. Some amount of fluxes like limestone / dolomite / quartzite will also be
conveyed to BF stock house through conveyor from RMHS. The Coke Oven Gas (“COG”) produced during coking process will
be taken into By Product plant to treat it further. The clean COG will be utilized partly in coke oven process and balance will be
used for Steel Melting Shop, Blast Furnace and Thin Slab Caster & Hot Strip Mill etc. In this process by products like Tar,
Napthalene and sulphur will be produced at Byproduct Plant.

The sinter, coke and other required raw materials and flux (limestone, dolomite and quartz) of pre-calculated quantity will be
taken into Blast Furnace from stock-house through conveyors. The above raw materials will undergo reduction process for which
hot blast will be provided by power blowing and turbo blower station facility.

Hot metal tapped out from BF will be taken into torpedo ladle car and will be transported to Steel Melting Shop (“SMS”) for
further processing. Slag produced from BF will be taken to slag granulation plant and then to slag yard through conveyor for
stacking. Gas generated from BF after cooling is taken to TRT for power generation and further utilization in BF stove heating
and boiler for steam turbine.

Before taking hot Metal into BOF converter, the hot metal will be treated in Hot Metal De-sulphurisation (“HMDS”). HMDS
having facilities of bunkers for Calcium Carbide, Magnesium granule and Calcined lime. Calcium carbide and Magnesium
granule will be conveyed to storage bunkers through specialized truck tankers. After treatment at HMDS station hot metal will be
transferred to BOF converter through shop EOT cranes. BOF converters have facilities of raw material bunkers for storage
materials of like cal-lime, cal-dolomite (Cal lime and cal dolomite are conveyed through conveyor belts from Lime and dolomite
calcinations Plant), DRI. All these materials will be conveyed to BOF converter bunkers through conveyor belts of RMHS.
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After getting required composition and temperature at BOF converter, liquid metal will be tapped out in to ladle for further
processing at Ladle Refining Furnaces (“LRF”) and RH-OB (if required) . LRF and RH-OB have their own bunkers for storage
and addition in LRF and RH-OB during treatment

At Thin Slab Caster, liquid metal ladle will be placed at turret and liquid will be poured in running tundish and from there it goes
to water cooled copper mold jacket. This copper mold jacket is attached with oscillating mechanism. From copper mould, liquid
steel will come out as solid slab (core is in liquid state) and the same slab will pass through various segments. After exiting from
final segments, slab will be cut into required length and the same will be fed into in-line tunnel furnace for heating up to required
temperature. Further, tunnel furnace will feed slabs to Hot strip mill for rolling. Slab will pass through combination of Roughing,
Finishing stand and other in-line equipment’s. Finally slab is converted into coils through a Down-coiler. Handling cranes will lift
coil bundle and will place it into coil storage area.

Oxygen requirement for Steel Melting Shop and Blast Furnace operation will be supplied from Oxygen Plant through pipelines.
Similarly, compressed air for various units will be supplied from Compressed Air Station through pipe line network.

Following is the process-flow of 3.0 MTPA Integrated Steel Plant-
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Details of Major Raw Material and Key Inputs

Sr.
No.

Raw Material / Key Input Details

1. | Iron Ore Lump and fines

The requirements of iron ore (fines and lump) for the proposed steel plant has been
planned to be met from the Bailadila iron ore mines of NMDC Limited

2. | Coking Coal

It is planned to meet the requirement of metallurgical coal for the proposed steel
plant through import

3. | Non-Coking Coal

Non-Coking coal will be imported from countries like China, Australia, South
Africa etc.

Limestone fines for SP

Will be sourced from Jagdalpur area or Satna-Maihar area

Limestone (SMS Grade)

Will be sourced from Jaisalmer area or will be imported

Dolomite fines for SP

Will be sourced from Jagdalpur area or Baradwar area

Dolomite (SMS Grade)

Will be sourced from Belha region

e P el b

Water Requirement

Water shall be sourced from Sabari river which is around 90 Km away from the
plant site

9. | Power Requirement

Power requirement for the plant shall be met from the 220 kV Barasur grid
substation of CSEB located approximately 90 Km away from the plant site
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Product Mix

Sr. No. Product Size (Thickness Annual Saleable Qty
Width), mm x mm (tonnes)
A Pig Iron 272,800
B HR Coils/ Sheets/ Plates
) HR plates (IS 2062, IS 5986, IS 3039) 5-10 X 1030-1650 400,000
(i) HR plates (IS 2002 & IS 2041) 5-10 X 1030-1650 400,000
(iii) API — 5L quantity plates —up to X 80 6-12 X upto 1550 500,000
(iv) HR sheets (IS 3196) 2-4 X 1030-1650 200,000
v) LPG cylinders (IS 6240) 2.0-3.15 X 1000-1650 200,000
(vi) HR coils (IS 10748, IS 1079) 1.6-10 X 900-1650 946,000
High carbon steel
(vii) (1100-1650) and other alloy steel 25115 50,000
Silicon stecl 1.813.5 100,000
(viii) (DIN46400-3) ’
(ix) Automotive steel
-1250-1524 2.5-11.5 50,000
-1525-1650 1.8-6.5 50,000
Sub-Total 2,896,000
Total 3,168,800

Business Strategy

Our Company currently does not have commercial operations and as and when our Company enters commercial operations,
business strategy will be formulated.

Policies

We are in the process of formulation and implementation of policies on risk management and corporate governance, as approved
by our Board, so as to develop an approach to identify, assess and manage the various risks associated with our business activities
in a systematic manner. The policies lay down guiding principles on proactive planning for identifying, analysing and mitigating
material risks, both external and internal, and covering operational, financial and strategic risks. After risks have been identified,
risk mitigation solutions are determined to bring risk exposure levels in line with risk appetite.

Human Capital

As on July 31, 2022, NISP has 1,626 employees which includes 989 permanent employees and rest are contractual. The employee
strength comprises executive and non- executive employees, as detailed below: —

. Number of Employees
Particulars Works Non-Works
Executives 377 85
Non- Executives 933 225
Total 1,316 310
Intellectual Property

Our Company does not own or have access to any intellectual property rights currently.
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Safety, Health and Environment
See “Government and Other Approvals” and “Other Regulatory and Statutory Disclosures” on pages 125 and 126, respectively.

We aim to comply with applicable health and safety regulations and other requirements in our operations. We believe that
accidents and occupational health hazards can be significantly reduced through a systematic analysis and control of risks and by
providing appropriate training to our management and our employees.

Information Technology

Our IT systems are vital to our business and we are in the process of devising and implementing IT policies to assist us in our
operations. The key functions of our IT team will include establishing and maintaining enterprise information systems and
infrastructure services to support our business requirements, maintaining secure enterprise operations.

Insurance

Our operations are subject to hazards including risk of equipment failure, work accidents, fire, earthquakes, flood and other force
majeure events, acts of terrorism and explosions including hazards that may cause injury and loss of life, severe damage to and
the destruction of property and equipment and environmental damage. We are currently insured with sufficient insurance
coverage. See “Risk Factors — Internal Risk Factors — We may experience losses exceeding our insurance limits, which may have
a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition and results of operations.” on page 16.

Corporate Social Responsibility

We recognize our role and responsibility to deliver superior and sustainable value to our customers, business partners, employees
and communities. We will adopt a Corporate Social Responsibility (“CSR”) policy in compliance with the requirements of the
Companies Act, 2013, and the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014, as notified by the Central Government.
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KEY REGULATIONS AND POLICIES IN INDIA

The following description is a summary of certain sector specific laws and regulations in India, which are applicable to
our Company. Our functioning requires, at various stages, the sanction of the concerned authorities under the relevant
legislations and local bye-laws. Additionally, under the provisions of various Central Government and State Government
statutes and legislations, our Company is required to obtain and regularly renew certain licenses or registrations and to
seek statutory permissions to conduct our business and operations.

The regulations set out below are not exhaustive, and are only intended to provide general information. Applicable shops
and establishments’ statutes, pollution control, labour and employment statutes and taxation statutes apply to us, as they
do to any other company. For details of the material approvals obtained by our Company and our Subsidiaries, see
“Government and Other Approvals” on page 125.

Trade Licenses

Our offices are required to obtain the trade licenses from Municipalities / Municipal Corporations, as the case may be.
These licenses are normally granted for a financial year and need to be renewed every year upon payment of certain fees.

Shops and Establishments Legislations

Our offices are required to be registered under the provisions of local shops and establishments legislations applicable in
the states where such establishments are set up. These laws regulate the conditions of work and employment in shops and
commercial establishments and generally prescribe obligations in respect of registration, opening and closing hours, daily
and weekly working hours, holidays, leave, health and safety measures and wages for overtime work, among other things.

The Sale of Goods Act, 1930

The law relating to the sale of goods is codified in the Sale of Goods Act, 1930 (“Sale of Goods Act”). It defines sale and
agreement to sell as a contract whereby the seller transfers or agrees to transfer the property in goods to the buyer for a
price. The Sale of Goods Act contains provisions in relation to the essential aspects of such contracts, including the
transfer of ownership of goods, delivery of goods, rights and duties of the buyer and seller, remedies for breach of
contract, and the implied conditions and warranties in a contract for the sale of goods.

The Competition Act, 2002

The objective of the Competition Act, 2002 (“Competition Act”) is to prevent practices having adverse effect on
competition, to promote and sustain competition in markets, to protect the interest of consumers and to ensure freedom of
trade carried on by other participants in the India. The Competition Act, therefore, prohibits entitles from entering into
anti-competitive agreements, from abusing their dominance in the market, and it also regulates combinations in India.
The Competition Act, therefore, prohibits and prevents, among other things, cartels from forming, dominant entities from
creating barriers on the entry of new players, and such takeovers, merger and amalgamations which might have adverse
effects on competition in the market. The Competition Act also established the Competition Commission of India as the
authority mandated to implement the Competition Act.

Transfer of Property Act, 1882

The Transfer of Property Act, 1882 (“TOPA”) deals with change in ownership and possession of immoveable property
among living persons, including companies. The TOPA, therefore, deals with sale, mortgage, lease, gift and exchange of
immovable properties.

The Registration Act, 1908

The Registration Act, 1908 deals with registration of certain documents like lease deeds, etc. leases of immovable
property from year to year, or for any term exceeding one year, or reserving a yearly rent are required to be registered
under this act.

Indian Stamp Act, 1899

The Indian Stamp Act, 1899 (along with its state amendments) and Stamp Acts of various states (“Stamp Acts”) lay down
that certain instruments shall be chargeable with a duty of the amount mentioned in the schedule of the relevant Stamp
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Act. The stamp duty chargeable on an instrument is required to be paid to the relevant state authority, and such payment
is indicated on the instrument by means of stamps.

The Goods and Services Tax Act, 2017

Goods and Services Tax (“GST”) is an indirect tax levied on the supply of goods and services. GST has replaced many
indirect tax laws which previously existed in India such as Service tax, Central Excise Act, Entry Tax, Octroi, etc. The
GST is charged on every value-addition on a product or service, for example, from the manufacturer to the wholesaler,
and is collected at the destination of consumption. There are three taxes applicable under this system: (a) Central GST,
which is collected by the Central Government on an intra-state sale; (b) State GST, which is collected by the State
Government on an intra-state sale; and (c) Integrated GST, which is collected by the Central Government on an inter-
state sale.

Income Tax Act, 1961

The Income Tax Act, 1961 (“IT Act”) is applicable to every company, whether domestic or foreign, whose income is
taxable under the provisions of this Act or rules made there under depending upon its residential status and type of
income involved. IT Act provides for the taxation of persons resident in India on global income and persons not resident
in India on income received, accruing or arising in India or deemed to have been received, accrued or arising in India.
Every company assessable to income tax under the IT Act is required to comply with the provisions thereof, including
those relating to tax deduction at source, advance tax, minimum alternative tax, etc. Every such company is also required
to file its returns in each assessment year.

The Trade Marks Act, 1999

The Trade Marks Act, 1999 (“Trade Marks Act”) provides for the application and registration of trademarks in India for
granting exclusive rights to marks such as a brand, label and heading and obtaining relief in case of infringement. The
Trade Marks Act prohibits any registration of deceptively similar trademarks or chemical compounds among others. It
also provides for infringement, falsifying and falsely applying for trademarks. The present term of registration of a
trademark is ten years, which may be renewed for similar periods on payment of a prescribed renewal fee.

The Patents Act, 1970

The Patents Act, 1970 (“Patents Act”) governs the patent regime in India. It provides the conditions required to be
fulfilled for grant of a patent in India, viz. novelty, utility and non-obviousness. It also provides the products and
processes for which patent protection shall not be granted even if they satisfy the above criteria. It provides certain rights
to a patent-holder and that the term of a patent is twenty years from the date of the filing of the patent application. The
Patents Act prohibits any person resident in India from applying for patent for an invention outside India without making
an application for the invention in India.

The Copyright Act, 1957 (the “Copyright Act”)

The Copyright Act protects literary and dramatic works, musical works, artistic works, including photographs and audio-
visual works (cinematograph films and video). The Copyright Act specifies that for the purposes of public performance
of Indian or international music, a public performance license must be obtained. All those who play pre-recorded music
in the form of gramophone records, music cassettes or compact discs in public places have to obtain permission for sound
recordings.

In addition to the domestic laws, India is a party to several international intellectual property related instruments
including the Patent Co-operation Treaty, 1970, the Paris Convention for the Protection of Industrial Property, 1883, and
as a member of the World Trade Organisation, India is a signatory to the Agreement on Trade Related aspects of
Intellectual Property Rights, 1995.

Information Technology Act, 2000

The Information Technology Act, 2000 has been enacted with the purpose of providing legal recognition to transactions
carried out by means of electronic data interchange and other means of electronic communication, commonly referred to
as “electronic commerce”. The Information Technology Act, 2000 also seeks to facilitate electronic filing of documents
and create a mechanism for the authentication of electronic documentation through digital signatures. The Information
Technology Act, 2000 prescribes punishment for publishing and transmitting obscene material in electronic form. The
Information Technology Act, 2000 has extraterritorial jurisdiction over any offence or contravention under the
Information Technology Act, 2000 committed outside India by any person, irrespective of their nationality, if the act or
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conduct constituting the offence or contravention involves a computer, computer system or computer network located in
India.

The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986 (the “EP Act”)

The EP Act has been enacted for the protection and improvement of the environment. EP Act empowers the government
to take measures to protect and improve the environment such as by laying down standards for emission and discharge of
pollutants, providing for restrictions regarding areas where industries may operate. It is in the form of an umbrella
legislation designed to provide a framework for Central Government to coordinate the activities of various central and
state authorities established under previous laws. It is also in the form of an enabling law, which delegates wide powers to
the executive to enable bureaucrats to frame necessary rules and regulations.

Water (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1974 (the “Water Act”)

The Water Act was enacted to control and prevent pollution and for maintaining or restoring of wholesomeness of water
in the country and any person intending to establish any industry, operation or process or any treatment and disposal
system which is likely to discharge sewage or other pollution into a water body is required to obtain prior consent of the
relevant state pollution control board (“SPCB”). The SPCBs are vested with diverse powers to deal with water and air
pollution, have been established at the Central level and in each State. The SPCBs are responsible for setting the
standards for maintenance of clean air and water, directing the installation of pollution control devices in industries and
undertaking investigations to ensure that industries are functioning in compliance with the standards prescribed. All
industries and factories are required to obtain consent orders (renewed annually) from the SPCBs, which are indicative of
the fact that the factory or industry in question is functioning in compliance with the pollution control norms laid down.

Air (Prevention and Control of Pollution) Act, 1981 (the “Air Act”)

The Air Act was enacted to provide for the prevention, control and abatement of air pollution in India. It is a specialized
piece of legislation, which was enacted to take appropriate steps for the preservation of natural resources of the earth,
which among other things include the preservation of the quality of air and control of air pollution. The Air Act stipulates
that no person shall, without prior written consent of the relevant state pollution control board, establish or operate any
industrial plant, which emits air pollutants in an air pollution control area, as notified by the state pollution control board.

The Public Liability Insurance Act, 1991 (the “PLI Act”)

The PLI Act imposes liability on the owner or controller of hazardous substances for any damage arising out of an
accident involving such hazardous substances. A list of hazardous substances covered by the legislation has been
enumerated by the government by way of a notification. Under the PLI Act the owner or handler is also required to take
out an insurance policy insuring against liability. The rules made under the PLI Act mandate that the employer has to
contribute towards the Environmental Relief Fund a sum equal to the premium paid on the insurance policies.

Manufacture, Storage and Import of Hazardous Chemicals Rules, 1989 (the “HCR Rules”)

The HCR Rules are formulated under the EP Act, and are applicable to an industrial activity in which a hazardous
chemical which satisfies certain criteria as listed in the schedule thereto, and to an industrial activity in which there is
involved a threshold quantity of hazardous chemicals as specified in the schedule thereto. The occupier of a facility
where such industrial activity is undertaken has to provide evidence to the prescribed authorities that he has identified the
major accident hazards and that he has taken steps to prevent the occurrence of such accident and to provide to the
persons working on the site with the information, training and equipment including antidotes necessary to ensure their
safety. Where a major accident occurs on a site or in a pipeline, the occupier shall forthwith notify the concerned
authority and submit reports of the accident to the said authority. Furthermore, an occupier shall not undertake any
industrial activity unless he has submitted a written report to the concerned authority containing the particulars specified
in the schedule to the HCR Rules at least three months before commencing that activity or before such shorter time as the
concerned authority may agree.

The Hazardous Wastes (Management and Handling) Rules, 1989

The Hazardous Wastes (Management and Handling) Rules, 1989 (“Hazardous Wastes Rules”) imposes responsibility on
the person generating hazardous wastes to ensure proper handling and disposal. The Hazardous Wastes Rules require
hazardous wastes to be collected, treated, stored and disposed of only in facilities authorized by the State Pollution
Control Board.
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Hazardous Wastes (Management Handling and Transboundary Movement) Rules, 2016 (the “Hazardous Wastes
Rules”)

Hazardous Wastes Rules aim to regulate the proper collection, reception, treatment, storage and disposal of hazardous
waste. The Hazardous Wastes Rules impose an obligation on every occupier and operator of a facility generating
hazardous waste to dispose of such waste without adverse.

Foreign Investment

Foreign investment in India is governed by the provisions of Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (“FEMA”) along
with the rules, regulations and notifications made by the Reserve Bank of India thereunder, and the consolidated FDI
Policy (“FDI Policy”) issued by the Department of Industrial Policy and Promotion, Ministry of Commerce and Industry,
Government of India from time to time.

Labour related legislations
Depending upon the nature of the activity undertaken by us, applicable labor laws and regulations include the following:
e The Employee’s Compensation Act, 1923;
e Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948;
e  The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972;
e The Code on Wages, 2019;
e  The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961;
e The Employee’s State Insurance Act, 1948;
e The Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952;
e  The Industrial Disputes Act, 1947;

e  The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013; and

The Factories Act, 1948

The Factories Act, 1948 (“Factories Act”) provides for the health, safety and welfare of all workers while at work in the
factory, including adequate maintenance of plant, systems and other places of work, and provision of adequate
information, training and supervision. The Factories Act also provides for the approval, licensing and registration of
factories by the respective State Governments.

The Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970

The Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1970 (“CLRA”) provides for welfare and health of contract
labourers. Under the CLRA, the principal employer has to be registered with the appropriate authority and the contractor
has to get licensed by the licensing officer. The contractors are required to provide facilities such as canteens, rest-rooms,
first-aid amongst others. In case of failure of the contractor in providing such facilities, the CLRA shifts the obligation
upon the principal employer within a prescribed time period.
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HISTORY AND CERTAIN CORPORATE MATTERS

Brief history of our Company

Our Company was incorporated as an unlisted Government Company under the provisions of Companies Act, 2013 on January 2,
2015 within the jurisdiction of the Registrar of Companies, Chhattisgarh. Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangement, upon the
coming into effect of the Scheme and with effect from the Appointed Date, and subject to the provisions of Scheme, all the
properties and assets (tangible and intangible assets including goodwill) and liabilities of the Demerged Undertaking will be
transferred to our Company at values appearing in the books of accounts of the Demerged Company immediately before the
demerger, in accordance with Section 2(19AA) of the IT Act. The Demerged Undertaking shall, without any further act,
instrument or deed, be demerged from the Demerged Company and stand transferred to and vested in and/or deemed to have been
demerged from the Demerged Company and stand transferred to and vested in the Resulting Company as a going concern, in the
manner provided in the Scheme.

For details of the Scheme of Arrangement, please see “Scheme of Arrangement” on page 70.

Changes in Registered Office

There is no change in the registered office of our Company since incorporation.

Major events and milestones

The table sets forth some of the major events in the history of our Company:

Fiscal Particulars
2015 Incorporation of our Company
2023 Approval of the Scheme by MCA

Main Objects of our Company

The main objects of our Company contained in our Memorandum of Association are as follows:

1.

To carry on in India and elsewhere the trade or business or manufacturing, prospecting, raising, operating, buying,

selling, importing, exporting, purchasing otherwise dealing;

(1) in stainless steel, silicon steel, special steel, mild steel and in allied products, fireclay, dolomite, limestone,
refractories, iron ore, bauxite, cement, chemicals, fertilizers, manures, distilleries, dye making and industrial and
non-industrial gas, lime burners, stone quarrying, concrete manufacturing in all respective branches, and other
allied input or other materials, and, for that purpose to construct, install, operate, manage and maintain all plants,
mines, establishments, works etc.

(i1) in iron and steel of all qualities, grades, types and kinds as iron mongers, iron masters, steel makers and steel
converters;

(ii1) in Ferro Silicon, Ferro-Chrome and/or all products made of Iron and Steel, Coking coal, Manganese, Ferro
manganese, Limestone, Refractories, Iron-ore and other alloys;

(iv) as miners, smelters, iron founders in all respective branches;

To do consultancy services required to design, establish, provide, maintain and perform engineering and related technical
and consultancy services for the development of ferrous and non-ferrous metallurgical enterprises, chemical and petro-
chemical enterprises, fertilizer plants, cement plants, refractory plants, laboratories for control and/or research purposes,
water works, gas works, sewage disposal plants, thermal and hydro-electric power stations, electrical generators,
transmission and distribution and all other types of industrial projects, and for that purpose to prepare and get prepared
feasibility reports, detailed project reports, market studies, techno-economic investigations, survey of all types, site
selection, planning basic and process engineering, preparing specifications and documents, tender evaluation and
purchase assistance, detailed design and working drawing, shop inspection, expediting construction, supervision, project
management, commissioning, operation and maintenance, training of personnel, pre and post operation consultancy and
any such other services.

To construct, execute, carry out, improve, develop, manage or control iron and steel works and by-products and ancillary
plants, fertilizer plants, coke ovens, foundries furnaces, bricks kilns, refractory works, factories, railways, tramways,
ropeways, runways, roads, acrodromes, docks, harbours, piers wharves, dams, barrages, weirs, reservoirs, embankments,
canals, irrigation, power houses, transmission lines, reclamation, improvement, sewage, drainage, sanitary, water, gas,
electric, light, telephone and power supply works and hotels, houses, markets and buildings, private or public, and all
other works, conveniences whatsoever, and generally to carry on the business of builders, contractors, engineers,
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architects, estimators, and designers in all their respective branches and to undertake works on contract basis for civil
engineering, mechanical engineering, electrical engineering, erection engineering, water supply, etc. and to tender for
such works, and to undertake consultancy services in the above fields, general accounting, material management,
industrial engineering and other management services, etc.

4. To plan, promote, and organise an integrated and efficient development of the iron and steel and its associated input
industries such as iron ore, coking coal, manganese, limestone, refractories etc.

5. To purchase, take on lease or in exchange or under amalgamation, licence or concession, or otherwise acquire mines,
Coal blocks, beneficiation, mineral dressing, concentration and refining plants, including Plants like Metallurgical plants,
Steel plants, lands, buildings, workshops, power-generation units, transmission and distribution system or any other
power systems plant & equipment, machinery, sidings, locos, works and any rights and privileges, or interest therein and
to explore, prospect, work, develop, administer, manage or control and to turn to account the same.

6. To acquire by lease, grant, assignment, transfer or otherwise any grants or concessions of any mineral fields, mines,
mineral and mine contracts, works and premises from any person or persons, Corporation, Company, Government or
local body in India or elsewhere, and to perform and fulfill the conditions thereof.

7. To construct, execute, carry out, equip, improve work, purchase or otherwise acquire, lease, develop, administer, manage
or control in India or elsewhere works and conveniences of all kinds which expression in this Memorandum includes
mines, Coal blocks, beneficiations, mineral dressing, concentration and refining plants, including Metallurgical like Steel
plants, quarries, Cement plants, barrages, dams, sluices, locks, embankments, moles, break-waters, docks, quays,
harbours, piers, wharves, canals, tanks, bridges, aqueducts, reservoirs, irrigations, reclamation, improvement, river-works
of all kinds, railways, ropeways, tramways, road, sewage, drainage, sanitary, paving, water, gas, electric, light,
telephonic, telegraphic, wire-less, power generation, transmission and distribution system non-conventional energy units
like windmill, solar energy, etc, and power supply works, and hotels and warehouses, markets and buildings, private or
public, workers dhowras and houses, villages, sheds, dwellings, offices, shops and stores and all other works or
conveniences whatsoever

Amendments to the Memorandum of Association

Our Memorandum of Association was amended from time to time pursuant to the change in, or reclassification of, the authorised
share capital of our Company.

Except for amendments to the Memorandum of Association pursuant to the change in, or reclassification of, the authorised share
capital of our Company, there has been no other amendments to our Memorandum of Association.

Other details regarding our Company

For details regarding the description of our activities, management, managerial competence, etc., see “Industry Overview”, “Our
Business” and “Our Management” on pages 36, 57 and 71 respectively.

Our Shareholders

As on date, our Company has 6,92,092 Shareholders. For further details regarding our Shareholders, see “Capital Structure —
Notes to Capital Structure — Shareholding Pattern of the Company” on page 28.

Details regarding acquisition of business/ undertakings, mergers, amalgamation and revaluation of assets

Except as disclosed in the section “Scheme of Arrangement”, we have not acquired any businesses/undertaking, undertaken any
mergers or amalgamations.

Shareholders’ Agreement

As on date of this Information, there are no subsisting shareholders agreements among our shareholders vis-a-vis our Company
that our Company is aware of.
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Holding company
Our Company does not have a holding company.
Subsidiaries

Our Company does not have any subsidiaries.

Other confirmations

Except as disclosed above, our Company has not entered into any material agreements in the preceding two years, which are
outside the ordinary course of our business.

Our Company does not have any strategic or financial partners. Our Company has not revalued its assets since its incorporation.
There have been no rescheduling of our borrowings from financial institutions.
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SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

Scheme of Arrangement pursuant to the provisions of Sections 230 to 232, Section 66, and other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, as may be applicable, for the demerger of the Demerged Undertaking of NMDC Limited into NMDC Steel
Limited on a going concern basis

Rationale for the Scheme

1.

Government of India has charted a road map to augment India’s steel production to 300 MTPA by 2025. To fulfill
this vision, green-field steel plants are being promoted through Special Purpose Vehicles (“SPVs”) in mineral rich
states of Chhattisgarh, Jharkhand, Karnataka and Odisha. It has been envisaged that the SPV being set up at these
states would act as a facilitator and developer for the steel plant. It would acquire the required land, obtain statutory
clearances for setting up the plant, organize water & power allocation for the site, along with dedicated raw material
supply agreement. On completion of the above activities, the SPV would invite for suitable investor/s, who would
construct, develop and operate the steel plant.

As part of expansion, value addition and forward integration programme, and also in consonance with the desire of
the Government of India and Government of Chhattisgarh, NMDC Limited is setting up a 3 MTPA capacity
Greenfield integrated steel plant (“NMDC Iron & Steel Plant” or “NISP”) at Nagarnar, located 16 km from
Jagdalpur in Chhattisgarh state.

The decision to construct the NISP was taken keeping in view with linkage with iron ore reserves and availability of
investable surplus. NISP has progressed significantly further than the other Steel SPVs. The only difference is that
NISP is being developed and constructed within NMDC Limited as opposed to being developed in an SPV. Also,
NMDC Vision 2025, whilst mentioning forward integration has specifically stated that its role would be that of a
developer for steel plants and at suitable time invite investors to commission and operate the plants. NMDC is
therefore considering proposed scheme to add more value to Company’s stakeholders by demerging NISP into
separate company and subsequently inviting investor.

To this effect, in October 2020, the Cabinet Committee on Economic Affairs chaired by the Prime Minister Shri
Narendra Modi gave its ‘in-principle’ approval to the demerger of NISP from NMDC Limited and strategic
disinvestment of the NMDC Steel Limited by selling entire Government of India stake in the NMDC Steel Limited to
a strategic buyer.

Accordingly, to achieve the above objective, the Board of Directors of the NMDC Limited have decided to make
requisite applications and/or petitions before the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, New Delhi
under Sections 230 to 232 of the 2013 Act (hereinafter defined) and other applicable provisions for the sanction of
the Scheme.

Approvals with respect to the Scheme

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, New Delhi, vide order dated October 6, 2022, approved the Scheme of
Arrangement between NMDC Limited and NMDC Steel Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors pursuant to the
provisions of Sections 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the other applicable provisions thereof and applicable rules
thereunder.
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OUR MANAGEMENT

In terms of our Articles of Association, unless otherwise determined by general meeting, our Company is required to
have at least five and not more than sixteen Directors. Our Company currently has Four Directors. The following table
sets forth details regarding the Board as on the date of this Information Memorandum:

Date of
;Z: Name, ]Ze;:lgrr:;:lon and etxlil I::ltll.g:n(;f dill)'zlc.i(())gs(l)lfip Directorships in other companies DIN
term
1 Mr. Sumit Deb Until further Director since 1. NMDC Limited 8547819
orders of the 08.11.2022 in 2. NMDC-CMDC Limited
Designation : Chairman- Ministry of NMDC Steel 3. Indian Iron And Steel Sector
Cum-Managing Director Steel, Govt. of Limited Skill Council
India 4. NMDC CSR Foundation
Address: H.No.8-2-269/H/20, 5. Legacy Iron Ore Limited
Plot No 20, Road No. 2,
Banjara Hills, Near TDP
office, Hyderabad — 500 034
2 Ms. Sukriti Likhi Until further Director since 1. KIOCL Limited 1825997
orders of the 08.11.2022 in 2. NMDC Limited
Designation : Non-Executive Ministry of NMDC Steel 3. Steel Authority of India Limited
Director Steel, Govt. of Limited 4. MOIL Limited
India 5. Rashtriya Ispat Nigam Limited
Address: C-7, Tower 10, 6. MECON Limited
New Moti Bagh, New Delhi
3 Mr. Amitava Mukherjee Until further Director since 1. Legacy Iron Ore Ltd 8265207
orders of the 08.11.2022 in 2. NMDC Limited
Designation : Wholetime Ministry of NMDC Steel 3. NMDC-CMDC Limited
Director Steel, Govt. of Limited 4. Jharkhand National Mineral
India Development Corporation Ltd.
Address: Flat No 1901, 5. Bastar Railway Pvt. Ltd.
Crystal Tower — F, 6. International Coal Ventures Pvt.
PBEL City, Near TSPA Ltd
Junction, 7. Minas De Benga (Mauritius)
Hyderabad — 500 091 Ltd
8. NMDC-SARL
4 Mr. Dilip Kumar Mohanty Until further Director since 1. J&K Mineral Development | 9296720
orders of the 08.11.2022 in Corporation Ltd.
Designation : Wholetime Ministry of NMDC Steel 2. NMDC Limited
Director Steel, Govt. of Limited 3. NMDC-CMDC Ltd.
India 4. Jharkhand National Mineral
Address: NCC Urban Development Corporation Ltd.
Gardenia, Tower-I, Block-B, 5. International Coal Ventures Pvt.
F/No.1002, Gachibowli, Ltd.
Hyderabad — 500 032

Brief profiles our Directors -

1) Mr. Sumit Deb

Mr. Sumit Deb started his career with Rashtriya Ispat Nigam Limited (RINL) as Management Trainee in the year 1987.
He worked with RINL for about 25 years accumulating rich and diverse experience in steel industry. He has worked in
different regions of the country, dealing with heterogeneous mix of both external as well as internal customers and
handling all domains of HR such as Manpower Planning, succession planning, Learning & development, Administration,
Corporate Affairs etc. He was awarded with “Jawahar Purushkar” in the year 2007-08 by CMD, RINL for his
outstanding performance. He is a thorough and hardworking Professional with the desirable aptitude required to be an
effective Human Resource Professional. He has diverse experience in the field of Human Resources as well as Marketing
and distribution of Steel & Iron ore, Sponge iron, pellets and Diamonds. He has demonstrated his performance
capabilities by achieving various milestones along his career path.
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2) Ms. Sukriti Likhi

Ms. Sukriti Likhi, Additional Secretary and Financial Advisor, Ministry of Steel, Government of India, belongs to the
Indian Administrative Service (Haryana Cadre-1993). An Economics Honours graduate from Lady Shri Ram College,
she holds a Masters degree in Sociology from the Delhi School of Economics and a Masters in Public Administration
from Harvard University (USA). Her varied experience in administration includes working in the Ministry of Finance,
Government of India, as Director in the Department of Financial Services and later, as Counsellor (Economic) with the
Embassy of India at Washington DC. Most recently she was Joint Secretary, Department of Heavy Industry, Ministry of
Heavy Industries and Public Enterprises, Government of India. In the Haryana State Government, among her varied
assignments, she served as Managing Director, Haryana Power Generation Corporation Ltd; as Managing Director
HAFED (the Haryana State Cooperative Supply & Marketing Federation Limited)

3) Mr. Amitava Mukherjee

Mr. Amitava Mukherjee belongs to the 1995 batch of Indian Railway Accounts Services (IRAS). Prior to joining NMDC,
he was holding the post of General Manager (Finance) in Rail Vikas Nigam Limited (RVNL) for a period of around two
and half years. During his service in IRAS, he has held various key positions in the Eastern Railways from 1997 to 2016
like head of Standing Core Committee on Service Tax, Traffic Accounts Office and the IT Department. Before joining
IRAS, he has worked in Indian Oil Corporation Limited (IOCL) as Accounts Officer from 1994-1997. During his service
period in Indian Railways, he has received National Award for outstanding services during the year 2006. He was also
nominated by Railway Board to various Task Groups for Centralised Applications of Finance & Accounts department of
Indian Railways for monitoring progress and to suggest improvements and enhancements to such applications and for
Development of Traffic Accounts Management System.

4) Mr. Dilip Kumar Mohanty

Mr. Dilip Kumar Mohanty started his career in Vizag Steel Plant, Rashtrtiya Ispat Nigam Limited as Management
Trainee (Technical) in the year 1987 after completing his BSc Engineering (Metallurgy) from NIT Rourkela. He has rich
and varied experience spanning over 33 years in steel plant operations & projects. He has gained reputation to solve
critical issues in Steel Making and project executions. During his career in Vizag Steel Plant he gained vast experience in
operations of steel plant including commissioning of various units. In the year 2015, he joined NMDC Limited in the
prestigious green field 3.0 MTPA NMDC Iron and Steel Plant (NISP) at Nagarnar, Bastar Chhattisgarh. He was in-
charge of major packages and has played significant role for execution of works at NISP project. As Chief General
Manager (Operations) he has prepared the strategy for operation of plant by giving directions to various O&M contracts,
AMCs, manpower planning, budgeting, raw materials, spares, consumables etc.

Arrangement or understanding with major shareholders, customers, suppliers or others

All the directors of our Company are Nominees of the Govt. of India vide Order No. F.No0.4(3)/2022-NMDC dated 17.10.2022

Remuneration of Directors

Our Directors do not receive any remuneration from our Company.

Changes in the Board of Directors in the last three years preceding the date of this Information Memorandum

There are no changes in the Board of Directors in the last three years preceding the date of this Information Memorandum except
for the change as per the directions of the Govt. of India vide Order No. F.No0.4(3)/2022-NMDC dated 17.10.2022.

Service contracts

Our Company has not entered into any service contracts, pursuant to which it’s Directors and Key Management Personnel are
entitled to benefits upon termination of employment.

Bonus or profit-sharing plan of our Directors

None of our Directors are a party to any bonus or profit sharing plan by our Company.
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Loans to Directors

Our Company has not granted any loans to its Directors.

Shareholding of our Directors in our Company

The Articles of Association do not require the Directors to hold any qualification shares. As on the date of this Information
Memorandum, none of our Directors hold any Equity Shares.

Confirmations
None of our Directors have been identified as a willful defaulter (as defined in the SEBI Regulations).

None of our Directors is or was a director on the board of listed companies that have been / were delisted from any stock
exchanges in India.

None of our Directors have been or are a director on the board of any listed company whose shares are / were suspended from
trading on BSE, CSE and / or NSE for a period of five years prior to the date of this Information Memorandum.

Borrowing Powers of our Board

The Board at its meeting held on 15.10.2022 has passed the following resolution for the working capital requirements of the
company.

Quote
‘To request NMDC (Demerged entity) to seek Sanction of working capital limits from bank, preferably SBI, exclusively for NSL

(Resulting entity) by evaluating the eligibility amounts on the basis of the financials of NISP (Demerged undertaking).
Unquote

The company at present has no borrowings and the borrowing powers of the Board are embedded in the Articles of Association of
the company

Corporate Governance

The provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations with respect to corporate governance will be applicable to our Company
immediately upon the listing of Equity Shares on the Stock Exchanges. Our Company is currently not in compliance with the
requirements of applicable regulations, specifically the SEBI Listing Regulations, the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI
Regulations, to the extent applicable, in respect of corporate governance particularly in relation to constitution of the Board and
committees of our Board. The corporate governance framework is based on an effective independent Board, separation of the
Board’s supervisory role from the executive management team and constitution of the Board committees, each as required under
law.

We do not have an independent women director on our Board which is required in compliance with the Companies Act and the
SEBI Listing Regulations.

Committees of the Board

The Company is currently in the process of complying with the requirements of the SEBI Listing Regulations, including the
constitution of the committees of the Board required under the SEBI Listing Regulations.

Policies

Our Company shall formulate policies in accordance with the applicable provisions of the SEBI Listing Regulations and other
applicable laws.

Interests of Directors

All Directors may be deemed to be interested to the extent of sitting fees payable to them for attending meetings of the Board or

committees of the Company or its subsidiaries as well as to the extent of reimbursement of expenses payable to them under the
Articles.
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The Directors may also be deemed to be interested in the Equity Shares, if any, held by them and/ or any Equity Shares that may
be held by their relatives or companies, firms and trusts, in which they are interested as directors, members, partners, trustees,
beneficiaries and promoters and in any dividend distribution which may be made by our Company in the future.

Key Management Personnel —

For details of the brief profile of our Directors, please see “Our Management — Brief profiles of our Directors” on page 72.

None of our Key Management Personnel are related to each other. Further, none of our Key Management Personnel have been
appointed pursuant to any arrangement or understanding with major shareholders, customers, suppliers or others.

Shareholding of Key Management Personnel

None of our KMPs hold any Equity Shares.

Bonus or Profit-Sharing Plan of the Key Management Personnel

None of our Key Management Personnel are a party to any bonus or profit sharing plan.
Payment or Benefit to Officers of our Company

No non-salary related amount or benefit has been paid or given within two years from the date of this Information Memorandum,
or is intended to be paid or given, to any of our Company’s officers, including the Directors and Key Management Personnel.
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Management Organization Structure

As on the date of this Information Memorandum, our management organization structure is as below:

ED, NISP

GM (Services)

GM (Mech.) GM _ DM (Met.) AGM (IE)
(Commercial)
| | | |
EMC, Gas Safety, RMD Central Lab PPC MECON
Fuel and Gas Contracts

Network, Prepane
Storage &
distribution, ACVS
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AGM (Env.) DGM (C& IT) DGM (Civil)
|
Environment, C&IT, Town
SO Telecommunication, Engineering &
Plant Network Maintenance,
Township STP,

horticulture etc.




DGM
(Mech)

TSC-HSM
Steel
loading
platform

DGM

GM GM
(Mech) (Chem) (Civil)
DGM DGM DGM DGM AGM DGM AGM AGM NA DGM AGM AGM AGM
(Chem) (Mech) (Chem) (Met) (Elec) (Mech) (Civil) (Civil) (Elec) (Elec) (Elec) (Elec)
v WA N v W v v W \/ v v W W v
Plant Civil Plant Water Traffic & Power
Coke Oven Central . RMhS Maintenan Storm Supply Railways, Central distributio Instrumentation
Maintenan By Product Blast sinter ce, STP Water Package weighbridg electrical Power and and Automation
' ce Plant Furnace, Plant éate ! Di | e Plant n System, blowing
i isposal, L tructi
W Mechanical hot 'S@?I complex, Boundary Structural llluminatio cn:]n;or\t;cerlo station, TB
sandpit  § d DG
(CMM), ED wall, shop L township and
Central ZLD s:an.tral Complex CERS, Area Liasioning electrical station
esign, { e e Shop | ] substation
""""""""""""""" Vehicles, office,
Conveyor Central Lab
maintenan building e
ce, | e
Power
Garange, . .
“MID Engineering
f & CHMS
Constwater
& Mobile
Equipment
v

Compressed Air Station Tube &hyd
cell, Plant Lifts, Tools and Tacklers

v

Spare Management Dept, IPPL, Crane
Engg and maintenance & Petrol ;
Diesel station
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ED, NISP

AGM (Mech.)

Scrap & Salvage

GM (Met)
DGM (Elec.) AGM (Mech.) AGM (Elec) Not available
| | | | |
SMS LDCP Oxygen Plant Refractory dept
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OUR PROMOTER, PROMOTER GROUP AND GROUP COMPANIES

Promoter and Promoter Group
Our Promoter is the President of India, acting through the Ministry of Steel, Government of India. As our Promoter is the
President of India, acting through the Ministry of Steel, Government of India, disclosures and confirmations in relation to the

Promoter Group (as defined in regulation 2(1)(pp) of the SEBI ICDR Regulations), as specified in Schedule V of the SEBI
Regulations have not been provided.

Group Companies

As on the date of this Information Memorandum, we do not have any Group Companies.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

Our Company has not declared any dividend in the past three years. We do not have a dividend policy as on the date of
Information Memorandum.
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SECTION VI: FINANCIAL INFORMATION

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF THE FINANCIAL CONDITIONS AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

Prior to the Company being a Resultant Company consequent upon the Scheme of Arrangement, it was a wholly owned subsidiary
of NMDC Limited without any significant operations or activities. Hence, there is no Management Discussion & Analysis of the
Financial Conditions and Results of Operations for the company for the financial year 2021-22 and for the Half Year ended
September 30, 2022.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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o T W | pree
|
i

31 March 2022|

ERT Prperty
" intangble assets |
assets under development
wancial assets

1} Investments

i Trace receivables

iii} Leans

iv) Other financial assets
BiDeferred tax assets (net]
h]Other non-Current ascets
Total non-cmrent ascets

Current assets
a)Inventories
blFinancial assets

i} Invesbments

fii] Trade receivables

[iif) Cach and cash equivalents i[a)

] Other bank balances

{v] Loans

(i) Other Anancial essets 3] 162 -
c)Current tax assets{Met) - -
d}Ocher current azeets
Total current assets

4,632,568 38,015

4,623,730 39,015

Taotal assets 463,730 3IN015

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity ) g
a)Equlty sharc capital 4 [a) 11,00,000 6,00,000

b]Other equity 4] (6,83.470] [5,91,835]
Equity attributable to owners 416,530 8,165

Liabilites
a)Financial liakdlites

[} Borrowings

[1.a] Lemse Liabilitles

i) Trade payables

(iii) Other financial liabilides.
b]Provisions
¢)Deferred tay labilitdes (net) L

d)0ther non-current Habilities
“Total nan-current lakhilides

Current liabilities
#)Financial liabilities
(i) Borrowings

(i.a) Lease Liskilities -

[if] Trade payables

Total cusstancing dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises

Total cutswanding dues af creditors other than micno enterprises and small saserprig - .

[iil} Other financial lisbiites 5] 43,700 30,850
b)Other current liabilities 5[] 3,500 -
c)Provisions
d)Current tax Babilities{Net)
Total current liabilites

47,200 20,850

Total eguity a Lirie 463,730 39,015

The above balence sheet shouid be read [n conjurction with the aecompanyiag Rotes
As per our report on standalone financial statements of even date attached

For M/s. N.G Ran & Associates Forand on behalfof the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants NMDC Steel Limited L
FR No: 093995

{Amltava M [23] {Somnath Nandi)
Directar Director
DIN:OE265207 DIN:OERS9 169

Memhership No: 207300

Flace: Hyderabad
Date: 08.062022
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PG

'I'_1.|:-e._:||.:-.': |

Cost af muteriak comsuned l = = :
Puschase of Ssock-in-Trade '

(Chenpes in jivenlomies of finished poods, gock in tmde and workin-propes:

Empilnyes benefits experse

Finance Costs P
Deprecistion and amortisation expense o i
iher expenses 7 93319 039
| Taieal expemees 9319 i 038
Lozt before :mﬂmljmu'ﬂd 13% [9],635) (72317
Exceptional jtems -
Lass: before tax [91,635), 72,317
Inceane ax expenss

Curren: tax -

Deferred tax eredit - =
Laes fior the year from continuing operafions (91 ,635) [72317)

Profitfloss) fram discontinued tinas
BX CAPENSE O efinued operations i =

Profitkkoss) from discontinaed operations!sfier tax) §
Ligs for the yesr (P LAITH [1L317]
cuﬂ]ua‘lmnﬁwc mome
oTﬁmmﬂmmm he reclassified to peofit or loss - -
(i1) Income tax relyting i ems thar will not be reclassified to profit or boss
B (i) Hems that will bs reclissified 1o prafit or loas
|t} Imoorae tax nelbing b0 Joeme that sl be reclazeifisd to profit or less
Tous| comprehensive lnss for the year
Eamung per equity stare - (for costinming cpemticns)

(91,6350 {72,317)

[Basic . 4 {0.54) (20
|Bilusd i 14 LY .31
Earning per squity sharc -(for dissoatiued opemdons)
Bagic

| Dilutzd " .
Enrming per equity share ~{for discontinued & continuing opsratioos) d

Basic 14 {004) 121}
Dilated
14 (0,84} (LE1)

The above sfatement af proyft and loss Thould be read s cony wizh pha GECaMpaTIiNg RO

dalone £ fal of even date attached

AS per our report on

Fer and en behalf of the Board of Direciors of
NMDC Sieel Limited

-
[Arsiava Muher|es) Kandl)
Directer Director
DIN:0SE5516%

DINADBZESTOT

FurMI:.N:G Roe & Aseocinfes
Chartered Accountants
FE No: (93995

Flace: Hyderabad .
Trate: D8.06.2022
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NMDCS

I 11 March 2022

tulemend of eash flow for the year o
||. A1 amoieniz are in lndian RBupeas except for share data or otherwise stated) |
_ ~ ) - .
. Year ended Vear ended)
EaTpEu | March 2022 31 March 2021
Cagh flow from operating aetivities
Loss before Lax (91.635) (72317)
Less: Interest income (7.684) {1,722
Operating loss before working capital adjustments (99 119} (74.059)
Warking capital adjustments
{Decrease)/Increase in other finawcial Habilities 12,850 (4,720
Increases { Decrease) in other current liabilitics 3.500 -
Net eash used in operating activities {82,965) (T8,759)
Cash Mow from investing activities
Interest income 7.522 1,917
Met cash fromfused in Investing Activities 7.522 1817
Financing activifies
Proceeds from issue of shares 500,000 "
Met cash flows Trem financing activities 5,00,0a0 -
Met increase! (decrease)in cash and cash equivalents during the year 4,24 553 (76,842
Cash and cash eguivalents at the beginning of the yvear 3015 1.15,857
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 463,568 39015
Cash & cash equivalents 25 per node 3(z) 4,563,568 39,015

Note: The previous figures have been rearvanged/regrouped wherever necessary fo confirm current year classification,

As per our report on standalone financial statements of even date sttached

For and on behalfl of the Board of Directors of

For M/s. N.G Rao & Associates
Chartered Aceountints NMDC Steel Limited
FR No: 003095 i a2
(Amitava Mukbprjec) (Semneth Nandi)
Dirvector Director
DIN:DB265207 DIN:08£59169

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 08.06.2022
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Mote Mo Tl
D 4 {1}
e
'h}. at ol ,"l.:r:ll 2] 4 [a
Changes io equity share capstal 4 {a)
Az ar 31 March 2022 o {
B. Oilver equity
Particulars Note Nao Reserves and surplus Tistal
Eetained earninps
Balance as a1 1 April 2020 (5,19,515) (5,19,518)
Loss for the year 4 (b} (72,317] (72,317)
Balance a1 31 March 2021 (3,91 835) (5,91 835)
Particulars Mote Mo Reserves and surplus Total
Retained earnings]
Belance as 2t 01 April 2021 (5,91 K35 {5,91,833)
Loss for the yesr 4 (b) {91 635) {91,635)
[Balance at 31 Mareh 2022 (6,83 470} (6,83 470)

Place: Hyderabad
Diate: 08062022

As per our repart on slandalone fnancial statements of even date atiached
For Mis. N.G Rao & Associates
Chartered Aceountants

FR No: 053008 .

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
NMDC Steel Limited

(Sommath Mandi)
Director
DIN:0BZ65207 DIN:0BE59169
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SIZNIIICANT SCCOUITIRE POUCIes and Motes g ag

b)

c)

€)

Mote-1: Corporate Information: -

NMDC Steel Limited (‘NSL’) is a company incorporated on 02.01.2015 having its
registered office at NMDC Steel Ltd. C/0 NMDC Iron & Steel Plant, Post: Nagarmnar,
Disti. Bastar, PIN-494001(C.G), India. The Company is a 100% Subsidiary of NMDC
Limited. The CIN of the company is U27310CT2015G0OI001618.

Note 2. Significant Accounting Policies: -

Status of compliance

The standalone financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards (“Ind AS™) notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 2016 and 2017 and relevant amendment rules issued thereafter

and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Basis of measurement:

The standalone financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention
and on an accrual basis.

Functional and presentation currency:

The standalone financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the functional
currency of the Company and the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates.

Use of estimates and judosement:

The preparation of standalone financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses.
Actual results may differ from these estimates,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on & periodic basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and

in any fofure periods affected.

Financial instruments:
All finaneial instruments are recognized initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are

attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset (other than financial assets recorded o
fair value through profit or loss) are included in the fair value of the financial assets,

1
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For the purpose of subsequent measurement, finaneial instruments of the Company are
classified in the following categories: non-derivative financial assets comprising
amortized cost; non-denvative financial liabilities at amortized cost.

The classification of financial instruments depends on the ohjective of the business model
for which it is held. Management determines the classification of its financial instruments

at initial recognition.

i] Non-derivative financial assets:
A financial aseet shall be measured at amortized cost if both of the following conditions

are met:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial
assets 0 order to collect contractual cash flows and

« the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the prineipal amount outstanding

They are presented as current assets, except for those maturing later than 12 months afier
the reporting date which are presented as non-cuirent assets, Financial assets are measured
initially at fair value plus transaction costs and subsequently carried at amortized cost using

the effective interest method, less any impairment loss,

Amortized cost is represented by cash and cash equivalents and eligible current and non-
current assets.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in banks and demand deposits with banks which
can be withdrawn at any time without prior notice or penalty on the principal.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivelents include cash in
banks and demand deposits with banks, '

ii) Non-derivative financial liahilities
Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Financial liabilities at amortized cost represented by trade and other payables are initially
recognized at fair value, and subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective

interest method.

f) Property plant and equipment:

Recognition and measurement: Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less
accumulated depreciatjon and impairment losses, if any. Cost includes expenditures directly

attributable to the acquisition of the asset.
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Depreciation: The Company depreciates property, plant and equipment over the estimated
usctul life of the assets as prescribed 1n Schedule 11 of the Companies Acl 2013 on a straight

line basis from the date the assets are ready for intended use. Depreciation is charged on pro-
maonth for acquisition/commissioning and last day of the month for disposals. Wherever the
useful life is determined by technical assessment for certain assets, such assets are
depreciated as per their assessed life,

g) Provisions

All the provision are recognized as per Ind AS 37. Provisions are recognized when the
Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefiis will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable  estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation,

When some or all of the economic benefits required to setile, a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, the receivable is recognized as an asset, if it iz virtnally certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured

reliably.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefits to be derived by
the Company from a contract are lower than the unavoidable costs of meeting the future
obligations under the contract, Provisions for onerous contracts are measured at the present
value of lower of the expected net cost of fulfilling the contract and the expected cost of

ierminating the coniract,

h) Finance income
Finance income consists of interest income on funds invested, Interest income is recognized as

it accrues in the statement of profit and loss, using the effective interest method.

As per our Report of even date attached

For M/s. N G Rao & Associates Far and on Behalf of the Board
of NMDC Stee] Ltd.

{Amitava Mukherjee) (Somnath Nandi )
Director i Director
DIN:08265207 DIN:08B59169

Place: Hyderabad
Date: 08.06.2022
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*less than three months
3] Orher financial assels
I

| Particulars

Imterest acerued

Az ai
31 March 2022]

As at)

162

31 March 2021

| Total ather financial asseis

1al

4 Equity share capital and ather equity

4 (n) Equity share espltal

Authoriged equity share capital - Equity ehares of Rs 10 each

eartipuiare Number of shares Amaunt
As at 01 Apeil 2020 3,000,600 30,00,000
Increase during the year - -
As at 31 March 2021 3,000,000 30,00,0040
Increase during the vear - -
As at 31 March 2{22 3,000,000 30,00,000
Issued, Subscrbed & Faid up

Ag at As ot
Partieulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2021
Equity shares of Fa.10 each 11,00,000 00,000
(1,10,000 ghares s on 31.03.2012)
(60,000 shares as on 31.03.2021)
(i) Moverents in eguity share capital
Partculars MNumber of shares A i
As gt 01 April 2020 60,000 6,00,000
Increase during the year Z &
Asat 3] March 2021 60,000 £,00,0:0
Increase during the year 50,000 500,000
As at 31 March 2022 1,010,000 11,00,000
Lermstight avtached 7 cquity ghares

Note: Terms/Rights attached to equity shares: The Company hes only one class of equity shares having par valae of Bs, 10¢- each and eash holder of equity sheres is

eatitled for one vote per share.

(i) Shaver of the Compmny held by holding company

As at 31 Mareh 2021

Partculars Asat 31 March 2022

= (oo of shares ) (amounf)(Bs.)| (no of shares ) (amount)(Rs.)
Equity shares of Rs. 105 each fully paid up beld by
Huolding Compayy - NMDC Limited 1,10,000 11,00,000 60,000 6,00, 00

* Inchusive af 200 shares held by nominess of KMDC Limited

(it} Detalls of shareholders helding more than 5% shares in the Company(inciuding their neminees)
; As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2022
Name of the shareholder Mo.efshares % halding | No.of shares % holding
Eguity shares of Rs. 10/ sach fully paid-up :
NMDC Limited 1,10,000 1004 60,000 100%
1,10.000 100% G0, 000 100%:
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| Financial Liabilitles
S(a) Other financlallabllitles . . o
| | Asat As al
FPurticulars I 31 March 2022 31 Marel 2031
Tayzhles fir cxpenses | 43,700 | 30,850 |
Taotal pther fnancial lizbilities | 43,700 | 30850 |
& (b} Other current liahilities
As at As at]
Farticulars 31 March 2032 31 March 2021
Stameon duss 31,500 N
[ atal ofher corrent Liabilitics 3, 5N} -
¢ Giher Income
Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2012 31 March 2021
Interest earnad an bank depasits 7,684 112
Tutal other income 7,684 - 1,mn
T Oher expenses
Year ended Year ended
Particulars 31 March 2022 31 March 2021 -
Consulisncy Fes 310 35,590
Ststtory audit fee(refer note Tia) below) 35,100 28,500
Limited Review Fes 20,400 .
Bank charges 640 640
Filing Fex 2,500 2000
Ingnme tax return prepartion and fling fee 5,900 5,804
Total other expenses 59,319 74039
Detalls of payments to guditers
Year ended Year ended
31 March 2022 31 March 2421
7 (&) | Particulars
Payment to auditors
As audltor
Audit fes 25,000 25,000
Re-imbursement of GET 8,100 4,500
Total payments to auditors 33,100 29,500
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| 10018
Tod e T 1 T 300 |
Financlal Babltides F |
Bemonings t = -
Tracl: payshles - - 1 3 | |
Chiier faemial HubSoes - 43,708 o | - 30,858
Total - -] FER - | "

The carrying emoums of ¢ash and caeh equivilents sod other dnxnciah Hahilines are congideed vo be (e §ims as el G vaiuss, due o their Shon-1en oo, Lisbiloks sach s
Swtutory liabEies a5 om 31 Masch W32 s 31 Miarchi 2031 are 20t inchod=d
4 Financial rick mapagemenl

) Risk managumant framenrk

The cotmpesy’s boand of dirsctors hrve the overall respensiziliy for the esablishmen d ovaright of the tompany's rid merscement fameverk.

The comrpuny o fr frz inception sage and i & the process of sstting up sigk nesenes i palicies simed 1o ifetify md aabyge the risks fared by 1be comopeny, 1o s2t pproprize
rask [l end coatrals end o moninr risks md adherencs to Tt Cracs i plsce, the risk memagenmit policies mnd sysiens woold be reviswed pepulerhy 1o refisct chenges i
ket copditions emd the compumy™s arfivities

The Commpary has gwpedeere 1 the fellswing rid erising fom Sl ipommens:

sk re mrising fram
Credit risk Cash and cpsh eqeivalmes
Liquidiy risk Other finssciad Eabilitics |
A Cradif risk
Cradh risk fs the rak ther cosmterperty will mot meet its cblipstioas under a fnmrisl nsmument oo costorer comract, Iradizg to 2 fnecisl b,
Clorly deperrin
As ol 31 Mach 2023, the e eaed oo coch equbenienes of the Comsany ere with Steee Boek of Iedia, Hydesabad 0t beleg & kishdy roed snd & resoinble rinnian, dhe eredi
ritk e s regpard is 1 oot be
B. Liqubdicy risk

Lo iy risk: is e ek daat the Company will encounter difacsity i massthng the obligeicar atsocined with ix Snancial Fabiitier thet are sectied by defivering cash or anotier]
finemecied 23051, The Compim”s epproach in renaging Lipudiy & 1o cunare, & far 65 possils, that & will have selfeicn Hguidin o me s Habilites when they are des, unds)
otk normal ind sreiecd ceadidas. g

eemres than § hes spffizient eash oo demimd o meet the et #ad the rpacksd operatioas] Expeaiss snd dues fior the

Far servizing the fnomcis! nhigsions, the comy
fmeradiste shoct tecw perind.

. Metwities ¢f financtal liehider

‘The Caspany's faenci Bzbilties comprises of pryable to NMDIC Limfied e=d other operesig expeases.

As o 31 Mareh 3022 '

IMamrities of fimmdial Oodemand  NotDue  Lessthand  Jmesthsto6  Feyond 6 months Tutal

|manities montls meaiths

From MMWDC Limized = ‘ = = - -
(e . - A3 TH = - 43,700
Ag mm 31 Mareh 1020

MaturiSes of Gnzncial o demand Mot Doe Ly thns § 3 months e § Beyoad & meaths Tatzl

Habilities months muonths

From NWDIC Limeed - - - . . =
[—— . - 30,850 - . 3050

10 Capital manogement

Rl mansprmiii
The Boand's objactive i 10 meinen 2 groog Cupilal bess in the fong rus so 28 10 main sekchelleors confidace 2 10 sestein frtme developeeen of'the basioess. The
perutivnn "

Compeny isyut to commense it

The Co s detd i e o ml e e of e serin ind] w5 fllows:

Al At
1 plarch 2uazy 31 March 3031

45200 30,850

(863,568 Ba1e)
(8,18 368) 18182

4, 1653 & 165
100 £1.00;
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Hediling Compny

rosninel (Mirgvinrs)

b1 Trenzscelons wiih noment entity:
ch Dugs o parest iy

{ oty
| Partiouliss

Agag s at
ET Mlareh 200T AT Marels 2020

Bezimaing of ke year I
Addiars

Re-pnaieals

Closing at the year ond

12 Contingent Habiligics

g Cleims. it the compaany oo ackignlsied as debes : KA1 hdarch 2021 Wil)
B} The epsspany bas mot Esusd my cotporate guarantes o Brawr of 1 group eoems

13 Commimmenis ;
B 4 smemst af emuinisg 10 be evstuted sa capital seegie - Nil (31 Masch 2021 K2 )

14 Earnkags per share
Bitic errnmet per ihare moum are calrolmed by dividing the frofi for the veir strbutable 1 againy halder o the Comgamy by the weghted avessge mimber of Equaty charss

caranding duriap the yer,
Diktted eamings per Shire SmOounts are cilewims] by dividng 1he prof aftributable bo equity bokders of the parcat (er afjustng [or mloes! oo the comartiblie poefirence shores)
by the ighied peengs mumber of Equity sherey etnmiding dirig the year pius the weiphted avconge susiler of Bxuity sharss (hat wondd be liwsed oo comversion oF all the
dilwiive pooendiad Baudty shares into Equiny shanes.

Farticelurs As al As ui|
% FMarshaoial 3 March MNGI

Frofs atiributatle to squity bolders of e Comnay [PI,625) [F.3IT)
40,000

Wzl gverane auEnter of egulty shares outstandion durne the peried 1,808
- s dibied 03 (131}

Tee Commpany doesn’t bave uoy potentially dikative shares for the vesr ended 31 harch 2003 and 31 March 2031,
15 Diselymares ender the Misro, Small snd Madlem Enterprises Act, 2606
The Company dosin’) have ey anounts payabis 10 Micro, Smell and Medion Enspriss.

16 The previows Squres have been résrrmgsdregrouped wherever necascary to confim rurent year clesrifization
17 MMIDC Lad. (Holdisg af NMDC Stisel L8, ) in i 533nd mewiing of the Boasd of Dhrscions b on 17.08 2000 eccarded in-principal approval for-demerger of MMDC

Tron & Steel Plasi(NISF) fmo WMDC Sieel Ligd

A pr iir Tepor on stasdslone Ssancal malemints of eeen daie aeached
For bl's. K.G R & Asoclates Forand om betmll of e Beard W Direstars of

Chartered] Atconntanis - Siee] Limined
B Mo 093955 d

[Amitava Mukhetiag (Semaats ¥andi)
Direcor Directar
DIN:0BRG5207 DMN:E0ET169
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Ipdcpoendent Auwcditor s e

Tothe Members of
MM Steel Limites]
Report on the standalone lind AS Guancial statencnls

C}pimlinn

We have auchited the secompanying standalone lisd AS (inancial stiements of Mis, MMDC Steel Limited
(“the Company™) which comprise the Balance Sheet as ot Sepember 30, 2022, e Statement af Prodi
end Loss (including (hher Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Siatemend, the statement of changes in
ity fior the half year ended and summary of significanl acooumling policies and other explanaioey
information.

In vur opmion and to the best of our infonmation end sccording o e explanalions given e us, the
aforcaaid financial stalements give the information requised by the Act, 2003("the Act™) in the manner 5o
vequired and pive a tue and fir view in conformity with the Indian Accmmting Standards prescribed
under section 133 of the Act rend with companies {Indian Accouing Suandards) Rules, 2005 a5 amended,
{“Tnd AS™) dmel other accounting principles gencrally accepted in India, of the state of affaire of the
Company as g1 Seplember 30, 2022, and it insmcand performanes including ofher comprehens ive incomee,
ite Cach Flow and the changes in equity for the hall year endel on that date,

This Auwdit report issued for specific porpose of the Management and shall not be meant for any othe

PuTposs.
Basis for opinion

We conducted owr audit of the Ind AS financin] statements in pecordance with the standads on Auditing
specificd wnder sectiom 145100 of the Aot (SAs). Our responaibilides inder those Sandards are further
duscribed in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the audit of the nd A% financial statements section of aur
Teport, We ane independent of the company in accordance with the esde of Ethics issued by the Institnie of
Chartered Accountants of India ([CAT) together with the independence requitements that are relevant (o
aur audit of Ind AS finaicial statements umder the provisions of the Act and the Rules made (here under,
and we have fulfilled our other ethicol responaibilities in aceordanee with these requirements and (e
ICAL"S code of Ethics. We helieve it the audil evidence we have obtained is sufTicient and apgaropeiale
provide a basia for out audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements,

Key Auwdii Malters

Koy audit imatiers are those matters that, in our professionn | judpement, were of mest sipnificance i our
audil of the Tnd AS financial stalements of the current hall vear ended. These maiters were acldressed in
the context of our wedit of the Ind AS financial statements as o whole, and in forming an opinion thereon,
and we de not provide & separate opinion on these matiers. We have nothing 1o repost in this regaord

Information Other than the Btandalone Financial Statements and Auditor®s Heport Thereon

The Compeny's Board of Dircctore iz responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information incladed in the Manogement Discussion and Analysiz, Bosrd's™ Report
including Anmexures to Board's Repor, Business Responsibility Repor, Corporate Gowernance and
Sharcholder’s information but does ool inchede the financial statements and our suditor's report thersan,

Our vpinion on the finuncial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
Torm of assurance eoncluesion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the standalone financial stotements, our responsibility is to read the ather
infermaiion ard, in doing so, consider whether the other infarmation is materially ineonsistent with the

H.Mo. 6-3-11B4/A/5, (New No.325) D.No. 39-16-4B/5 “H.No. 8-22-5{1, FF3

2nd Floor, Chinno Balreddy Bullding, Garuda Hotel Lane, (o == \ Maeladr Towers, Paliabi Sireet,
Adjocant Lane to TG Kakaliya Hotel, Labbipet, ¥ i=anchl Nogar,

Bagumpet, Hyderabad-500 014, Vijayawada - 5 akinada - 533 004,

E-mdil : nageswararaog 207 @gmail.com § noge
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landalone Howmcal statemens or oue knowledee sbtomsd durmg e course of our audil or otherwise

appuears o b moterially misssied,

IT, based on the work we hive performmed, we conelude tha there is o material misststement of dis oher
i Formation, we are required Lo repor al St We have nodhing o repart in his regard,

Managemem’s Respansihility far the Finaneial Statemconts

The Company’s Heard of Directors is responsible for e matiers stated in Section 1343 of e
Cormpanics Act, 2003 (“the Act™ with respect o the preparation of these Ind A5 financial siziements
give u true and fair view of the lnancial position, financial performance including other comprehensive
incanne, cash Thews aml chanpes in equity of the Company in aecordance with the Ind AS and sther
sccounting principles geoerally accepted in Iodia. This responsibility alse includes maintenance of
ndequate accounting records m accordance with the provisions of the Act for sfeguarding the asses of e
Compary and for preventing and detecting frauds and other ireanlorities; selection and application of
appropriate aceounting policies, making judgments and cstimates that are reagonable and pradesd; and
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate intemal Tinancial controls, thal wene operating
effectively for ersuring the sccuracy and eempleleness of the ncoounting recoeds, relewanl ia the
preparation and presentation of the sandalone Tnd AR financial statements that give o nse amd Tair view
and are free from material misstatement, whether due o frmsd or errar.

Im preparing the standafone Groncial satements, management & esponsible for nssessing the Company’s
ability continue as a going concern, disclosing as applicable, matlers related to going concern and wsing
the going concern basis of accounting unless menagement either intends o liquidate the Company o1 o
CCass Operalions, or has no replistic allemative but b do so

The Board of Dircetors are responsible for oversceing the Company™s financial reporting process,
Anditor's Responsibiliny

Chir objectives are w abtaiit reasonable assurance aboul whether the Ind AS Financiol siatements a5 a
whole are free Trom material misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error, and to issne an audidor's reporl
that includes our opinion. Reasonsble assumnce is o high level of assurance, but is not o guarariee thal an
audit eonducted in sccordance with SAs will always detest o mterial misstatement when it exists,
Missialements can arise from fravd or error and are considered material if, individually or in aggrepate,
they could reasonably be expecied 1o influence the cconomic decisions of users taken on basis of these Tnd

AS Tinancial slatements,

As part of an audit in sccordonce with 84z, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
seepticiam throughout the audit. We also:

#  Tdentily and asscss the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial stalements, whether
due to frand or error, design and perform sudit procedures respansive (o these risks, and obiain
audit evidence thit is sufficient and appropriate  provide bosis for our opinion, The rigk of nol
dedoeting a moterial misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for ene resulting from eror,
ns froud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional smissions, misrspresenttions, or the override
of internal contral.

& Obtain an wnderstonding of ivterna) financiol controls relevant te the audit in order o design sudit
procedares that are appropeiate in the circumstances, Under section 14303900 of e Acl, we are
also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal
financial controls sysiem in place and the operating effectivencss of such controls.

+  Evalunte the approptistensis of scoounling policics ussd and the reasonahleness of pocounting
eatimates and related disclosures made by management,
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= Conclude the appropriotencss of management’s s of the pedng concem Basis of aceowing and
based on the avdit evidence obtained, whether 5 msierial oncerfainty exists related o evenls o
comditions thal may cast significan db on e Company's ability e continue as a poing
concern. I we eonclude that o material uncertiny exesis, we are required 10 draw attention oo
auditors reporl 1o e related disclosures in e slandalone finaneial silements -or, 11 such
digelosures are inndegquate, W modily our apinicen, Our eonebigiom are based on s audin evideace
abtaimed up 1o date of oor auditer's report. Nowever. future events or coditions may cause the
Company lo cease Lo conline as a going ocei.

s Iovaluate the overall presemation, siracture pd content of the sfandalone fmancial statements,
inclading the disclosures, and whether the standalone Anascial salements represent the wnderlying
transaciions and events i g manner thet achieves far presentatoomn

Materiality 15 the magninsde of misstatemants in the stndalone Gnancial statements that, individually orin
aggrepale. makes it probable that the economic decisions of a easonably knowledgeable user ol the
financial statcaments may be influenced. We consider quantitative matcrielity and qualitative facliors m 1)
planning the scope of owr andit work and in evalwating the reselts of our work; and (i} o cvaluace e
cifieet of ooy idernficd misstatements in te financial stacmens.

We communicale with those charged with governance regarding, among olher matlers, the planned scope
and fimding of the aucit and zignificant audit Godings, including any significant deficiencies o nternal

contro] that we identify during our sudit,

We also provide these charged with povermanes with o sizement thal we have complied with relevan
ethical requirements negarding independence, and to communicale with them all relationships and other
matters thas moay reasonably be thought (o bear on eur independence, amd where applicalile, related

sulcpuards,

From the matiers communicated with those charped with povernance, we determine those maters tha
were of most signilicance in the andit of the standalone financial statements of the current ball year embod
uned are therefore the key audit matiers, We describe these matters in owr swditor's report unless e o
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter of when, in extremely rare crrcunSanco:, we
detesinine that 2 matter should not be communicated in our repont beesse the adverse conscquences of
doing sowould rensonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Repolstory Regoirements
1. Asvequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

@)We have sought amd obtoined all the fnfcmation ond explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and bodiel were necessary for the purposes of our audil,

biIn aar opimien, proper books of pecount as required by [ have been kept by the Compamy so faras
it appsears from our exsmination of those booke,

cd The Balance Sheet, the Stetement of Profit and Loss ncludimg Other Cemprehensive Ineosme,
Staternent of Changes in Equity and the Stsement of Caosh Flow deall with by this Report ore in
agreement with fhe relevant books of aceount.

d) In oar apenign, the aforesald standalone fnancial statements comply with the Ind AS specified
under Seetion 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies {heoounts] Rules, 2004,

e}l O the basis of wrilten nepresentations received from the directors as on September 34, 2022 taken
on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified az on Seprember 30, 222
from being appeinted ag 8 director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. =
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Wit respect to the adegquacy of the ntamal Neemosl coamrals aver Tinancial |.L'.|:r::-J1i|'.|_:_ ol the
Compiny and the operating effectivencss of such costrols, mefer e oor scpamie oot m
“Ammexure BY Cur report expeesses an unmodilicd opinion on the sdequacy andl operating
elfectiveness of the Company's imternnl financial comials aver limancial I‘|:|mllil'|g.

With respect 1a the other matters w be included inothe Auditer's Report in accordarce with the
requirements of section |97(16) of the Act, as amended: In car opimion and o the best ol cur
indornation and secording to the explanmtions piven 1o us, e remunerstion has been pad by the
Coampormy o ils directors during the hall year

{i} The manapement has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other than as
disclesed in the notes of accownts, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested [gither
from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds] by the company 1o
or in any other personis| or entity(ies), incleding foreign entities {(Intermediaries”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or atherwise, thal the intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in amy manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ulimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantes,
security or the I&e on behalf of the Ulimate Beneficiaries;

(ii}The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and bellef, otfer than as
disclosed in the notes to the accounts, o funds have been receivad by the cormpany from any
persanis) of entity|ies), ncluding Toreign entities {"Funding Parties"], with the understanding,
whet her recorded inwriting or otherasise, that the compamy shall, whether, directly or indirecthy,
lend ar Invest in other persons oF entities [dentifled in any manner whatsoever by or an behalf of
the Funding Party |“Ultimate Beneficlaries” | or provide any guarantae, security or the like on

be halfl of the Ulimate Beneflciarles; and

(lil] Based on such audit procedures that the auditor has considered reasonable and appropriate
In the circumstances, nothing has come to thelr notice that has caused them to believe that the
rapresentations under sub-clause (i) and (i} contain amy material mis-statement,

Ho dividend has been declared / paid during the half year, accordingly provisions of section 123
of the Act, are not applicable.

11 With respect to the sther mallers b be included in the Awditer’s Report in accordance with Rule 11

i

of the Companies (Auwdit and Aoditors) Bules, 2004, es amended 10 our opinion and to the bes of
our information amd aceording 1o the explanations given 1o us:

i)  The Company dees not have pending litigations which would impact its financial position.

it} The Company did not bave any leng-lenm contracts mefuding denvadive contracis for which
thire were any material foreseeable losses.

i) There are no amounts which are required 1o be transferred, fo the Investor Edwecotion and
Pratection Fumd by the Company,

A reguired by the Companies [Auditer’s Report] Order, 2020 (the Ordar™) issued by ghe Central
Giovermment in lerms of Section 14301 1) of the Act, we give in “Anbexure A" & stabement
on the matiers specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order,
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A As reduercad by section A3 ol the Act, we pive n “annexure=-C, o sislcment on e maners
specilicd by the comprroller and Auwditor-Goeneral of India for the company,

For Mis. N G Rao & Associntes
Chartered Aceaunianis

Firm Hegistration Muomise

Flace: Hyderabad
Diate: 15" Felwruary, 2023 Mlean hership Mo, 2073
DN 23007 300BCGY CLOESES
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Annexore-A do the Independent Anditors® Report (refeered io in paragraph 1ol ser Regsori of cven
date to the Members of “8is. NMDC Steel Linbted™ Tor the balf year ended Seplember 30, 2023

On the basia of such checks as we considensd approprinwe amd secording 1o the informaiion ami
explamation given o us during the cowrse of o ausdit, we repant tha;

{0 The Compony doesin’t have Fixed Assels, hence the Dischsure Bequirements under this © louse ane nol
applicalle.

(i) The Company deesn’t have loventory; henee the Discloswre Reguirenents under this Clause ae not
applicable,

(i) During the half year, the company has not macde any investmenis in, prowided any guarantee or
security or gramted any loans or advaneas in the nature of loans, seeured or unsescured, B companics, fitms,
Limited Liakility Partmerships or any other parfics. Thercfore, the provisions af clavse 3] of the said
Crrcler are ned applicable o ihe eompany.

{11 The company has neod made any loans, investments, puaraniees and security on which provisions of
section 1S and 1RG of the Campandes Act 2013 are applicable. Therefore, the provisions of elause 3(iv) of
the said Crder are nod apphieable to the company.

(¥} I our apinion and according fo the information and explanations given to ws, the Company has not
accopted any deposits from public. Thercfore, the provisions of Clause (v) of poragraph 3 of the order are
not appicable to the Company

(vi) Ax explained to us, the Central Gowvernment of India hos ned specified the maintenanee of cost reconds
umder sub-gaction (1) of Seclion 148 of the Act for any of the products of the Company. Therefore, the
provisions of Clanse (vi) of paragraph 3 of the ovder anz not applicahle to the Company.

(i) (&) The Company is generally regular in depositing umbisputed stattory dues including Provident
Fund, Employees State Insurance, Tncome tax, Sales Tax, Wealth tax, Service tax, Dty of Cusioma, duty
of Excise, Value Added Tax, GST, Cess and other stautory dues with the appropeiate authomities 1o the
exlent appficable to it There are no undisputed ammmiz payable in respect of income tax, weallh tax,
sorvice tax, sales tax, value added tnx, duty of customs, duly of cxcise o coss which have remained
cautstunding ns ot Seplember 30, 2022 for a lall year of more (hin 6 muendhs from the dote they became
payable. (b} Acconding 1o the informuion and explamations given o us, there are ol &y slEtuiory dies
refisrzd in sub- clouse (0) which heve not been deposited on accounmt of any dispute. Therefore, the
provigions of Clause (viiWb) of paragraph 3 of the order are not applicable to the Company.

[viii} In our cpinion and according to the information and cxplanations given to us, there s no any
transaction ot recosded in the books of acooumt have been surrendercd or disclosed aq inoome during the
half year im the tax nssessments under the Inceme Tax Ac, 1961 (43 of 1961,

(ix] (0] In aur apinion and aceoeding to the information and explanalions given to us, the Company has nol
defaulted in repayrent of any loan or other borrowings or amy interest due thereon to any lendar, (h) i our
opinion and acconling io the informaetion and explanations given (o us, the company has nol been a
declored wilful defaulice by any bank or financial institution or other kender. (c) In our cpinion and
acoording W the information and explanations given to us, the lnans were applied Tor the purpose for
which the leans were nbiained. (d) In our opinion and sceording 1o the infornation and explanations given
to s, there are no funds raised on shorl ferm basis which have been utilissd for long term pagoses, (2] In
o apinion and aceording fo the information and mtplanalmm given o us, the mnqar.ry huﬁ il Inkl:n I!II13|'

fisnnds fream an so ol account af ¢ ting a_-:--.._ midia 3
H.No. 6-3-1186/4/6, [New No.325) D.No, 39- mdm . '~.uf+} Nr.:r. 8- 22-5,'1 FE3
2nd Floor, Chinna Balreddy Bullding, Garuda Hotel Lane, [/ G N Eltlr:li'l Towars, Pattabl Streed,
Adjocant Lane lo ITC Kakativa Hotel, Lobbiped, =mndhi Magar,

Begumpsl, Hyderabod-500 015, Vilayawada - o aetinade - 533 004,
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joint wenlwres. (0 In our opinion and according to e oslermabion and explagitions given o us, the
cormpany his not raised loamns during the hall year on the pledge of secanties held o sabsalanes, o
VOILUINES o kil i.'\l::lTI'IrI:IIIiI'.'!-:.

(%] fa) The Company has nod raised money by way of initial public ofTer or further public offcr (mcluding
dehl instruments]. Thalore, the i’!-TI:Ik'iRi.'l}II.L ol s (3@ of paragraph 3 af the order are neg applicable
i ihe Company. (b1 In our opinicn and according o the nformation and explanatios given s us, the
company has made preferential allotmen or private placement of shares during the hallt wear aml the
requirements of section 42 and section 62 of the Companics Act, 2013 have heen complicd seih aml the
fzrds raised have beoy used for e purposcs Tor which the Tunds were caised.

(%1} (a) We have nol noticed any cose of (rwd by the company o any Fraad an the Cormgany by its ellicers
or employvecs duting the half year, The managemem has alse oot reported any case of fravd duTing the half
wear. (b Durng the half year no report ander sub-sechion [12) of gection 143 of the Companics Aol his
beei filed by the auditors in Foron ADT-4 as prescribed under role 13 of Companies (Audit and Awlitors)
RBules, 2004 with the Ceniral Govermment. (e] As aodilor, we did not recsive any whasile- hlawer

complaing during the half year.

(xii) The company is not a Midhi Company. Therelore, the provsions of Clawse (xil) of paragrigh 3 of the
oeder ave not applicable to the Compary,

{xiii} As per the information and explanations received to us ol iransactions with the related partes srem

campliomee with sestions 177 and 188 of Cempanica Act where applicable, and the details have been
disclesed in the financinl statements, e, as reguared by the applicable accounting, standards,
[dentification of related parties were made anmd provided by the management of the company.

(xiv) The company ie not covered by section 138 of the Companies Act, 2003, related to appomtmen ol
mbernal sudilor of the company. Therclore, the company is nol required to appoinied any intemmal auditor,
Therefore, the provisions of Clause (xiv) of paragraph 3 of the order are ool applicable to the Comnpany,

(%) The Company has not entered into any non-cash omsactions with direclors of perssns connected with
him for the half year ended under review. Therefore, the provisions of Clause (xv) of paragraph 3 ol e

order are not applicable o the Compeny,

{mvi) () The Company is nol requinsd o be registered under section 45-14 of the Reserve Bank of Indin
Act, 1934 (b) The company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities
during the half year, (¢] The company is mo 8 Cone Tnvestrent Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulntions made by the Reserve Bank of Tfia, (d) A% per the infermation and explanations received, the
group dees not have sy CIC a8 par of the group,

(xvii) The eompary has inowmed cash loss in comrent finoncial half year ended 307 Seplember 2022:
=3 31,747

{xviii) There has been ne resignation of the previous statwiory auditors during the hall year,

{xiz) On the basie of the finencial rdies, ageing ond expected dotes of realisstion of Onaneial asels and
payrment of finenial labilities, other information accompanying the finencial sintements, the auditor's
knowledpe of the Board of Direclors and mansgement plans, we are of the opirion st mo material
pncertnty exists as on the date of the sudit repon that company is capable of mecting i9s Dabilitics
existing al the date of balance sheel as and when they fall due within a period of one year from tse balancs

shest date.,

(xx) There is not Jinbility of the company under the provisions of section 135 of the Companics Act,
relating w Corporate Social Responsibility, Thesefore, the provisions of Cluuse (xx) of paragraph 3 of the
arder are not applicable o the Company.
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Cxad The company his ot made investooents in subsabiany comgany. Thevefom, the comparmny does nol
regquire o prepare consalidated financial staement. Thoereloee, the provisims of Clanse (xx1) of poragrapgh
3 of e order are met agplicable to the Company,

For B/ N G Bao & Assoviaies
Chartered Accouniants
Firm Reglstration NMamlw: =

[,
N
'.n':"

INDEMAZAD o

Place: Hyderahad T
Diate: 15" Febrnary, 2023 Ml ermbiership Ma, 207300
UDIN: 23207 3MB GV CLOR48G
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NG RAO & ASSOCIATES Mobsile : 98480 18791
¥ IRAC dWULIALLDS 98491 35573
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS §5421 87777

“Anvesure BT to (he Independent Auditer's Report of even date oo the Standalone Finamcial
Sntement of M. M Steel Limitced

Hepawt on the Tnternal Financlial Controls ander Clavse (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Compawmics Act, 2003 (%ile Acl1™)

We have audited the infemal financial controls over financizl seporting of Mds, MDD Steel Limited
(“the Company™) as of Scplember 30 2022 in conjunction with our sudil of the standalene financial
statements of the Company for the hall year ended on thet date.

Management's Hesponsihility for Internal Financial Confrols

The Corpany's munagement is responsible for establishing and mainaining inlcmal finaneial controls
hused on the internal control over financial reperting eriterin established by e Company comsidering the
exseniial campoients of internal control stated in the Guidange Noe on Aodit of Internal Financial
Caontrals Over Financial Repotting issued by the Institute of Chartered Aceountarts of [ndia (ICAT). These
responsibilities inchede the design, implementation and mainemanee of adequate intemal fnoncial contrals
that were operating effectively for enswing the onderly and efficient conduci of its business, including
iclherence o company"s policics, the safepuarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of fraods and
ermons, the aceuracy wd compleleness of the accounting reconds, and the timely preparation of reliable
lmgncinl information, as reguired vnder the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditors® Responsibility

O responsibility 15 to expness an opinson on the Company's imernal financial controls over financisl
reporting bused on our audit, We conduscied our sadit in sccordance with the Guidenee Node on Audit of
Intemal Fimancial Conirols Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Nete™) and the Standards on
Auiditing, issued by ICAT and deemed o be preseribed under section 143 10) of e Companies Act, 2013,
to the cxicni applicable to an audit of intermal financial contrals, both applicoble to an audit of Inderial
Finandial Controls and, both issued by the Tnaftule of Charered Accountants of India. Those Standands
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ctlical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
abtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporing
wins estnhlished and maintnined and if such contrmls operated effectively in all material nespects,

Cur andit invelves performing procedures 1o obiain audil evidence obout the adequacy of ghe interma)
finuncil controls syatem over fisincinl reporting and their operating efectiveness, Dur aedil of internal
financial controls over financiol reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that 2 material weakness exisis, and tesling and
evalupting the design and eperating elTectivencss of imlemal control based on the assessed visk. The
procedures selected depend on the auditer's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material
tndgstatement of the financial staterments, whether due to fraud or error,

We belicve that the audit evidence we have obiained is sufficicm and appropriaie tn peovide @ basis for our
audil opinian on fie Contgpany's internal financiul conivols system over linancial reporting.

H.Ma. &-3-11B6/A06, [Mew Mo 325) D Mo, 3%-146-4875 H.Mo. B-22-5/1, FF3
2nd Floos, Chinno Balreddy Bullding, Garuda Hotel Lang ealodn Towers, Potiabi Steet,
Adjocent Lane to TG Kokafiva Holel, Lobbipyet, - iEandhl Nagar,
Eegumpet, Hyderabod-500 014, Wijoryawaodo - I Kakinada - 633 004.
E-muail ; nageswororoog 207 @gmall.com [ noges ittgrreditimall.com

102



Meaniog of nternl Finaocial Controls Over Finaocial Hepariing

A company's il fnancial comrol over financial reponing is o process degignoed o provide reasonable
assurance regarchng the redinbility of financial repotimg and e preparation of fineameial statements o
extemal poposes in sccordance wath generally acceprod accounting principles. A compasy's intenal
Tinaneial coniral over Nnancial reperting inclwdes those policies and procedures that (1) perain o the
mainlenince of records that, in reasonalle detil, sceormiely aml fidy reflect the tansactions and
dispositions of the assets af the company; (23 provide reasonable assuranee ihat iransactions aire recerded
a8 necessry 0 permit preparation of finaocial salements o accordance with peneral by sceepled
accomnting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of ihe company are being macde only m
accordamce with authonsetions of management and directors af the company; amd (1) provide reasmabile
assursnee regading prevention of timely detection of anauthorised scguisition, use, or disposition of 1he
COIL ATy S DESCLS that could have a malerial cilizet an the financial stadements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporfing

Beeawse of the inherent limitations of internal financial cantals aver fnamsial reporting, ineluding the
possibility of collusion or improper management overtide of controls, material misstatements due 1o enor
or fraed may occur and mn be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the ivtermal Goaneinl
eontrols over finangial reporting o fature half year ended are subject © the dsle that the intenn] finoncial
cantrod over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or tha the
degree of complipnce with the policies or proceduses may deterivmie,

Oplnbon

In oar opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate inbernal Guancial contrels spstem
aver financinl reporting and such dnternal financial controls over finmcinl reporting were operating
cifectively a8 al September 30, 2022, based on the intermal conirol ever Tinemcinl reporing eritena
cstablished by the Company considering the esseotial components of infernal controd stated i the
Cividance Mote on Audin of Intemal Financial Controls Over Finaneial Reporting issoed by the Instinde of

Chartered Accountanis of India,

For Mifs. N G Rao & Associntes
Chartersl Aceountants
Firm Registration Mombers 0938805
2 B85

Place: Hyderalad
Date: 15" February, 2023 Membership Mo, 207300
UDIM: 23206T3IMBGEY CLORARG
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NG RAO & ASSOCIA]

A CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

Annexare-C o the Indepeodent Anditer's Report:

) | I.-:..lh

Oy +F1-d0-6661 706%
Mabile @ $8480 18791
FRAPT SBET I

wE421 87777

5 @

Eeport on the Darcetions of the Comptroller and Auditor geneeal of India required under subs section 3 ol

section 143 ol the companics Act, 20035 A1)

al.
Mo | .
1. | Whether the Compuny hag system in place to process
all the accounting transactions through 1T system? If
yes, the implicaone of processing of scesunting
transactions oulside [T svstem on the mieprity of
accoynis along with the financial implications, i§ sy,
may be staled.

Reply

Yes. the company has system in place |
o prccess all aceminting inmmsactions
through 1T syslem,  Since  no
atcomnling ransaclions ae proccscl
autsicde the [T system, therelone no
implications  along  with  firancial

2. | Whether these is any resirecturing of an existing loan
or cnses of waivertwrite off of debisoansinienes
cte. Made by a lender fo the company due 1o the
compuny's inability to repay the loan¥ 1T yes, the
financial impect may be sated,

schemes from centralfstale apencics were properly
accounted forutilizemd as per iis term ond conditions?
Liat the cagses of deviation,

Place: Hydernbad
Date: 15* February, 2023
UDIN: Z3207300BGY CLOR486

3. | Whether funds receivedimeceivable  for  specific

implections on the  milgprty  of
apeounls are nssesenble.
There  are *Mil®  cases of
festrucluring  fwaiver wrile-off of
debtsMoans/interest ele,

The 'I'.."-.;npun}' his not recerved an].r__
funds from centralfstale agencies
for specific schemes,

For M/, NG Roo & Associntes
Charteral Accountanis
Firm Registration NumBer: 09309

Memberehip Ma. 207300

H.Mo., &-3-1184/A06, [Mew No.325]
2nd Floorn, Chinna Balreddy Bullding,
Adjocent Lane o TC Kokaliyo Hotel,
Bagumped, Hyderabad-500 014,

Lesbibsipe,

D.No. 39-16-4B/5
Garuda Hotel Lone,

Viloyowada - 520 010,

H.Mo. 8-22-51, FF3

Meetodd Towers, Pallabl Sreet,
Eandhi Nagar,

Kokinodo - 533 004,

E-mall ; nogeswararaog2 F@gmoll.com [ nogeswararaogd@rediiimail. com
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| _— WA Seel Limited
| Magarnars, Bastar, ChBattizgarh-45%4001

fall am: Ea lndisn Rupeci exce pt for 3 bioe dids o pthera tae statd)

Balance Sheet as at 30th September Z022

Pard culars

Hole
Mo

Figasas & at tha end
of curreat reporting
peerbad 20.09-203237

| .E_l,p.ll'ﬂ as it tha and of
Frevious reparting
period 30-09-202 1

ASSETS
Bon-current asseds
2] Property, plant and equipmen!
BjCapial work-in-progress
g}Investment property
d] Othar intxrgrible st
] Intaa gitde assets wider develnpresnt
MFindnclal assets
] lireminesnts
] L2ere and advanoes
Iii} Other Mingmncial asseis
i Delerred tax asssts net)
h1Cther man-current assees

Total mor-carrent assety

Lorrent asseis
allnvemnries
EFinancial azsers
i} Inwestrnencs
NN Trade mesivablies
(i) Cashand cash eqetralenis
fiv] Cthier bank balancoe:
(wi] Ceher Ananctal asset=
clCurrent tax s=setsHet]
d]0ither curtent assats
[ H

E[a)

S[b)
=)

Total current askets

466,089

584,178

Hntﬂ.llm

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Eq

wity
a}Equity share rapial
b

(2]
4 (&)

1100000

[BT7A11)

1100000
(G5, B8

4,2295%

476418

|_bi)ither ecukty
IEEIL-; abirlbalabde b ownirs
Liabifitics

ajFinarcial labilities
11 Borrowings
[1a] Leasy Linkilities
(i} Other linencial liabiligie
B Pk ons
e} Mieferred Tax Habdlites [net)

dother norecurren: lshilities
Tatal nan-current ltabdities

Currank Hakilitias
a]Finarcial liabditics

Toisl ol i raall
Toial catsin éleg deax of creditors othaer thea ko enferprisas sedarsllarssmpsims
[FE] Ceher Swanciad Rahdisss

bpdther current Habilities

) Previsions

ﬂmnﬂ.ﬂc Vi bl [ )

Sla)
9 (h]

B3510

o
=]

Tutal currest ILadlitles

B

;

Todal equity and liabilities

Tha ol daance sheet shoulif be rens' [0 canuncion Witk the acoompaneg acter
As por eur papart o elendelons fnangial smtements of evsn dete abinched

For Mfs. NG Ran & Arsccimtor
‘Chartered Acoountants
FR No; 030

.t FDERATAD
Man el o eI
Placa: Mysderabhasd

Dxte;

For andd on behsllof the Board of Directors of
KM Stedl Lisltad
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(AN Sraan s i i i Riymat ey fne e chan or eéferoriss pmady

PRI Sbewi Ll estred

Maparesr, Hastar, i gk 2H01
Srainmeat of Prafil ok Lo for che Hall yenr ood e 30 Scpiesiber 2021

Fizures o of the-ead o | Figurea aa i theand ol
Pantkalan h::" AIFFEEE Feparting pecied]  Prestous repeciing
—— Ap-E-102F _ Berksl 3B
Rerroge fiom perthan X 4
Db Iniiie & 349 L3456
Totel lscom: : idin LT5
Expanosy =
Cizg of nueriab s erred B
Parchie of Sieck-fi-Trade -
Changas in irveniories of finkbed prods. ok da male md vok-in-propes 3
Emplives berells &ipeine P
(Finirice Crals = .
Depreciation srd ymorisstion axpepss . B
(her Eperees 7 - HHO
Toesd zapaes - L L]
- Y 131,473
T PETRE]
tiom S50 ﬁ].MJil
2 39 111,11
ot crozrehensve 8z
- ) Peres ki will et b neakassifled oo profi o ks 3 .
() Bvaotie Wik Tebating B0 Berm thas vl vod be reclassifiad oo paofit oo fean . 5
B (E) Peevre (hat will bereclassified mo pesif o loss - .
lating iz Itomre o will be peclessifed o prafitor lem 4 i
s |oas or Lhe camenn pariod FAW [ETRER
Eammineg per=qiery share 4 fior copDinai g spestiars}
:.a £] LiRL] L]
14 L] 3T
Eaming per equicy share | discooimed opatiarsy
s B .
sl g per ety slees -[fer disconkneed & copanuing opamiioas) i ]
[taniz 14 Tl J-|J
e it
1 i) [
Thw gy o) o foma b B vk I o B i she wepmeypying ey

s e our repari an sisndalane financisl scaliments of rovn daie atiaehsd

For s WG Rao & sl
Cheiriered Acciunlaals
FI: e 0SS

Place: Flydershind
i[hil.-

For urad an bebiall ol the Board of TNt of

MMEC Seel Limilied

Chmbieren Alakberijed}
DHrechs
B (e T

phe

(il Biaiear Mabaniyi

Firitar

DR 9T
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MNIDAC Snied Limited

Starement of eash Novw for the Hall year cnded 30 September 2022
(AN amoumie are in Indian Rupees excapr for share data or atherwis: siated)

Flgures a5 at the il of _fl_g-rzh';;:l: the emdl of
Particulars current reportisg perlod | Frevie us reporting peried
302023 ﬂ-{lﬂ-\."IJJI

Lash fhow from eperating sofivits

Lass hefore lax 5,859 {31, 74TH
Ligesa: FRlefes incoeme (B30 {L,253)
Operneing loss before warking eaplial asdjestments - (33,000
Warking capital adjustments

{Dcrease) Tncredse (o other fiancial [Babilives - 34 450
Increass’ { Decrezss] in other current lighilidies {1.500) 2300
[ Decréasel' [ncrease in olhér curment aseets - EI,EHU.'I]I
Net cash used in operating sctivities [3,5000 H
Cash Mow Trom (nvesting actividies

Inter=sl income 5.E50 1,241
Met cedh romiused i Iavesting Activities 580 1,253
Eloancing setivides

Procesds from isase of shares - 5,00, W
Ned each flows from financing setivities - 3 00000
Met increase! (decrenselin cash and cash equivalents doring the Foriod 135 5,001 253
Crgh and cash sqpivalangs af the h=ginning of the Period 4,613,563 %005
hCI:'h and cazh equivalents at the end of the Period 448550 540,268
Cash & cash equivalents ap per nole 3a) 4 55927 S A0L2ER
Cash in kand - -
Do Curenl Ascsils 53,100 EO0S
O Dexpasit A pzoanes (0mizinal Manrty ke then 3 monte) 4 2827 4,501,253
|Eu]~l-|rh|d Balmce

char]l Cailk & Cash squloaends w8 the e of lhe porbed 405 53T 5402548
Resncted Cash Ralares S

Wate: The previoas fgures kave beom rearcanged regreuped wherever nezessary to eonfirm corrent year elassiieadom,

Az per nar report on standabne fnanedal slatesents of sven date attached

Faor M/, NG Rao & Associnbes For end om behall of the Bosrd of Birecters of

Chartered Accouniants NMDC Steel Limited

FE Nor 003995

{Amltava Mukherjes) {Difip Kumar Mehanty)
H:m arn Rao)fa Direclor Dircetor
Partner DN EEREE27 DINARIRETIO
Membership Mo W53l

Place: Hyderabad

D e
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[NMINC Stect Limitea
Stalement of Charges in Equity lor s Hall sar ended 30 Sepiember 2002
Al amounisane in ndian Kopers excep for shaes (ala orotherwis= stated)

A Equity share caplial 5

Partizulors I Huoiz Mg Tl
As 2101 April 2021 = 4 [u] ML
Changee in sgquiry shies Gapital 4 {aj j
Ag at 30 Sepremiaer 1071 Ti00,000
Asat 1 April 202F £ [n 1101000
Chanpes in equity share capim) 4 iz =
A= al M) Seplembar 2022 (WL ]
B Orher aqaity
I |
Pasticulirs Haole Mo Reegerves ansd surplus| Tocal
P estiresd
Halises asal T Apdl 2021 [5.90.3335) (551 835y
Loes for the Period 4y (30,747 31,747,
Balance at 3 September 2021 1523, 5E10 M;EI'

Place: Hyderahad
'I]l.tl.'

|Particuking Hode Mo Basarves mnd surpius Tkl
Pelaied !
Befance aset 1 Apeid 2022 {6,E3AM0} 1&31.4'?[!}1
Lass for the Pariod 4 k) 5R59 5459
|Bu|lh:ru|3l!lﬂt]:rhﬂ:ﬂ'll:lﬂ [£37600) (8,5,601)
Ag per our report o standzlone financisl statensenis o v dole atached
Fie M. WG Res & Associaies Fipr and sm behalf of ihe Board of Direciory of
Chartered Ascalimtaai NMDC Seeed Limlted
FR No: i43005
-
i ra Ran)
Partoer (Amitava Mukherjiep (il Kesnar Mohaniy |
Membership Na.x Direerar Mrestor
DINAEIS5T0T DIN0929G7 B
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NMDC STEEL LIMITED

Significant accounting policies and Notes on secounts forming part of seeaunts for the vear

ended 30th September 2022

Nuote-1: Corporate Information: -

NMDC Steel Limited ("NSL") is & company incorporated on 02.01.2015 having ifs
registered office at NMDC Steel Lid. CAO NMDC Iron & Steel Plant, Post: Nagarmnar,
Distt. Bastar, PIN-49%4001(C.G), India. The Company is a 100% Subsidiary of NMDC
Limited. The CIN of the company is U27310CT2015GOT001618.

Note 2. Significant Accounfing Policies: -

b)

c)

Etatue of compliance

The standalone financial statements have been prepared in sccordsnce with Indian
Accounting Standards (“Ind AS") notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 2016 and 2017 end relevant amendment rules issued thereafier

and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Basis ol measurement:

The standelone financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost convention
and on an accrual basis.

al and presentation n

The standalone finaneial statements are presented in Indizn rupees, which is the fimetional
currency of the Company and the currency of the primery economic enviromment in

which the entity operates.

Us-q of estimates apd judgement:

The preparation of standalone finaneial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, lisbilities, income and expenses.
Aetual results may differ from these estimates,

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a periodic basis. Revisions to
accounting cstimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised and

in any future periods affected.
Financial instruments:

All financial instruments are recognized initially at fair value. Transaction costs that are
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset (other than financial assets recorded a
fair value through profit or loss) are included in the fair value of the financial asscts.
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Purchase or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within 2 Hime frame
established by regulation or conventien in the market place (regular way tade) e
recognized on trade date. While, loans and bomowings and payable are recognized net of
directly attribufable transactions costs.

For the purpese of subsequent measurement, financial instruments of the Company are
classified in the following cetegories: non-derivafive financial asscts comprising
amortized cost; non-derivative financial liahilities at amaortized cost,

The classification of financial instruments depends on the objective of the business model
far which it is held. Management determines the classification of its financial instruments

at initiz] recognition.
i} Non-derivative financial assets:
A financial esset shall be measured at amornized cost if both of the following conditions

are met:

the financial asset is held within & business model whose objective is to hold financial
assefs in order to collect contractual cash flows and

* the contractual terms of the financial asset pive rise on specifisd dates to cash flows that
are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding

They are presented as current assets, except for those maturing later than 12 months afier
the reporting date which are presented as non-current assets. Financial assets are measured
initially at fair value plus trenssction costs and subsequently carried at amortized cost using
the effective interest method, less any impairment loss.

Amortized cost is represented by cash and cash equivalents and eligible current and non-
current asscts.

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in banks and demand deposits with banks which
can be withdrawn at any time without prior notice or penalty on the prineipal.

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents inclede cash in
banlks and demend deposits with banks.

i} Non-derivative financial liabilities
Financizal liabilities at amortized cost
Financial liabilities at amortized cost represented by trade and other payables are initially
recognized at fair value, and subsequently carried at amortized cost using the effective

interest method,

fi lant and equi -
Recognition and measurement: Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any, Cost includes expenditures dirzctly

attributeble to the acquisitien of the asset.

b
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Depreciation: The Company depreciates propesty. plant and equipment over the estimated
useful life of the assets as prescribed in Schedule II of the Companies Act 2013 on a straight-
line basis from the date the assets are ready for intended use. Depreciation is charged on pro-
rata monthly basis on additionsdisposals of assets during the vear taking first day of the
manth for acquisition/commissioning and last day of the month for disposals. Wherever the

useful life is determined by technical assessment for certain assets, such assets are

depreciated as per their agsessed life.

#) Provisions
All the provision are recognized as per Ind AS 37. Provisions are recognized when the

Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as & result of = past event, it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to seftle the obligation, and 2
reliashle  estimate can be made of the amoumt of the oblipation

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to
settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
ancertainties surrounding the obligation.

When some or all of the economic benefits required 1o settle, a provision are expected o be
recovered from a third party, the receivable is recopnized as an asset, if it is virtuslly certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured

reliably.

Provisions for onerous contracts are recognized when the expected benefite to be derived by
the Company from a confract are lower than the unaveidable costs of meeting the fiture
obligations under the confract. Provisions for enerous confracts are measured at the present
value of lower of the expected net cost of fulfilling the contract and the expected cost of

terminating the contract.

h) Finance income

Finance income consists of interest income on funds invested. Interest income is recognized as
it accrues in the staterment of profit and loss, using the effective interest method,

As per our Beporl of even date attached

For M/s. N G Rao & Associates For and on behelf of the Board
1 NWMDAC Steel Lad,

(Amitave Mukberee)  (Dilip Kumnar Mohanty )
Director Director
DIN:0E265207 DIN:09296720

Place: Hyderabad
Date:
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SECTION VII - LEGAL AND OTHER INFORMATION

OUTSTANDING LITIGATION AND MATERIAL DEVELOPMENTS

Except as disclosed below, as on the date of this Information Memorandum, there are no outstanding (1) criminal proceedings
involving our Company, Directors and Promoters and Subsidiaries; (2) actions taken by statutory or regulatory authorities
involving our Company, Directors, Promoters and Subsidiaries; (3) claims involving our Company, Directors, Promoters and
Subsidiaries for any direct or indirect tax liabilities (disclosed in a consolidated manner giving the total number of claims and total
amounts involved); (4) proceedings involving our Company, Directors, Promoters and Subsidiaries; and (5) litigation involving
the Group Companies which has a material impact on our Company. Further, except as discussed in this chapter, there are no
disciplinary actions including penalties imposed by SEBI or stock exchanges against our Promoters in the last five financial years
including any outstanding action.

Unless stated to the contrary, the information provided below is as of the date of Information Memorandum.

A) Litigation involving our Company (including litigations related to the Demerged Undertaking which now stands
transferred to the Company):

Pursuant to and in accordance with the terms of the Scheme, the Company shall bear the burden and the benefits of any
legal or other proceedings initiated in respect of the Demerged Undertaking. If any suit, appeal or other proceeding of
whatever nature by or against NMDC Limited in respect of the Demerged Undertaking be pending, the same shall not
abate, be discontinued or in any way be prejudicially affected by reason of the transfer of the Demerged Undertaking or
of anything contained in the Scheme but the proceedings shall be continued, prosecuted and enforced by or against the
Company in the same manner and to the same extent as it would or might have been continued, prosecuted and enforced
by or against NMDC Limited. The Company shall have such legal or other proceedings initiated by or against NMDC
Limited in respect of the Demerged Undertaking, transferred in its name and to have the same continued, prosecuted and
enforced by or against the Company to the exclusion of NMDC Limited. The Company shall also handle all legal or
other proceedings which may be initiated against NMDC Limited after Demerger pursuant to the Scheme becoming
effective, relating to the Demerged Undertaking in respect of the period up to the Effective Date (as defined in the
Scheme), in its own name and account and further undertaken to pay all amounts including interest, penalties, damages,
etc. which NMDC Limited may be called upon to pay or secure in respect of any liability or obligation relating to NMDC
Limited for the period up to the Effective Date, in respect of the Demerged Undertaking.

As on the date of Information Memorandum, there are no legal or other proceedings initiated by or against the Company
other than those relating to Demerged Undertaking of NMDC Limited which now stands transferred to the Company
pursuant to Demerger pursuant to the Scheme. Further, these legal or other proceedings do not have a material impact on
the financials of the Company. The details of such litigations are provided below:

L Litigation initiated against our Company

a. Criminal proceedings
As on date of this Information Memorandum, there are no criminal proceedings against our Company.

b. Actions by statutory or regulatory authorities
As on date of this Information Memorandum, there are no statutory or regulatory proceedings against our
Company.

c. Claims related to direct and indirect taxes
As on date of this Information Memorandum, there are no direct or indirect tax proceedings against our
Company.

d. Other pending proceedings
As on date of this Information Memorandum, there are no other pending proceedings against our Company.
List of litigations related to the Demerged Undertaking which now stands transferred to the Company are as
follows-
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CIVIL CASES AT CHHATTISGARH HIGH COURT

Sr.

No Case No. Applicant Respondent Case Category Status / Stage Financial Impact
1 WPS Madna Union of India and ors. Land acquisition & service | Pending. As the issue involved Cannot be quantified
No0.5989/2014 matter in all these WPs is same i.e.,
pertaining to providing
employment to Petitioners in
lieu of acquisition of land,
these cases are clubbed into
one batch and heard.
2 WPS No. Elma Rachna Union of -do - -do - Cannot be quantified
5990/2014 India and ors.
3 WPS No. Dayna Kapila Union of -do - -do - Cannot be quantified
5991/2014 India and ors.
4 WPS No. Divya Union of -do - -do - Cannot be quantified
5992 /2014 India and ors.
5 WPS No. Sumitra Union of India and ors. -do - -do - Cannot be quantified
5993/2014
6 WPS No. Ichhawati Union of India and ors. -do - -do - Cannot be quantified
5994 /2014
7 WPS No. Khinnani Union of India and ors. -do - -do - Cannot be quantified
5995/2014
8 WPS No. Shayamwati Union of India and ors. -do - -do - Cannot be quantified
5996 /2014
9 WPS No. Bhagawati Union of -do - -do - Cannot be quantified
5997 /2014 India and ors.
10 WPS No. Velma Sapna Union of -do - -do - Cannot be quantified
5998 /2014 India and ors.
11 WPS No. Ranjita Bala State of -do - -do - Cannot be quantified
1756 /2014 Prakash Chhattisgarh
12 WP (S) No. Mahendra John & State of CG & ors. Service Pending Cannot be quantified
6018 /2016 ors.
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CIVIL CASES AT CHHATTISGARH HIGH COURT

Sr.

No Case No. Applicant Respondent Case Category Status / Stage Financial Impact
13 WP (C) No. Cholanti and ors. State of Chhattisgarh Land oustees Pending Cannot be quantified
1632/2018 and anr.
14 WP (C) No. Son Singh State of Land oustees Pending Cannot be quantified
1633/2018 Chhattisgarh and anr.
15 WP (S) No. Padamnath Union of India & ors. Service Pending Cannot be quantified
4435/ 2018 Baghel
16 WPC No. Smt. Kanchan State of Chhattisgarh &anr. Land oustees Pending Cannot be quantified
1857/2018 Singh
17 WP (C) No.2934/ Vidhyadhar State of Chhattisgarh and Land oustees Pending Cannot be quantified
2018 Sethiya and ors. ors.
18 WP NMDC Ltd Nagar tax Pending related to WP 1500/1997
1245/2001 Bacheli Complex Panchayat Badi Bacheli
19 WP(S) 2155/2014 Prabhat NMDC Land oustees Pending Cannot be quantified
Chandra Seth
20 WP(s) 2156/2014 Akhilesh Obed State of Land oustees Pending Cannot be quantified
Chhattisgarh and ors.
21 WP(S) 2154/2014 Abhilash State of Land oustees Pending Cannot be quantified
Chandra Seth Chhattisgarh and anr.
22 WPS No Chandrabati State of CG and others Land oustees Pending Cannot be quantified
6618/2019 Sethiya & Ors
23 WPC Divakar Goyal State of Land oustees Pending Cannot be quantified
No0.3568/2020 (Minor) Chhattisgarh and others
24 WPC No.887/2020 KamalDei State of Land oustees Pending Cannot be quantified
Chbhattisgarh and anr.
25 WPS Minor Shirish State of Chhattisgarh Land oustees Pending Cannot be quantified
No.1257/2020 Ghoshla and anr.
26 WPC Gurudas NMDC& Land oustees Pending Cannot be quantified
No0.1964/2020 Others
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CIVIL CASES AT CHHATTISGARH HIGH COURT

Sr.

No Case No. Applicant Respondent Case Category Status / Stage Financial Impact
27 WPS Mohd.Shabbir State of Chhattisgarh & Service/Land pending Cannot be quantified
No.1475/2021 & another others
28 WPC NMDC Tron State of Civil/Land Pending Cannot be quantified
No.4422/2021 and Steel Plant Chhattisgarh & Others
29 WPC Dilip Singh State of Chhattisgarh & Civil Pending Cannot be quantified
No.4253/2021 Kushwaha others
30 WPS Shri Budhsan State of CG and others Land oustees Pending Cannot be quantified
No0.4888/2021 Kashyap
31 WPS No.333/2022 M/s. Neeraj NMDC& service pending Cannot be quantified
Kumar Pandey Others
32 WPC M/s/B N NMDC and others Civil Pending Cannot be quantified
No0.2589/2022 Constructions
33 WPC NMDC Iron State of CG Land Disposed on 25.07.2022 Rs.1.92 Cr
No0.2951/2022 and Steel Plant and others
34 WPC R.C Prasad NMDC Civil Disposed on 21.06.2022 Cannot be quantified
No0.2657/2022 Limited and others
35 WPC No. NMDC Limited State of Chhattisgarh and Civil Pending Cannot be quantified
2196/2022 others
36 WPC NMDC Ltd State of CG & Others CESS Pending Rs.5.5 Cr
No.3231/2022 Bacheli Complex
37 WPC NMDC Ltd State of CG & Others CESS Pending Rs.5.5 Cr
No.3254/2022 Kirandul
Complex
38 WPT No.200/2022 NMDC Ltd, State of CG Tax Pending Cannot be quantified
Bacheli & others
39 WPS Prita Dolly Hills NMDC Ltd& Others service Pending Cannot be quantified
No0.4905/2022
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CIVIL CASES AT CHHATTISGARH HIGH COURT

Sr.

No Case No. Applicant Respondent Case Category Status / Stage Financial Impact
40 WPC Smt. Sushma State of chhattisgarh & Land Pending Cannot be quantified
No.3112/2022 Choudhary Others
41 WPC 1926/2017 Smt. Limbati State of CG Land Pending Cannot be quantified
& Others
42 WPC Cholanti State of CG Land Pending Cannot be quantified
968/2018 & Others
43 WPC 1039/2018 Pakhli State of CG Land Pending Cannot be quantified
& Others
44 WPC 1428/2018 Manoj Verma State of CG Land Pending Cannot be quantified
& Others & Others
45 WPC 1846/2018 Jayawant State of CG Land Pending Cannot be quantified
& Others
46 WPC 1935/2018 Hembati Land Pending Cannot be quantified
vs Others
47 WPC 1854/2018 Kamaldei, State of CG & Others Land Pending Cannot be quantified
Shiboram
48 WPC 1857/2018 Kachan Singh State of CG & Others Land Pending Cannot be quantified
49 WPC 1764/2018 Abhishek. Junus State of CG & Others Land Pending Cannot be quantified
50 WPC 263/2020 Divakar Goyal NMDC& Land Pending Cannot be quantified
Others
51 WPC 3537/2019 Jamuna Dai, Papa Govt of CG & Others Land Pending Cannot be quantified

Dai

LIST OF COMMERCIAL CASES
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;l(;'. Case No. Applicant Respondent ngsgzry Status / Stage Financial Impact
I COMCA M/s. Indu NMDC and Arb. Pending Cannot be quantified
No.47/2021 Projects Ltd another
2 COP. No. NMDC KJIPPL Arb. Pending Award passed on 17.09.18. Claim allowed against NMDC
48/2019 Rs.3,95,78,941/- plus BG. The amount due as on 17.09.18 shall bear an
interest@ 12% per annum etc from the date of claim Petition till date
and the claimant is entitled for return of BG. Therefore, the amounts
awarded shall bear simple interest of 6% per annum till the date of
realization.
The counter claim stands dismissed.
3 COP.No.34/2 KJ NMDC Arb. Pending Claim allowed against NMDC Rs.3,95,78,941+ BG+ interest
019 Infrastructure
Projects (1) Pvt.
Ltd.
4 CEP M/s. KNR NMDC Arb. Pending Rs.6,36,25,764/-
No.1/2021 Construction
Limited
5 COP NMDC KIJIPIPL & Arb. Pending Rs.2,0094,361 + interest
No.74/2022 another
6 COP M/s. Dee-Tech NMDC Civil Pending Cannot be quantified
No.67/2022 | Projects Private Limited
Limited

OTHER COURT CASES AT HON’BLE HIGH COURT OF CHHATTISGARH, BILASPUR

Date of .
Sr. Case No. filing Written Petitioner (s)
No. .e Name
Petition
1 867/2018 12.03.2016 Uwaasi & others (Total-8) Vs State of CG & Others
1A | WA No. 641/2018 (related to 867/2018 mention at sl no- 13.08.2018 NMDC vs State of CG & Others
1)
1B | 2390/2018 (related to 867/2018 case mention at sl no.01) 17.08.2018 NMDC vs State of CG & Others
2 1844/2018 23.06.2018 Sudru & Others VS State of CG & Others
3 6018/2016 2016 Shri Mahendra John & 63 others
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ONGOING ARBITRATION CASES RELATING TO DEMERGED UNDERTAKING

Sr.
No.

Name of the Work

Case Title /Case No.

Claim/ Counter
Claim

1

Installation Of Blast Furance (Package No. — 05) For 3.0 MTPA Integrated Steel Plant
At Nagarnar.

Arbitration Commenced Date - 02.01.2020

M/s. Tata Projects Limited Vs. NMDC
Ltd. (ICC 25034/HTG)

Claimant claimed amount Rs. 676 crore.
Counter Claim of Rs. 67.39 crore.

2 | Construction of Intake Well & Pump House and Cross-Country Pipeline System | M/s. Megha Engineering & | Claimant claimed amount Rs. 154.88 crore.
(Package: 17-02) for NISP at Nagarnar, Chhattisgarh. Infrastructures Ltd (MEIL) and Koya & | No Counter Claim has been filed by respondent.
Company Construction Limited (KCCL)
Arbitration Commenced Date - 06.11.2021 Vs. NMDC Ltd.
Hon'ble Sole Arbitrator - Justice
Noushad Ali
3 | Contract for setting up a By-Product Complex, including ETP Package -03 M/s. SEPC Limited Vs. NMDC Ltd. Claimant has not filed Statement of
for 3.0 MTPA Integrated Steel Plant at Nagarnar. Claim yet.
Hon'ble Sole Arbitrator - Justice G.
Arbitration Commenced Date - 07.07.2022 Rohini.
4 | Three Contracts for Architectural Consultancy Services and Supervision for | M/s. Datta & Datta Vs. NMDC Ltd. Claimant has not filed Statement of Claim yet
Developments Works for the proposed Residential Complex and other facilities for 3
MTPA Integrated Steel Plant. Hon'ble Sole Arbitrator - Justice Shri
Challa Kodanda Ram.
Acceptance of Hon'ble Sole Arbitrator is awaited. Arbitration has not been started.
5 Setting up Raw Material Handling System (RMHS) at 3.00 MT Integrated Steel Plant, | M/s. Prasad & Company NMDC is a formal party
Nagarnar, Chhattisgarh (Project Works) Limited Vs Bharat
Heavy Electricals Limited
and NMDC Ltd.
Hon'ble Sole Arbitrator - Justice V.
Gopala Gowda.
6 | Construction of Studio Type Apartments-II including allied facilities and | M/s. Indu Projects Limited Vs. Panel of three names of arbitrators has been
electrification at village Nagarnar (near Jagdalpur), District ~ Bastar, Chhattisgarh. NMDC Ltd proposed to Claimant but Claimant has not

selected arbitrator.
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IL. Litigation initiated by our Company

a.

Criminal proceedings
As on date of this Information Memorandum, there are no criminal proceedings initiated by our Company.

Actions by statutory or regulatory authorities
As on date of this Information Memorandum, there are no statutory or regulatory proceedings initiated by
our Company.

Claims related to direct and indirect taxes
As on date of this Information Memorandum, there are no direct or indirect tax proceedings initiated by our
Company.

Other pending proceedings
As on date of this Information Memorandum, there are no civil or other proceedings initiated by our
Company.

B) Litigation involving our Directors

L Litigation initiated against our Directors

a. Criminal proceedings
As on date of this Information Memorandum, there are no criminal proceedings against our Directors.

b. Actions by statutory or regulatory authorities
As on date of this Information Memorandum, there are no statutory or regulatory proceedings against our
Directors.

c. Claims related to direct and indirect taxes
As on date of this Information Memorandum, there are no direct or indirect tax proceedings against our
Directors.

d. Other pending proceedings
As on date of this Information Memorandum, there are no civil or other proceedings against our Directors.

1L Litigation initiated by our Directors

a. Criminal proceedings
As on date of this Information Memorandum, there are no criminal proceedings initiated by our Directors.

b. Actions by statutory or regulatory authorities
As on date of this Information Memorandum, there are no statutory or regulatory proceedings by our
Directors.

c. Claims related to direct and indirect taxes
As on date of this Information Memorandum, there are no direct or indirect tax proceedings by our
Directors.

d. Other pending proceedings

As on date of this Information Memorandum, there are no civil or other proceedings initiated by our
Directors.

C) Litigation involving our Promoters:

L Litigation initiated against our Promoters

a.

Criminal proceedings
As on date of this Information Memorandum, there are no criminal proceedings against our Promoters.

Pending action by statutory or regulatory authorities against our Promoters and disciplinary action including
penalty imposed by SEBI or Stock Exchanges against the Promoters in the last 5 Financial Years

As on date of this Information Memorandum, there are no statutory or regulatory proceedings against our
Promoters.
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D)

E)

F)

IL.

Other pending proceedings
As on date of this Information Memorandum, there are no civil or other proceedings against our Promoters.

Claims related to direct and indirect taxes
As on date of this Information Memorandum, there are no civil or other proceedings initiated against our
Promoters.

Litigation initiated by our Promoters

a.

Criminal proceedings
As on date of this Information Memorandum, there are no criminal proceedings initiated by our Promoters.

Actions by statutory or regulatory authorities
As on date of this Information Memorandum, there are no statutory or regulatory proceedings initiated by
our Promoters.

Claims related to direct and indirect taxes
As on date of this Information Memorandum, there are no direct or indirect tax proceedings initiated by our
Promoters.

Other pending proceedings
As on date of this Information Memorandum, other than the following there are no civil or other
proceedings initiated by our Promoters.

Litigation involving our Subsidiaries
As on the date of the Information Memorandum, the Company does not have any subsidiaries.

Litigation involving our Group Companies
As on date of this Information Memorandum, there are no Group Companies of our Company.

Outstanding dues to creditors
As on date of this Information Memorandum, outstanding due to creditors of Demerged Undertaking are as below-

Sr. No. Particulars Amount Involved (In Rs. Crores)
1 Unsecured Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures Taxable Bonds 523.80

in the nature of debentures (As on March 31, 2022)
2 Secured Loan 1,144.42

(Rupee Term Loan From Bank)

(As on March 31, 2022)
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GOVERNMENT AND OTHER APPROVALS

We have set out below an indicative list of material approvals obtained by our Company. In view of the approvals listed below,
our Company can undertake their current business activities and no material approvals, permissions, consents, licenses or
registrations from any governmental or regulatory authority are required to undertake the listing or continue their business
activities. It must be distinctly understood that, in granting these approvals, the government or regulatory authorities do not take
any responsibility for our financial soundness or for the correctness of any of the statements made or opinions expressed in this
behalf. Certain approvals may lapse in their normal course or have not been obtained by our Company, and our Company shall
either make an application to the appropriate authorities for grant or renewal of such approvals or are in the process of making
such applications. Unless otherwise stated, these approvals are valid as of the date of this Information Memorandum. For details in
connection with the regulatory and legal framework within which our Company operates, please see “Other Regulatory and
Statutory Disclosures” on page 126.

All consents, permissions, statutory or other licenses, approvals, sanctions, permits, registrations, authorizations, consents to
operate, certificates, environment or other clearances and authorities, leases, tenancies, assignment, allotments, power of attorney
given by, issued to or executed in favour of the NMDC Limited, claims, powers, allotments, approvals, contracts, enactments,
arrangements, rights, titles, interests, benefits, privileges and other intangible rights issued to or executed in favour of the NMDC
Limited, arrangements of all kinds, shall stand transferred to our Company as if the same were originally given by, issued to or
executed in favour of our Company, and the rights and benefits under the same shall be available to our Company and shall
remain valid, effective and enforceable on the same terms and conditions. In so far as the special incentive schemes and various
other incentives, subsidies, special status and other benefits or privileges enjoyed, granted by any Appropriate Authority or by any
other person, or availed of by the NMDC Limited are concerned, the same shall vest with and be available to our Company on the
same terms and conditions. Any registration fees, charges etc. paid by NMDC Limited in relation to the aforementioned consents,
permissions, licenses, approvals, certificates, clearances and authorities, etc. shall be deemed to have been paid by our Company
and consequently, the concerned Appropriate Authority shall carry out necessary mutations in favour and in name of our
Company, where applicable.

L Incorporation Details of our Company
A certificate of incorporation dated January 2, 2015 issued by the Registrar of Companies, Chhattisgarh

II. Approvals from Tax Authorities
Sr. No. Particulars Details
1. Permanent Account Number (PAN) AAFCN3661C
2. Tax Deduction and Collection Account Number (TAN) JBPNO2128A
3. Goods and Service Tax (GST) registration number 22AAFCN3661C1ZX
II1. Labour / employment related approvals

Our Company is required to obtain following approvals and licenses under various laws, rules and regulations in
order to carry on the business in India in relation to its offices and business units:

(1) Registration under the Employees’ Provident Funds and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952, issued by the
Employees’ Provident Fund Organisation.

(i1) Registration under the Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948, issued by the Employees’ State Insurance
Corporation.

(iii) Certificate issued under the Contract Labour (Regulation and Abolition) Act, 1971 issued by the labour
commissioners of relevant states.

(iv) Registration under the applicable shops and establishments legislation for our network facilities, issued by
the ministry or department of labour of relevant State government, wherever applicable

Iv. Approvals relating to the listing
For the approvals and authorisations obtained by our Company in relation to the listing, please see “Other
Regulatory and Statutory Disclosures — Authority for Listing” on page 126.
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OTHER REGULATORY AND STATUTORY DISCLOSURES

Authority for listing

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Government of India, New Delhi vide its order 24/1/2022-CL-III dated October 6, 2022,
approved the Scheme of Arrangement. Pursuant to the Scheme of Arrangements, Demerged Undertaking is transferred to and
vested in our Company with the Appointed Date of April 1, 2021 in accordance with Sections 230 to 232 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The Effective Date is as set out in the Scheme of Arrangement.

In accordance with the Scheme of Arrangement, the Equity Shares of our Company, issued pursuant to the Scheme, shall be listed
and admitted to trading on BSE, CSE and NSE. Such admission and listing is not automatic and will be subject to fulfillment by
our Company of the respective listing criteria of the Stock Exchanges and also subject to such other terms and conditions as may
be prescribed by the respective Stock Exchanges at the time of the application made by our Company seeking approval for listing.

Eligibility criterion

There being no initial public offering or rights issue, the eligibility criteria prescribed under the SEBI (ICDR) Regulations is not
applicable. However, SEBI vide its letter no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DCR/RAC-2/P/OW/2023/2574/1 dated January 18, 2023, granted
relaxation of Rule 19(2)(b) of the SCRR to our Company pursuant to an application made by our Company to SEBI under sub-
rule (7) of Rule 19 of the SCRR as per the SEBI Circular No. CFD/DIL3/CIR/2017/21 dated March 10, 2017 as amended read
with SEBI Master Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/DIL1/CIR/P/2021/0000000665 dated November 23, 2021, as amended. Our
Company has submitted this Information Memorandum, containing information about our Company, and including disclosures in
line with the disclosure requirement for public issues, as applicable, to BSE, CSE and NSE, and this Information Memorandum
shall be made available to the public through the websites of the Stock Exchanges at www.bseindia.com, www.cse-india.com and
www.nseindia.com and at our website nmdcsteel.nmdc.co.in. Our Company shall also publish an advertisement in the newspapers
containing the details in terms of the SEBI Circular. The advertisement shall draw specific reference to the availability of the
Information Memorandum on our Company’s website

Prohibition by Securities and Exchange Board of India

Our Company, Directors and our Promoter are not prohibited from accessing the capital markets or debarred from buying, selling
or dealing in securities under any order or direction passed by SEBI or any securities market regulator in any other jurisdiction or
any other authority/court.

Compliance with Companies (Significant Beneficial Ownership) Rules, 2018

Our Company and Promoter are in compliance with the Companies (Significant Beneficial Ownership) Rules, 2018, to the extent
applicable.

Fugitive Economic Offences

None of our Directors is declared a fugitive economic offender under section 12 of the Fugitive Economic Offenders Act, 2018.

Association with the Securities Market

None of our Directors are associated with the securities market in any manner. No action has been initiated by SEBI against
against any of our Directors in the past 5 years preceding the date of this Information Memorandum.

Identification as wilful defaulter by Reserve Bank of India

Our Company, Promoter, Directors have not been identified as wilful defaulters by the Reserve Bank of India.

Disclaimer Clause of the BSE

BSE vide its letter (bearing reference no. DCS/AMAL/PB/R37/2143/2020-21) dated November 17, 2021, approved the Scheme of
Arrangement under Regulation 37 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and by virtue of the said approval, BSE’s name has been
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included in this Information Memorandum as one of the stock exchanges on which our Company’s Equity Shares are proposed to
be listed.
As required, a copy of the Draft Information Memorandum and this Information Memorandum has been submitted to BSE.

Disclaimer Clause of the CSE

CSE vide its letter (bearing reference no. CSE/LD/15358/2021) dated November 18, 2021, approved the Scheme of Arrangement
under Regulation 37 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and by virtue of the said approval, CSE’s name has been included in this
Information Memorandum as one of the stock exchanges on which our Company’s Equity Shares are proposed to be listed.
As required, a copy of the Draft Information Memorandum and this Information Memorandum has been submitted to CSE

Disclaimer Clause of the NSE
NSE has vide its letter (bearing reference no. NSE/LIST/28007 II) dated November 17, 2021, approved the Scheme of
Arrangement under Regulation 37 of the SEBI Listing Regulations and by virtue of the said approval, NSE’s name is included in

this Information Memorandum as one of the stock exchanges on which this Company’s Equity securities are proposed to be listed.
As required, a copy of the Draft Information Memorandum and this Information Memorandum has been submitted to NSE.

General Disclaimer from our Company

Our Company accepts no responsibility for statements made otherwise than in this Information Memorandum or in the
advertisements to be published in terms of Annexure A Part III (A) para 2 sub-clause 5 of the SEBI Circular or any other material
issued by or at the instance of our Company and anyone placing reliance on any other source of information would be doing so at
his or her own risk. All information shall be made available by our Company to the public and investors at large and no selective
or additional information would be available for a section of the investors in any manner.

Listing

Applications have been made to BSE, CSE and NSE for an official quotation of the Equity Shares of our Company. Our Company
has nominated BSE as the Designated Stock Exchange for the aforesaid listing of the Equity Shares. Our Company has taken steps
for completion of necessary formalities for listing and commencement of trading at all the Stock Exchanges mentioned above
within a period as approved by SEBI.

Listing approval from BSE, CSE and NSE

Our Company has obtained in-principle listing approvals from BSE, CSE and NSE on December 30, 2022, January 6, 2023 and
January 2, 2023 respectively. Our Company shall make the applications for final listing and trading approvals from BSE, CSE and
NSE.

Securities and Exchange Board of Rule 19(2)(b) of the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules, 1957

Our Company was granted an exemption from the application of Rule 19(2) (b) of the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Rules,
1957 by the SEBI vide the letter no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DCR/RAC-2/P/OW/2023/2574/1 dated January 18, 2023.

Filing

A copy of this Information Memorandum has been filed with BSE, CSE and NSE.

Demat Credit

Our Company has executed Tripartite Agreements with the Depositories i.e. NSDL and CDSL, dated October 25, 2022 and
October 25, 2022 respectively, for admitting our Equity Shares in dematerialisation form. Our Company has been allotted
INEONNSO01018 as its ISIN.

Consent

Our Company has obtained consent from our Directors, Statutory Auditor and Registrar.

127



Expert Opinions

Save as stated elsewhere in this Information Memorandum, we have not obtained any expert opinions.

Dispatch of Share Certificates

In accordance with the Scheme, new Equity Shares have been issued and allotted to the Eligible Sharecholders of NMDC Limited
on the Record Date i.e. October 28, 2022. Our Company has dispatched the physical share certificates to Eligible Shareholders
holding shares of NMDC Limited in physical form on December 10, 2022 and credited the new Equity Shares to depository
participant accounts of the Eligible Shareholders on December 6, 2022.

Previous Rights and Public Issues

Since incorporation, our Company has not issued Equity Shares to the public or had any Rights Issues.

Capital Issue in the last 3 years

The Company has not made any capital issue during the last 3 years.

Commission and Brokerage on Previous Issues

No sum has been paid or is payable as commission or brokerage for subscribing to or procuring or agreeing to procure
subscription for any of the Equity Shares by our Company.

Performance vis-a-vis objects

This is for the first time our Company is getting listed on any stock exchange.

Outstanding Debentures or Bonds and Redeemable Preference Shares and other Instruments issued by our Company

There are no outstanding debentures or bonds and redeemable preference shares and other instruments issued by our Company.

Stock Market Data for Equity Shares of our Company

The Equity Shares of our Company are not listed on any stock exchange. Through this Information Memorandum, our Company
is seeking approval for listing of its Equity Shares from the Stock Exchanges.

Disposal of Investor Grievances

Our Company has the following platforms for addressing investors’ grievances:

* E-mail id: ims_nisp@nmdc.co.in

* SCORES

Shareholders can express their grievances by sending mails to above e-mail id or raise complaints in SCORES(Common Portal
introduced by SEBI). Further, the Shareholders can also raise their grievances with our Company Secretary / Compliance Officer.
As on the date of this Information Memorandum our Company, has not received any investor complaints since incorporation.

Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
Ms. M. Amala

10-3-311/A, Khanij Bhavan,

Castle Hills, Masab Tank,

Hyderabad — 500 028

Contact Number: 040-23538757

Email: cs_nisp@nmdc.co.in
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Capitalisation of reserves or profits or revaluation of assets

There has been no capitalization of our reserves or profits or revaluation of our assets since incorporation to the date of this
Information Memorandum.
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SECTION VIII - OTHER INFORMATION
MAIN PROVISIONS OF THE ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION

Capitalised terms used in this section have the meaning that has been given to such terms in the Articles of Association of our
Company. Pursuant to Schedule I of the Companies Act and the SEBI ICDR Regulations, the main provisions of the Articles of
Association of our Company are detailed below.

Capital & Shares

e Subject to the provisions of Section 67 of the Act and other Applicable Laws, no part of the funds of the Company or
loans given by the Company shall be employed in the purchase of Company's Shares

e Subject to Section 62 of the Act, other Applicable Laws and these Articles, the Shares in the Capital of the Company for
the time being shall be under the control of the Directors who may issue, allot or otherwise dispose of the same or any of
them to such Persons, in such proportion and on such terms and conditions and either at a premium or at par or at
discount (subject to the compliance with the provisions of Section 53 of the Act or any other relevant provisions under
the Applicable Laws) and at such time as they may from time to time think fit and with the sanction of the Company in
the General Meeting to give to any Person or Persons the option or right to call for any Shares either at par or premium
during such time and for such consideration as the Directors think fit, and may issue and allot Shares in the Capital of the
Company on payment in full or part of any property sold and transferred or for any services rendered to the Company in
the conduct of its business and any Shares which may so be allotted may be issued as fully paid up Shares and if so
issued, shall be deemed to be fully paid Shares. Provided that the Board shall not give the option or right to call of shares
to any Person or Persons without sanction of the Company in general meeting

e The Company may at any time pay a commission, as per Section 40(6) of the Act and provisions under other Applicable
Laws, to any Person for subscribing or agreeing to subscribe (whether absolutely or conditionally) for any shares,
Debenture or debenture stock of the Company or procuring or agreeing to procure subscription (whether absolute or
conditional) for any shares, Debentures or debenture stock of the Company, if the commission in respect of shares shall
be paid or payable out of proceeds of issue or out of profits or both the statutory conditions and requirements shall be
observed and complied with and the amount or the rate of commission shall not exceed 5% of the price at which the
shares are issued and 2.5% of the price at which Debenture or debenture stock are issued in each case subscribed or to be
subscribed. The commission may be paid or satisfied in cash or in shares, Debentures or debenture stock of the
Company.

Increase, Reduction and Alteration of Capital

e Subject to the Applicable Laws and the approval of the President, the Directors may with the sanction of the Company in
general meeting, increase or reduce the share capital by such sum, and may divide the shares in the capital into several
classes of such amounts and with rights, privileges or conditions, as the resolution shall prescribe. The Company may
issue preference shares, which shall be liable to be redeemed.

Subject to the Applicable Laws, the Company may issue equity shares with differential rights with respect to dividend,
voting or otherwise.

The Company shall have the power, subject to and in accordance Applicable Laws, to purchase any of its own fully paid-
up shares or other specified Securities at such rates and on such terms and conditions as the Board may deem fit and
appropriate and make payment for such purchase(s).

Subject to the Applicable Laws and these Articles,the Directors may allot and issue shares in the capital of the company
as payment or part payment for any property sold or transferred, goods or machinery supplied or for services rendered to
the Company either in or about the formation or promotion of the Company or the conduct of its business and any shares
which may be so allotted may be issued as fully paid up shares, and, if so issued, shall be deemed to be fully paid up
shares

e Subject to Section 62 of the Act, other Applicable Laws and such directions as may be issued by the President in this
regard, new shares shall be issued upon such terms and conditions and with such rights and privileges annexed thereto as
the General Meeting resolving upon the creation thereof shall direct and if no direction be given, as the Directors shall
determine and in particular such shares may be preference shares or not

e Except so far as otherwise provided by the conditions of issue, or by these Articles, any capital raised by the creation of
new shares shall be considered part of the original capital and shall be subject to the provision herein contained with
reference to the payment of calls and installments, forfeitures transfer and transmission, lien, voting, surrender and
otherwise

e (i) Where at any time, the Company proposes to increase the subscribed capital of the Company by issue of further
Shares then:

o Such further Shares shall be offered to the persons who, at the date of the offer, are holders of the equity Shares
of the Company, in proportion, as nearly as circumstances admit, to the capital paid- up on those Shares at that
date by sending a letter of offer subject to the following conditions:

= The offer aforesaid shall be made by a notice specifying the number of Shares offered and limiting a
time not being less than 15 days (or such other lesser period permitted under Applicable Law) and not
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exceeding 30 days from the date of the offer within which the offer, if not accepted, will be deemed to
have been declined.
=  The offer aforesaid shall be deemed to include a right exercisable by the Person concerned to renounce
the Shares offered to him or any of them in favour of any other Person and the notice referred to in sub-
clause (i) shall contain a statement of this right.
= After the expiry of the time specified in the aforesaid notice, or on receipt of earlier intimation from the
person to whom such notice is given that he declines to accept the Shares offered, the Board may
dispose of them in such manner which is not disadvantageous to the Shareholders and the Company.
(i1) Notwithstanding anything contained in Article 12 (i), the further Shares aforesaid may be offered to any persons
(whether or not those persons include the persons referred to in clause (a) of sub clause (i) hereof) in any manner
whatsoever, either for cash or for a consideration other than cash.if a special resolution to that effect is passed by the
Company in a General Meeting and subject to such other applicable conditions prescribed under Section 62 of the Act
(ii1) Nothing in Sub-clause (iii) of Sub-Article (a) of 12 (i) hereof shall be deemed:
(a) To extend the time within which the offer should be accepted; or
(b) To authorise any person to exercise the right of renunciation for a second time, on the ground that the
person in whose favour the renunciation was first made has declined to take the Shares comprised in the
renunciation.
(iv) Subject to Section 62 of the Act, nothing in this Article shall apply to the increase of the subscribed capital of the
Company caused by the exercise of an option as a term attached to the debentures issued or loan raised by the Company
to convert such debentures or loans into shares in the company. Provided that the terms of issue of such debentures or
loan containing such an option have been approved before the issue of such debentures or the raising of loan by a special
resolution passed by the Company in general meeting.
(v) Notwithstanding anything contained in Article 12(iv) hereof, where any debentures have been issued, or loan has
been obtained from any government by the Company, and if that government considers it necessary in the public interest
so to do, it may, by order, direct that such debentures or loans or any part thereof shall be converted into shares in the
Company on such terms and conditions as appear to the Government to be reasonable in the circumstances of the case
even if terms of the issue of such debentures or the raising of such loans do not include a term for providing for an option
for such conversion:
Provided that where the terms and conditions of such conversion are not acceptable to the Company, it may, within 60
days from the date of communication of such order, appeal to National Company Law Tribunal which shall after hearing
the Company and the Government pass such order as it deems fit

e Subject to the Applicable Laws and to such directions as may be issued by the President in this behalf, the Company
may, from time to time, by special resolution reduce its capital by paying off capital or cancelling capital which has been
lost or is unrepresented by available assets, or is superfluous or by reducing the liability on the Shares or otherwise as
may seem expedient, and capital may be paid off upon the footing that it may be called upon again or otherwise, and the
Board may, subject to the Applicable Laws, accept surrender of Shares.

e Subject to the approval of President, the Company in general meeting may, from time to time, sub-divide or consolidate
its Shares or any of them and exercise any of the powers conferred under the Applicable Laws, the Company shall file
with the Registrar such notice of exercise of any such power as may be required by the Act

e If at any time, the Capital, by reason of the issue of preference Shares or otherwise, is divided into different classes of

share, all or any of the rights and privileges attached to each class may, subject to the Applicable Law be modified,
abrogated or dealt with by agreement between the Company and by any person purporting to contract on behalf of that
class, provided that such agreement is (a) ratified in writing by the holders of at least three-fourths of the nominal value
of the issued Shares of that class, or {b) confirmed by a resolution passed at a separate general meeting and supported by
the votes of at least three-fourths of the holders of Shares of that class and all the provisions hereinafter contained as to
general meeting shall mutatis mutandis apply to every such meeting except that the quorum thereof shall be Members
holding or representing by proxy one-fifth of the nominal amount of the issued Shares of that class. This Article is not by
implication to curtail the power of modification which the Company would have if the Article were omitted.
Notwithstanding anything contained in these Articles, the Board of Directors may, when and if thought fit, buy back such
of the Company's own Shares or other Securities as it may think proper subject to such limits, upon such terms and
conditions and subject to such approvals as may be provided by law, or any statutory modification thereto and such other
regulations and guidelines as may be issued in this regard.
Subject to Applicable Lawsand the rules and regulations prescribed in this connection, the Board of Directors, may offer,
issue and allot Shares in the Capital of the Company as sweat equity shares or shares under the employees stock option
scheme / employees stock option plan / employee stock purchase scheme and such other plans/scheme by whatever name
called permitted under Applicable Laws

Share Certificates

e Every Member whose name is entered as a member in the Register, shall be entitled, without payment, to one or more
certificates in marketable lots, for all the Shares of each class or denomination registered in his name, or if the Directors
so approve (upon paying such fee as the Directors may from time to time determine)to several certificates, each for one
or more of such Shares and the Company shall complete and keep ready for delivery such certificates within two Months
after incorporation, in case of subscribers to the memorandum or after allotment, unless the conditions of issue thereof
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otherwise provide, or within one Month of the receipt of application of registration of transfer, transmission, subdivision,
consolidation or renewal of any of its Shares as the case may be. Every certificate of Shares shall be under the Seal of the
Company and shall specify the number and distinctive numbers of Shares in respect of which it is issued and amount
paid-up thereon and shall be in such form as the Directors may prescribe or approve. A Director may sign a share
certificate by affixing his signature thereon by means of any machine, equipment or other mechanical means, such as
engraving in metal or lithography; but not by means of a rubber stamp provided that the Director shall be responsible for
the safe custody of such machine, equipment or other material used for the purpose.
Provided that, in respect of a share or Shares held jointly by several persons, the Company shall not be bound to issue
more than one certificate, and delivery of a certificate for a share to one of several joint holders shall be sufficient
delivery to all such holders

e If any share certificate be worn-out, defaced, mutilated or torn or if there be no further space on the back thereof for
endorsement of transfer, then upon production and surrender thereof to the Company, a new certificate may be issued in
lieu, thereof. If any share certificate is lost or destroyed then upon proof thereof to the satisfaction of the Company and
on execution of such indemnity as the Company deems adequate, being given, a new certificate in lieu thereof shall be
given to the party entitled to such lost or destroyed certificate. Every Certificate under the Articles shall be issued without
payment of fees if the Directors so decide, or on payment of Rs. 20/-for each certificate as the Directors shall prescribe.
Provided that no fee shall be charged for issue of new certificates in replacement of those which are old, defaced or worn
out or where there is no further space on the back thereof for endorsement of transfer. Provided that the Directors shall
comply with such rules or regulation or requirements of any Stock Exchange or the Rules made under the Act or the rules
made under Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 or any other act, or rules applicable in this behalf. The
provisions of Article 16 and 17shall mutatis mutandis apply to the debenture certificates of the Company.

Transfer And Transmission of Shares

e Subject to the provisions of Section 58 of the Act and these Articles the Shares of the Company are freely
transferable.Subject to the provisions of Section 58 of the Act, these Articles and other Applicable Laws, the Board may
refuse whether in pursuance of any power of the Company under these Articles or otherwise to register the transfer of, or
the transmission by operation of law of the right to, any Shares or interest of a Member in or Debentures of the Company.
The Company shall within 60 days (or such other period prescribed under Applicable Laws) from the date on which the
instrument of transfer, or the intimation of such transmission, as the case may be, was delivered to Company, send notice
of the refusal to the transferee and the transferor or to the person giving intimation of such transmission, as the case may
be, giving reasons for such refusal. Provided that the registration of a transfer shall not be refused on the ground of the
transferor being either alone or jointly with any other person or persons indebted to the Company on any account
whatsoever except where the Company has a lien on Shares.

e Save as herein otherwise provided, the Directors shall be entitled to treat the person whose name appears on the Register
as the holder of any share as the absolute owner thereof and accordingly shall not (except as ordered by a Court of
competent jurisdiction or as by law required) be bound to recognize any benami trust or equitable contingent or other
claim to or interest in such share on the part of any person whether or not it shall have express or implied notice thereof.

e The instrument of transfer of any share in the Company shall be executed by or on behalf of both by the transferor and
transferee and the transferor shall be deemed to remain a holder of the share until the name of the transferee is entered in
the Register in respect thereof.

e The Company shall use a common form of transfer. The instrument of transfer shall be in writing and all provisions of
Section 56 of the Act and statutory modification thereof for the time being shall be duly complied with in respect of all
transfer of Shares and registration thereof. In case of transfer of Shares where the Company has not issued any
certificates and where the Shares are held in dematerialized form, the provisions of the Depositories Act shall apply.

e Every instrument of transfer shall be delivered at the office for registration, accompanied by the certificate of the Shares
to be transferred and such evidence, as the Company may require to prove the title of the transferor, on his right to
transfer the Shares. All instruments of transfer shall be retained by the Company, but any instrument of transfer which the
Directors may decline to register shall, on demand, be returned to the Person depositing the same.

The Company shall keep a "Register of Transfers" and therein shall be fairly and distinctly enter particulars of every
transfer or transmission of Shares

e (i) On the death of a Member/ Debenture holder, his legal representatives shall be the only persons recognized by the
Company as having any title of his interest in the Shares or Debentures.

(i1) Nothing contained in Article 18 shall prejudice any power of the Company to register as Shareholder or debenture
holder any person to whom the right to any Shares or debentures in the Company has been transmitted by operation of
law.

(iii) In the case of the death of any one or more of the persons named in the Register of Members or Debenture holders as
the joint-holders of any share or debenture the survivor or survivors shall be the only persons recognized by the company
as having any title to or interest in such share or debenture, but nothing herein contained shall be taken to release the
estate of a deceased joint-holder from any liability on Shares or Debentures held by him jointly with any other Person.
(iv) The Executors or Administrators or holders of a Succession Certificate or the legal representatives of a deceased
Member or Debenture holder (not being one of two or more joint-holders) shall be the only persons recognized by the
Company as having any title to the Shares or Debentures registered in the name of such Member or Debenture holder and
the Company shall not be bound to recognize such Executors or Administrators or holders of a Succession Certificate or
the legal representatives unless such Executors or Administrators or legal representatives shall have first obtained probate
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or Letters of Administration or a Succession Certificate as the case may be from a duly constituted Court in the Union of
India provided that in any case where the Board in its absolute discretion thinks fit, the Board may dispense with
production of Probate of letters of Administration or a Succession Certificate, upon such terms as to indemnity or
otherwise as the Board in its absolute discretion may think necessary

(a) The Board's power under Article 18 shall apply to registration of the transmission of the right to any Shares in, or
Debentures of, the Company as they apply to, in the case of registration of transfer of Shares or Debentures.

(b) Notwithstanding any provisions contained in these Articles regarding Certificates/ transfer/Transmission of Shares,
the provisions of Depositories Act and regulations made by the Securities and Exchange of India shall apply for
Certificate/ transfer/ transmission done in electronic form.

The Register of members or the Register of Debenture holders may be closed for any period or periods not exceeding in
the aggregate 45 days in each year but not exceeding 30 days at any one time after giving not less than 7 days (or such
lesser period as may be specified by the Securities and Exchange Board of India) previous notice by advertisement in
some newspaper circulating in the district in which the Registered Office of the Company is situated

No fees shall be charged for registration of transfer, transmission, probate, succession certificate and letters of
administration, certificate of death or marriage, Power of attorney or similar other document with the Company.

The Board may, from time to time, make such calls on uniform basis, as it thinks fit, upon the Members in respect of any
moneys, unpaid on their Shares, (whether on account of the nominal value of the Shares or by way of premium) and not
by conditions of allotment thereof made payable at fixed timesand each Member shall (subject to receiving at least 14
days' noticespecifying the time or times of payments, and each Member shall pay to the Company at the time or times so
specified the amount called on his Shares. Provided however, that the Directors may, from time to time, at their
discretion extend the time fixed for the payment of any call.

Subject to the Applicable Laws, if the sum payable in respect of any call be not paid on or before the day appointed for
payment thereof, the holder for the time being or allottee of the share in respect of which a call shall have been made,
shall pay interest on the same at such rate not exceeding 10% per annum as the Directors shall fix, from the day
appointed for the payment thereof to the time of actual payment, but the Directors may waive payment of such interest
wholly or in part.

The Directors may, if they think fit, subject to the provisions of Section 50 of the Act, agree to and receive from any
Member willing to advance the same, all or any part of the moneys due upon the Shares held by him beyond the sums
actually called for and upon the moneys so paid in advance or so much thereof as from time to time exceeds the amount
of the calls then made, upon the Shares in respect of which such advance has been made, the Company may pay interest
at such rate not exceeding 12 per cent per annum as the Members paying such sum in advance and the Directors agree
upon. Provided that money paid in advance of calls shall not confer a right to participate in profits or Dividend. The
Members shall not be entitled to any voting rights in respect of the money so paid by him until the same would but for
such payment, become presently payable. The provisions of these Articles shall mutatis mutandis apply to the calls on
Debentures of the Company. The Directors may at any time repay the amount so advanced.

The joint holders of a share shall be jointly and severally liable to pay all calls in respect thereof.

A call shall be deemed to have been made at the time when the resolution of the Directors authorizing such call
was passed unless the same is expressly made effective on any other date under such resolution. Not less than 14 days'
notice of any call shall be given specifying the place and time of payment and to whom such call shall be paid provided
that the Directors may subject to section 49 of the Act, by notice in writing to a Member, revoke the call or extend the
time for payment thereof.

A call may be revoked or postponed as the Directors may determine. No call shall exceed one-fourth of the nominal
value of the share (or such other amount determined the Board or permitted under Applicable Laws) or be payable at less
than 1 Month (or such other period permitted under Applicable Laws) from the date fixed for the payment of the last
proceeding call.

The Company shall have first and paramount lien upon all theShares/ Debentures(other than fully paid-up
Shares/Debentures) registered in the name of each Member (whether solely or jointly with others) and upon the proceeds
of sale thereof for all moneys (whether presently payable or not) called or payable at a fixed time in respect of such
Shares/debentures and no equitable interest in any share shall be created except upon the footing and condition that this
Article will have full effect. And such lien shall extend to all Dividendspayableand bonuses declared from time to time in
respect of such Shares/debentures. Unless otherwise agreed, the registration of a transfer of Shares/debentures shall
operate as a waiver of the Company's lien if any, on such Shares/debentures. The Directors may at any time declare any
Shares/ debentures wholly or in part to be exempt from the provisions of this Article.The fully paid Shares will be free
from all lien, and the lien of the Company on the partly paid-up Shares/Debentures will be restricted to moneys called or
payable at a fixed time in respect of such Shares/Debentures

The Company may sell, in such manner as the Directors think fit, any Shares on which the Company has a lien, but no
sale shall be made unless a sum in respect of which the lien exists, is presently payable nor until the expiration of
fourteen days after a notice in writing stating and demanding payment of such part of amount in respect of which the lien
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exists as is presently payable, has been given to the registered holder for the time being of the share, or the Person
entitled thereto by reason of his death or insolvency to the share

e The proceeds of the sale shall be received by the Company and shall be applied in payment of such part of the amount in
respect of which the lien exists as is presently payable, and the residue shall (subject to a like lien for sums not presently
payable as existed upon the Shares prior to the sale) be paid to the Person entitled to the Shares at the date of the sale.
The purchaser shall be registered as the holder of the Shares and he shall not be bound to see to the application of the
purchase money, nor shall his title to the Shares be affected by any irregularity or invalidity in the proceedings in
reference to the sale

Forfeiture of Shares

e If a Member fails to pay the whole or any part of any call, or installment of a call or any money due in respect of any
Shares either by way of principal or interest on or before the day appointed for payment thereof the Board may, at any
time thereafter during such time as any part of the call or installment or any part thereof or other moneys remain unpaid
or a judgment or decree in respect thereof remains unsatisfied in whole or in part, serve a notice on him requiring
payment of so much of the call or installment as is unpaid, together with any interest which may have accrued and all
expenses {legal or otherwise) that may have been incurred by the Company by reason of such non-payments

e The notice aforesaid shall:

(a) Name a further day (not being earlier than the expiry of fourteen days from the date of service of the notice) on or
before which the payment required by the notice is to be made;

(b) Name a place or places on and at which such call or installment and interest as Board may determine is to be paid;
and

(c) State that, in the event of non-payment on or before the day so named, the Shares in respect of which the call was
made will be liable to be forfeited.

e If the requirements of any such notice as aforesaid are not complied with, any Shares in respect of which the notice has
been given may, at any time thereafter before the payment required by the notice has been made, be forfeited by a
resolution of the Board to that effect. Such forfeiture shall include all Dividends declared or any other monies payable in
respect of the forfeited Shares and not actually paid before forfeiture.

e  When any share shall have been so forfeited, notice of the forfeiture shall be given to the holder of the share and an entry
of the forfeiture with the date thereof shall be made in the Register of Members.

e A forfeited share may be sold or otherwise disposed of on such terms and in such manner as the Board thinks fit.

e Atany time before sale of disposal as aforesaid, the Board may cancel the forfeiture on such terms as it thinks fit.

e (i) A person whose Shares, have been forfeited shall cease to be a Member in respect of the forfeited Shares, but shall,
notwithstanding the forfeiture remain liable to pay to the Company all moneys which at the date of forfeiture, were
presently payable by him to the Company in respect of the Shares.

(i) The liability of such persons shall cease if and when the Company shall have received payment in full of all such
moneys in respect of the Shares

e (i) A duly verified declaration in writing that the declarant is a Director, the Manager or the Secretary of the Company
and that a share in the Company has been duly forfeited on a date stated in the declaration, shall be conclusive evidence
of the facts therein stated as against all persons claiming to be entitled to the share
(ii) The Company may receive the consideration, if any, given for the share on any sale or disposal thereof and may
execute a transfer of the share in favour of the person to whom the share is sold or disposed of
(ii1) The transferee shall thereupon be registered as the holders of the share.

(iv) The transferee shall not be bound to see to the application of the purchase money, if any, nor shall his title to the
share be effected by any irregularity or invalidity in the proceedings in reference to the forfeiture sale or disposal of the
share

e The provisions of these Articles as to forfeiture shall apply in the case of non- payment of any sum which, by terms of
issue of a share, becomes payable at a fixed time, whether on account of the nominal value of the share or by way of
premium, as if the same had been payable by virtue of a call duly made and notified.

The Board may at any time before any share so forfeited shall have been sold, re-allotted or otherwise disposed off;
annuls the forfeiture there of upon such condition as it thinks fit. Provisions regarding forfeiture to apply in the case of
non-payment of sums payable at a fixed time

General Meetings

e Except in the case when for any special reason, time for holding any annual general meeting (not being the first annual
general meeting) is extended by the Registrar, by a period not exceeding 3 Months under Section 96 of the Act, no
greater interval than 15 Months shall be allowed to elapse between the date of one annual general meeting and that of the
next. Every annual general meeting shall be held during business hours i.e., 9 a.m. to 6 p.m. on a day other than National
Holiday either at the Registered Office of the Company or at some other place within the city, town or village in which
the Registered Office of the Company is situated and the notices calling the meeting shall specify it as the annual general
meeting. Such general meeting shall be called "Annual General Meeting" and all other meetings of the Company shall be
called "Extra-ordinary General Meeting."

A Member of the Company may participate in a general meeting through the electronic mode, that is, oy way of a video
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conferencing facility, subject (o compliance with AppHcable Laws. However the quorum required under Section 103 of

the Act, as well as the Chairman of the meeting shall have to be physically present at the place of the meeting

Voting by Postal Ballot is also permitted in case of such requirement from the Shareholders/Members.

(1) The Directors may call an Extra-ordinary General Meeting whenever they think fit

(i1) Subject to the provisions of Section 100 of the Act:

(a) The Directors shall, on the requisition of the holders of not less than one-tenth of the issued share capital of
the Company, upon which all calls or other sums then due have been paid forthwith, proceed to call an
Extra-ordinary General Meeting of the Company.

(b) The requisition must state the objects of the meeting and must be signed by the requisitionists and deposited
at the Registered Office of the Company and may consist of several documents in like form, each signed by
one or more requisitionists. In case of joint holders of Shares, all such holders shall sign the requisition.

(c) If the Directors do not proceed, within 21 days or such other lesser period, as may be prescribed, from time
to time, under the Act, from the date of the receipt of a valid requisition in regard to any matter, to cause a
meeting to be called, the requisitionists or a majority of them in value may themselves call the meeting but
in either case, any meeting so called shall be held within three Months from the date of the requisition.

(d) Any meeting called under this Article by the requisitionists, shall be called in the same manner as nearly as
possible, as that in which meetings are to be called by the Directors.

(e) Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists in calling a meeting under Article 47(b) shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionists by the Company and the sums so paid shall be deducted from any fee or
any remuneration under Section 197 of the Act, payable to such Directors who were in default in calling the
meeting

A general meeting of the Company may be called, by giving not less than clear twenty one days' notice either in writing

or through electronic mode in such manner as prescribed in Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014

and other Applicable Laws. Such notice shall be served on every Member in the manner provided under Actand rules

framed thereunder. Ageneralmeeting may be called after giving shorter notice thantwenty one days, if consent, in writing
or by electronic mode, isaccorded thereto by Members of the Company, and in the manner specified under the Applicable

Laws.

Provided, however, that where any resolution is intended to be passed as a special resolution at any general meeting as

required by Section 114(2)(a) of the Act, notice of such meetings specifying the intention to propose the resolution as a

special resolution shall be served

The accidental omission to give any such notice to or the non-receipt of any such notice by any Member shall not

invalidate the proceedings at any meeting

The business of an ordinary meeting shall be to receive and consider the profit and loss account, the balance sheet, and

the report of the Directors and the Auditors, to declare Dividends and to transact any other business which under these

Articles ought to be transacted at an ordinary meeting. All other businesses transacted at an ordinary meeting and all

businesses transacted at an extra-ordinary meeting, shall be deemed special

The quorum for a General Meeting shall be as per Section 103(1) (a) of the Act

(i) The President so long as he is a shareholder of the Company, may fromtime to time, appoint one or more Persons

(who need not be a Member or Members of the Company) to represent him at all or any meeting of the Company.

(i) Any one of the Persons appointed under sub-clause (i) of this Article who is personally present at the meeting shall be

deemed to be a Member for the purposes of a quorum and to be entitled to vote and be present in Person and shall be

entitled to represent the President at all or any such meetings and to vote on his behalf whether on a show of hands or on

a poll.

(iii) The President may, from time to time, cancel any appointment made under sub-clause (i) of this Article and make

fresh appointments.

(iv) The production, at the meeting, of an order of the President shall be accepted by the Company as sufficient evidence

of any such appointment or cancellation as aforesaid.

(v) Any Person appointed by the President under this Article may, if so authorized, by such order, appoint a proxy,

whether specially or generally.

The Chairman of the Board of Directors shall be entitled to take the chair at every general meeting or if there be no such

Chairman, or if at any meeting he is not present within fifteen minutes after the time appointed for holding such meeting

or is unwilling to act as Chairman, the Members present shall choose another Director as Chairman, and if no Director is

present, or if all the Directors present decline to take the chair then, the Members present shall choose one amongst
themselves to be the Chairman for the meeting

If within half-an-hour, from the time appointed for the meeting a quorum is not present:

(a) it shall stand adjourned to the same day in the next week, at the same time and placeor such other time and place as
the Directors may determine, and if at such adjourned meeting, a quorum is not present, those Members who are
present shall be quorum and may transact the business for which the meeting was called.

(b) it shall stand cancelled, if the meeting is called by requisitionists under Section 100 of Act.

Provided that in case of an adjourned meeting or of a change of day, time or place of meeting under sub clause (a),
of this Article the Company shall give not less than 3 days' notice to the Members either individually or by
publishing an advertisement in the newspapers (one in English and one in vernacular language) which is in
circulation at the place where the Registered Office of the Company is situated

Every question submitted to a meeting shall be decided, in the first instance, by a show of hands or voting carried out
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electronically and in the case of an equality of votes, the Chairman shall, both on a show of hands and at a poll (if any),
have a casting vote in addition to the vote or votes to which he may be entitled as a Member

Votes of Members

e Subject to the Applicable Laws and these Articles votes may be given either personally or by an attorney or by proxy or
in the case of a body corporate also by a representative duly authorised under Section 113 of the Act.

At any general meeting a resolution put to vote of the meeting shall be decided on a show of hands, unless a poll is
demanded, or voting is carried out electronically, before or on the declaration of the result of the show of hands
demanded by a Member present in person or proxy or by duly authorized representative.Unless a poll is so demanded, a
declaration by the Chairman that a resolution has, on a show of hands been carried or carried unanimously or by a
particular majority won or lost and an entry to that effect in the book of proceedings of the Company, shall be conclusive
evidence of the fact, without proof of the number of proportion of the vote recorded in favour of or against that
resolution.

No Member not personally present shall be entitled to vote on a show of hands unless such Member is present by
attorney or unless such Member is a body corporate present by a representative duly authorized under Section 113 of the
Actin which case such attorney or representative may vote on a show of hands as if he was a member of the Company

e The Company shall provide to its Members the facility to exercise their right to vote at general meetings by electronic
means. A Member may exercise his vote at a meeting by electronic means in accordance with Section 108 of the Act read
with Rule 20 of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014and other Applicable Laws, and shall vote
only once

e Ifa poll is duly demanded, it shall be taken in such manner as provided under Section 109 of the Act and at such time
and place as the Chairman of the meeting directs(not being later than forty eight hours from the time when the demand
was made), and either at once or after an interval or adjournment or otherwise, and the result of the poll shall be deemed
to be the resolution of the meeting at which the poll was demanded. The demand of a poll may be withdrawn

e The Chairman of a general meeting may, with the consent of the Members, adjourn the same, from time to time and from
place to place, but no business shall be transacted at any adjourned meeting other than the business left unfinished at the
meeting from which the adjournment took place

e Subject to the provisions of Section 109 of the Act, any poll duly demanded on the election of a Chairman of a meeting
or on any question of adjournment shall be taken at the meeting and without adjournment

e The demand of a poll shall not prevent the continuance of a meeting for the transaction of any business other than the
question on which a poll has been demanded

e The Chairman of any meeting shall be the sole judge of the validity of every vote tendered at such meetings. The
Chairman present at the taking of a poll shall be the sole judge of the validity of every vote tendered at such poll.

e Upon a show of hands every Member present in Person shall have one vote, every Member shall have one vote through
voting by electronic means and upon a poll every Member present inPerson or by proxy or by duly authorized
representative shall have one vote for every share held by him.

e A proxy shall not be entitled to vote on a show of hands.

e  Any Person entitled under the transmission clause to any Shares may vote at any general meeting in respect thereof in the
same manner as if he were the registered holder of such Shares provided that 72hours at least before the time of holding
the meeting or adjourned meeting, as the case may be, at which he proposes to vote, he shall satisfy the Directors of his
right to such Shares, unless the Directors shall have previously admitted his right to such Shares or his right to vote at
such meeting in respect thereof

e  Where there are joint registered holders of any share any one of such persons may vote at any meeting, either personally
or by proxy, in respect of such Shares as if he were solely entitled thereto, and if more than one of such joint holders be
present at any meeting personally or by proxy, that one of the said persons present whose name stands first on the register
in respect of such share shall alone be entitled to vote in respect thereof. Several Executors or Administrators of a
deceased Member in whose name any share stands shall for the purposes of this clause be deemed joint holders thereof

e A Member of unsound mind, or in respect of whom an order has been made by any Court having jurisdiction in lunacy,
may vote whether on a show of hands or on poll by his committee or other legal guardian, and any such committee or
guardian may, on a poll vote by proxy

e On apoll, votes may be given either personally or by proxy or by duly authorized representative.

e A Member entitled to attend and vote at a meeting may appoint another person(whether a Member or not) as his proxy to
attend a meeting and vote on a poll. No Member shall appoint more than one proxy to attend on the same occasion. A
proxy shall not be entitled to speak at a meeting or to vote except on a poll. The instruments appointing a proxy shall be
in a form as prescribed in the rules made under Section 105 of the Act and rules framed thereunder, and shall be signed
by the appointer or his attorney duly authorized in writing or if the appointer is a body corporate, be under its seal or be
signed by an officer or an attorney duly authorized by it

e The instrument appointing a proxy and the power of attorney or other authority (if any) under which it is signed or a
notarially certified copy of that power or authority, shall be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less
than 48 hours before the time for holding the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the person named in the instrument
proposes to vote, or in the case of poll not less than 24 hours before the time appointed for taking of the poll and in
default the instrument of proxy shall not be treated as valid

e A vote given in accordance with the terms of an instrument of proxy shall be valid, notwithstanding the previous death or
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insanity of the principal or the revocation of the proxy or of the authority under which the proxy was executed, or the
transfer of the Shares in respect of which the proxy is given provided that no intimation in writing of such death, insanity,
revocation, or transfer or transmission shall have been received at the office of the Company before the commencement
of the meeting or adjourned meeting at which the proxy is used.

e No objection shall be made to the validity of any vote except at the meeting or poll at which such vote shall be tendered,
and everyvote whether given personally or by proxy, not disallowed at such meeting or poll, shall be deemed valid for all
purposes of such meeting or poll whatsoever. Any such objection made in due time shall be referred to the chairperson of
the meeting, whose decision shall be final and conclusive

Board of Directors

e The business of the Company shall be managed by the Board of Directors, the composition of which shall be in
accordance with Section 149 of the Act read with rules framed thereunder and other Applicable Laws. The President
shall from time to time determine the number of Directors of the Company which shall neither be less than five nor more
than sixteen. The Directors shall not be required to hold any qualification Shares

e The Chairman / Chairman-cum-Managing Director shall be appointed by the President and the terms and conditions of
his appointment shall also be determined by the President

e  The President shall appoint all members of the Board of Directors and all of them except the Government Directors may
be appointed in consultation with the Chairman. Part-Time Non-Official Directors shall be appointed for such period, as
may be determined by the President, but not exceeding three years at a time

e The Directors shall be paid such remuneration as the President may from time to time determine. The terms and
conditions of appointment of whole-time Directors including the Managing Director shall also be determined by the
President. Subject to the provisions of Sections197 and 200 of the Act such reasonable additional remuneration as may be
fixed by the President may be paid to any one or more of the Directors for extra or special service rendered by him or
them or otherwise

e At every Annual General Meeting of the Company one-third of the Part Time Non-Official Directors shall retire by
rotation in the manner provided under the Act. The Directors to retire shall be those who have been longest in the office
since their last appointment, but as between persons who became Directors on the same day, those who are to retire shall
be determined by the President in consultation with the Chairman of the Company. Retiring Directors shall be eligible for
reappointment

e The President may from time to time or at any time remove any Director including the Chairman from office at his
absolute discretion except that any whole-time Director including the Chairman may be removed from office only in
accordance with the terms of his appointment or if no such terms are specified on the expiry of 3 Months' notice in
writing or on payment of his salary in lieu of such notice

e The President shall have the power to fill any vacancy in the office of Director caused by retirement, removal,
resignation, and death or otherwise

e Subject to Applicable Laws, in place of a Director who is out of India or is about to go out of India or who expects- to be
absent for not less than three Months from the state in which meetings of the directors are ordinarily held, the President
may appoint, in consultation with the Chairman of the Company, any Person to be an alternate Director during his
absence out of India for a period of 3Months while he holds office as an alternate Director shall be entitled to notice of
meetings of the Board and to attend and to vote there at accordingly

e Subject to the provisions of the Act, the Board may, on nomination by the President appoint any Person as an Additional
Director, but the total number of Directors shall not at any time exceed the maximum limit fixed pursuant to Section 149.
Any such Additional Director shall hold office only up to the date of the next Annual General Meeting of the company.
Subject to the provisions of the Act, the Board shall have the power at any time and from time to time to appoint any
Person on nomination by the President to be a Director to fill up a casual vacancy not covered by Article

e Any Person so appointed shall hold office only upto the date upto which the Director in whose place he is appointed
would have held office if it had not been vacated by him

e The Board may, subject to the provision of Rule 6 of Companies (Meetings of Board and its Powers) Rules, 2014, and in
accordance with Chapter XII of the Act and other Applicable Laws,delegate any of their powers to Committees
consisting of such member or members of their body as they think fit, and they may from time to time revoke such
delegation. Any Committee so formed shall in the exercise of the powers so delegated conform to any regulations that
may from time to time be imposed on it by the Directors. The proceedings of such a Committee shall be placed before the
Board of Directors at its next meeting

e The meetings and proceeding of any such Committee consisting of two or more members shall be governed by the
provisions of the Act for regulating the meetings and proceedings of the Directors, so far as the same are applicable
thereto and are not superseded by any regulations made by the Directors under the last preceding Article

e A Committee may elect a chairman of their meetings. If no such chairman is elected or if at any meeting the chairman is
not present within 5 minutes after the time appointed for holding the same, the members present may choose one of their
members to the chairman of the meeting.

e All acts done by any meeting of the Directors, or a Committee of Directors or by any person acting as a Director shall,
notwithstanding that ii be afterwards discovered that there was some defect in the appointment of such Directors or
persons acting as aforesaid, or that they or any of them were disqualified, be as valid as if every such Person had been
duly appointed and was qualified to be a Director. Provided that nothing in this Article shall be deemed to give validity to
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acts done by a Director after his appointment has been shown to the Company to be invalid or to have terminated When
acts of Directors or Committee valid notwithstanding defective appointment, etc
Subject to the provisions of Section 175 of the Act, a resolution in writing passed by circulation and signed by all or by a
majority of Directors shall be as valid and effectual as if it had been passed at meeting of the Directors duly called and
constituted.
Subject to the provisions of Section 179 and 180 of the Act, the Board may, from time to time, entrust and confer upon
the Chairman/Managing Director for the time being such of the powers as they may think fit and may confer such powers
for such time and to be exercised for such objects and purposes and upon such terms and conditions and with such
restrictions as they may think expedient and may, from time to time, revoke, withdraw, alter or vary all or any such
powers.
(i) Subject to the Applicable Laws, the Chairman shall reserve for decision of the President any proposals or decisions of
the Board of Directors or any matter brought before the Board which raises, in the opinion of the Chairman an important
issue and which is on that account fit to be reserved for the decision of the President and no decision on such an
important issue shall be taken in the absence of the Chairman appointed by the President
(i1) Subject to the Applicable Laws and without prejudice to the generality of the above provision, the Board shall reserve
for the decision of the President, any matter relating to:

(a) Winding up of the Company.

(b) Sale, lease, disposal or otherwise of the whole or substantially the whole of the undertaking of the Company.

(¢c) Appointment in the Company or in any of its subsidiaries of any person, other than foreign technical personnel,

who has attained the age of 60 years.

No action shall be taken by the Company in respect of any proposals or decisions of the Board of Directors reserved for
the approval of the President until his approval to the same has been obtained. The President shall have the power to
modify or reject such proposals or decisions of the Directors
Notwithstanding anything contained in any of these Articles, President may from time to time, issue such directives or
instructions as may be considered necessary in regard to finances, conduct of business and affairs of the Company and in
like manner may vary and annul any such directive or instruction. The Directors shall give immediate effect to the
directives or instructions so issued. In particular the President will have power to
(i) give directives to the Company as to the exercise and performance of its functions in matters involving national
security or substantial public interest;
(ii) call for such returns, accounts, and other information with respect to the property and activities of the Company as
may be deemed necessary from time to time; and
(iii) determine in consultation with the Board of Company, annual, short and long term financial and economic objectives
of the Company.
Provided that all directives issued by President shall be in writing addressed to the Chairman. The Board shall except,
where President considers that the interest of the national security requires otherwise, incorporate the contents of
directives issued by President in the annual report of the Company and also indicate its impact on the financial position
of the Company.
A director of this Company may be, or become a Director of any company promoted by this Company or in which it may
be interested as a vendor, member or otherwise and no such directors shall be accountable for any benefit received as
Director or member of such company, subject to Section 165 of the Act
The business of the Company shall be managed by the Directors who may pay all expenses incurred in getting the
Company registered and may exercise all such powers of the Company including the powers delegated from time to time
by the Govt. of India by way of notifications/ office memorandums/ guidelines etc., as are not, by the Act, or by these
Articles
Subject to Sectionl790f the Act and the Applicable Laws and without prejudice to the general powers conferred by the
Act and the other powers conferred by these Articles, the Board of Directors shall have the following powers, that is to
say powers

(1) To acquire property: to purchase, take on lease or otherwise acquire for the Company, property, rights or
privileges which the Company is authorized to acquire at such price, and generally on such terms and conditions
as they think fit.

(i1) To pay and charge interest etc.: To pay and charge to the capital account of the Company any interest lawfully
payable thereto under the Applicable Laws

(1ii) To authorize the undertaking of capital works: to authorize the undertaking of capital works and to invite and
accept tenders including variations if any in approved estimates.

(iv) To pay for property in debentures, etc.: to pay for any property, rights or privileges acquired by, or services

rendered to the Company either wholly or partially in cash or in Shares, bonds, debentures, debenture stock or in
Shares that may be issued either as fully paid up or with such amount credited as paid up thereon as may be
agreed upon; and any such bonds, debentures, debenture stock or other Securities may be either specifically
charged upon all or any part of the property of the Company and its uncalled capital or not so charged;

(v) To secure contracts by mortgage : to secure the fulfillment of any contracts or engagements entered into by the
Company or by mortgage or charge of all or any of the property of the Company and its unpaid capital for the
time being or in such other manner as they may think fit;

(vi) To create posts and make appointments thereto : to create all posts below the level of Directors on the Board, to
make appointments thereto and at their discretion remove or suspend such managers; secretaries, officers,
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(vii)

(viii)

(ix)
®)

(xi)
(xii)

(xiii)

(xiv)

(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

(xx)

(xxi)

clerks, agents and servants for permanent or temporary or special services as they may from time to time think
fit, and to determine their powers and duties and fix their salaries or emoluments and to require security in such
instances and to such amount as they may think fit;

Provided that appointments of persons (whether from the public or the private sector) to posts in the scale of pay
as may be decided by the Govt, from time to time, of persons who have already attained the age of 60 years,
shall be made only with the approval of the President;

Provided further that in the case of appointment of foreign techniciansapproval of the President shall not be
required.

To appoint trustees: to appoint any person or persons (whether incorporated or not) to accept and hold in trust
for the Company, any property belonging to the Company or in which it is interested or for any other purposes,
and to execute and do all such deeds and things as may be requisite in relation to any such trust and to provide
for the remuneration or such trustee or trustees

To bring and defend action etc. : to institute, conduct, defend, compound or abandon any legal proceedings by
or against the Company or its officers, or otherwise concerning the affairs of the Company and also to
compound and allow time for payment or satisfaction of any claims or demands by or against the Company;

To refer to arbitration: to refer any claims or demands by or against the Company to arbitration and observe and
perform the awards;

To give receipt : to make and give receipts, releases, and other discharges for money payable to the Company,
and for the claims and demands of the Company;

To authorize acceptance etc. : to determine who shall be entitled to sign on the Company's behalf, bills, notes,
receipts, acceptances, endorsements, cheques, releases, contracts and documents

To appoint attorneys: from time to time, to provide for the management of the affairs of the Company outside
the steel plant &mining areas which in the context includes the townships and sites of operations of the
Company in such manner as they think fit, and in particular to appoint any person to be the attorney or agent of
the Company with such powers (including power to sub-delegate) and upon such terms as may be thought fit;
Investment of moneys:To accumulate funds and to invest or otherwise employ moneys belonging to or with the
Company not immediately required for purpose thereof, as per the extant guidelines of the Department of Public
Enterprise or in the purchase or acquisition of any Shares, Securities, or other investment whatsoever whether
movable or immovable upon such terms as may be thought proper and from time to time vary all or any such
investment in such manner as the Company may think fit.

To give security by way of indemnity: to execute in the name and on behalf of the Company in favour of any
Director or other person who may incur or be about to incur any personal liability for the benefit of the
Company such mortgages of the Company's property (present and future) as they think fit and any such
mortgage may contain a power of sale and such other powers, covenants and provisions as shall be agreed on;
To give percentage: To give to any Director, officer or other person employed by the Company an interest in
any particular business or transaction either by way of commission on the gross expenditure thereon or
otherwise or a share in the general profits of the Company, and such interest, commission or share of profit shall
be treated as a part of the working expenses of the Company, subject to approval of the President of India;

To make bye-laws : To make, vary and repeal from time to time bye- laws for the regulation of the business of
the Company, its officers and servants;

To provide for the welfare of employees: To provide for the welfare of employees or ex employees of the
Company or of its predecessors in business and the wives, widows and families or the dependents or
connections of such employees or ex-employees, by building or contributing to the building of houses,
dwellings or chawls or by grants of money, pensions, allowances, bonuses, profit sharing bonuses or benefits of
any other kind, or by creating and from time to time subscribing or contributing to provident fund and other
associations, institutions, funds, profits sharing or other scheme or trusts or by providing or subscribing or
contributing towards places of instruction and recreation, hospitals, and dispensaries, medical and other
attendances and other form of assistance, welfare or relief as the Board of Directors shall think fit;

To subscribe to charitable and other funds: To subscribe or otherwise to assist or to guarantee money to
charitable, benevolent, religious, scientific, national, public, or any other institution or objects, or for any
exhibition subject to Section 181 of the Act;

To establish Local Board : from time to time and at any time to establish any Local Board for managing any of
the affairs of the Company in any specified locality in India, or out of India, and to appoint any person to be
members of such local Board and to fix their remuneration and from time to time and at any time to delegate to
any person so appointed any of the powers, authorities and discretion for the time being vested in the Directors
other than their power to make call, and to authorize the members for the time being of any such Local Board or
any of them to fill up any vacancies therein and to act notwithstanding vacancies, and any such appointment or
delegation may be made in such terms, and subject to such conditions as the Directors may think fit and the
Directors may at any time remove any Person so appointed and may annul or vary any such delegation.

To make contracts etc. : to enter into all such negotiations and contracts and rescind and vary all such contracts,
and execute and do all such acts, deeds and things in the name and on behalf of the Company as they consider
expedient for or in relation to any of the matters aforesaid or otherwise for the purpose of the Company;

To sub-delegate powers : Subject to Section 179 of the Act to sub- delegate all or any of the powers, authorities
and discretion for the time being vested in the Directors, subject however, to the ultimate control and authority
being retained by them; Any such delegate as aforesaid may be authorised by the Directors to sub-delegate all or
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Seal

any of the powers, authorities and discretions for the time being vested in them

(xxii)) To create depreciation, reserves and other funds: Subject to the Applicable Laws to set aside before
recommending any Dividend out of the profits of the Company such sums as they may think proper for
depreciation or to depreciation fund, Reserve or to Reserve fund to meet contingencies or Insurance Fund or any
special or other fund to meet contingencies or to repay redeemable preference Shares. Debentures or Debenture
stock and for special Dividends and for equalizing Dividends and for repairing, improving, extending, and
maintaining any part of the property of the company and for such other purposes as the Directors may, in their
absolute discretion, think conducive to the interest of the Company, and to invest the several sums so set aside
or so much there of as required to be invested upon such investments (subject to the restrictions imposed by the
Act) as the Directors may think fit, and from time to time to deal with and vary such investments and dispose of
and apply, and expend all or any part thereof for the benefit of the company, in such manner and for such
purposes as the Directors (subject to such restrictions) think conducive to the interest of the Company
notwithstanding that the matters to which the Directors apply or upon which they expend the same or any part
thereof, may be matters to or upon which the capital moneys of the Company might rightly be applied or
expended and to divide the Reserve Fund into such special funds as the Directors may think fit, and to employ
the assets constituting all or any of the above funds, including the Depreciation Fund, in the business of the
Company or in the purchase or repayment of redeemable preference Shares, debentures, or debenture stock and
that without being bound to keep the same separate from the other assets, and without being bound to pay or
allow interest on the same with power, however, to the Directors at their discretion to pay or allow to credit of
such fund, interest at such rate as the Directors may think proper not exceeding six per cent per annum.

(xxiii) To lend money: To lend moneys to subsidiaries and associated organisations, on such terms and conditions as
they may consider desirable.

(xxiv) To borrow etc.: To borrow or raise or secure the payment of money in such manner as the Board shall think fit,
and in particular by executing mortgages and the issue of debentures, or debenture stock, perpetual or otherwise,
charged upon all or any of the Company's property (both present and future) including its uncalled capital and to
purchase, redeem, or pay off any such Securities

(xxv)  To promote Companies etc.: Subject to provisions of the Act, to promote or establish wholly or partly owned
companies or subsidiaries and establish financial joint ventures in India or abroad with the stipulations that the
equity investment should be limited to the ceilings as envisaged by the Department of Public Enterprises for the
Company.

(xxvi) To enter with Technology Joint Ventures or Strategic Alliances.

(xxvii) To obtain Technology Know-how: to obtain by purchase or other arrangements, technology and know-how.

(xxviii) To effect organizational restructuring: to effect organizational restructuring including establishment of profit
centers, opening of offices in India and aboard, creating new activity centres etc.

(xxix) To structure personnel schemes: To structure and implement schemes relating to personnel and human resource
management, training, voluntary or compulsory retirement schemes etc.

(xxx)  To appoint additional Director / Directors on nominations by the President.

(xxxi) Powers by virtue of MOU: The powers of the Board shall also stand amended to the extent as reflected in the
MOUs entered into between the Company and the Government of India from time to time.

(xxxii) Powers by virtue of Guidelines/Circulars /OMs etc.: The Board of Directors are further empowered to exercise
such of the powers as may be delegated by way of Circulars / Office Memoranda issued by the Department of
Public Enterprise /OMs issued by concerned administrative ministry/ other Govt. agencies in respect of
empowerment to the Board of directors and will automatically become applicable and shall be implemented by
the Company accordingly.

The Directors shall provide the Seal for the purposes of the Company and shall have power from time to time to destroy
the same and substitute a new seal in lieu thereof, and the Directors shall provide for the safe custody of the seal for the
time being, and the Seal shall never be used except by the authority of the Directors or a Committee of Directors
previously given.

The seal of the Company shall not be affixed to any instrument except by the authority of a resolution of the Board of
Directors and except in the presence of at least one Director and of the Secretary or such other Person as the Board may
appoint for the purpose; and the said Director or the Person aforesaid shall sign every instrument to which the seal of the
Company is so affixed in their presence.

Meetings of Directors and Quorum

Subject to the Applicable Laws, in compliance with the extant guidelines, notifications, and circulars issued by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, from time to time, the Board of Directors shall meet together for the dispatch of business
at least once every 3 calendar Months, adjourn, and otherwise regulate their meetings as they think fit. The quorum
necessary for the transaction of the business of the Board of Directors shall be one-third of the total strength (any fraction
contained in that one-third being rounded off as one) or two Directors whichever is higher as provided in Section 174(1)
of the Act.

A meeting of the Directors for the time being at which a quorum is present shall be competent to exercise all or any of
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the authorities, powers, and discretion by or under the Articles of the Company for the time being vested in or exercisable
by the Directors generally.

e The meeting of the Board may be held at the Registered Office or otherwise

e A Director may at any time convene a meeting of the Directors. Questions arising at any meeting shall be decided by a
majority of votes. The Chairman shall have a second or casting vote, in case of an equality of votes

e Any accidental omission to give notice for a general meeting to, or the non-receipt of such notice by, any member or
other person who is entitled to such notice for any meeting shall not invalidate the proceedings of the general meeting.

e All notices for Meetings of the Board and general meetings must be proper and issued in compliance with Applicable
Laws. Any material irregularityin the notice may affect the validity of the meeting itself and the decisions taken thereat

e The President may nominate a Director as Chairman of the Directors' meetings and determine the period for which he is
to hold office. If no such Chairman is nominated; or if at any meeting the Chairman is not present within 5 minutes after
the time for holding the same, the Directors present may choose one of their members to be Chairman of the meeting

e Notwithstanding anything contained in the preceding Article regarding the convening Board Meetings, the Company may
also conduct such Board meetings or Board Sub-Committee meetings through electronic mode like Video-conferencing
or other audiovisual means as prescribed in Applicable Laws and in compliance with the extant guidelines, notifications
and circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, from time to time

Capitalisation of Profits and Reserves

e (i) Subject to the Applicable Laws, the Company in General Meeting may, upon the recommendation of the Directors,
resolve-
(a) to capitalize any part of the amount for the time being standing to the credit of any of the Company's
reserve accounts or to the credit of the profit and loss account, or otherwise available for distribution and
(b) accordingly set free distribution in the manner specified in clause (II) amongst the Members who would
have been entitled thereto, if distributed by way of Dividend and in the same proportion
(i) The sum aforesaid shall not be paid in cash but shall be applied, subject to the provision contained in clause (Il1),
either in or towards:-
(a) paying up any amounts for the time being unpaid on any Shares held by such Members respectively;
(b) paying up in full, unissued Shares of the Company to be allotted and distributed, credited as fully paid up,
to and amongst such Members in the proportions aforesaid; or
(c) partly in the way specified in sub-clause (a) and partly in that specified in sub-clause (b}.
(iii) A Share Premium Account and a Capital Redemption Reserve Account may, for purpose of this Article, only be
applied in the paying up of unissued Shares to be issued to Members of the Company as fully paid bonus Shares
(iv) Whenever such a resolution as aforesaid shall have been passed, the Directors shall:
(a) make all appropriations and applications of the undivided profits resolved to be capitalized thereby, and all
allotments and issues of fully paid Shares, if any and
(b) Generally do all acts and things required to give effects thereto
(v) Directors shall have full power
(a) to make such provision, by the issue of fractional certificates or by payment in cash or otherwise as they
think fit, for the case of Shares or debentures becoming distributable infractions; and also
(b) to authorize any Person to enter, on behalf of all the Members entitled thereto, into an agreement with the
Company providing for the allotment to them respectively, credited as fully paid up, of any further Shares to
which they may be entitled upon such capitalization, or (as the case may require) for the payment by the
company on their behalf, by the application thereto of their respective proportions of the profits resolved to be
capitalized of the amounts or any part of the amounts remaining unpaid on their existing Shares
(vi) Any agreements made under such authority shall be effective and binding on all such Members.

Division of Profits and Dividends

e The profits of the Company available for payment of Dividend subject to any special rights relating thereof created or
authorized to be created by these presents and subject to the provision of these presents as to the reserve fund and
amortization of capital shall be divisible among the Members in proportion to the amount of capital held by them
respectively. Money paid in advance of calls on any share may carry interest but shall not in respect thereof confer a right
(or entitle the holder of the share)to Dividend or to participate in the profits of the Company

e The Company in General Meeting may declare a Dividend to be paid to the Members according to their rights and
interests in the profits and may fix the time for payment but no Dividend shall exceed the amount recommended by the
Board

e  The amount of Dividend, including interim dividend, shall be deposited in a scheduled bank in a separate account within
5 days from the date of declaration of Dividend
Where any instrument of transfer of Shares has been delivered to the Company for registration and the transfer of such
Shares has not been registered by the Company, it shall, notwithstanding anything contained in other provisions of the
Act.

(a) transfer the Dividend in relation to such shares to the special account under the applicable provisions of the Act,
unless the Company is authorised by the registered holder of such Shares in writing to pay such Dividend to the
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transferee specified in such instrument of transfer; and
(b) keep in abeyance in relation to such Shares any offer of rights Shares under the applicable provisions of the Act and
any issue of fully paid-up bonus Shares in pursuance of the applicable provisions of the Act
No Dividend shall be declared or paid by the Company except out of the profits of the Company for that year arrived at
after providing for depreciation in accordance with theprovisions of Section 123 of the Act, or out of the profits of the
Company for any previous financial year or years arrived at after providing for depreciation in accordance with the
provisions of the abovementioned section and remaining undistributed.or out of both, or out of the moneyprovided by the
Central Government or a State Government for the payment of Dividend by the Company in pursuance of a guarantee
given by the Government. No Dividend shall carry interest as againstthe Company
For the purpose of the last preceding Article the declaration of the Directors asto the amount of the profits of the
Company shall be conclusive
Subject to the provisions of Section 123, the Directors may, from time to time, pay to the Members such interim
Dividends as in their judgment the profits and position of the Company justify
The Directors may retain any Dividends on which the Company has a lien and may apply the same in or towards
satisfaction of the debts liabilities of engagements in respect of which the lien exists
Any General Meeting declaring a Dividend may make a call on the Members of such amount as the meeting fixes so that
the call on each Member shall not exceed the Dividends payable to him, and the call be made payable at the same time as
the Dividend, and the Dividend may, if so, arranged between the Company and the Members be set off against the call
Subject to the provisions of Section 123 of the Act, no Dividend shall be payable to the registered shareholder of such
share or to his order or to his banker, except in cash
A transfer of shares shall not pass the right to any Dividend declared thereon after transfer and before the registration of
the transfer
The Directors may retain the Dividends payable upon shares in respect of which any person is under the transmission
clause Article 23 entitled to become a Member, or which any person under that clause is entitled to transfer until such
person shall become a Member in respect of such shares or shall duly transfer the same
Any one of the several persons, who are registered as the joint holders of any share, may give effectual receipts for all
Dividends and payments on account of Dividends in respect of such shares
Unless otherwise directed and subject to the Applicable Laws, any Dividend may be paid either by electronic mode,
cheque or warrant sent through the post to the registered address of the Member or person entitled or in the case of joint
holders, to the registered address of that one whose name stands first in the register in respect of the joint holding or by
any other electronic mode/ transfer; and every cheque or warrant so sent shall be made payable to the order of the person
to whom it is sent
Notice of the declaration of any Dividend, whether interim or otherwise, shall be given to the holders of registered shares
in the manner hereinafter provided
No unclaimed or unpaid Dividend shall be forfeited by the Board unless the claim thereto becomes "barred by law" and
the Company shall comply with all the provisions of Section 124 of the Act in respect of unclaimed or unpaid Dividend
Where the Company has declared a Dividend but which has not been paid or claimed within 30 days from the date of
declaration to any Shareholder entitled to the payment of the Dividend, the Company shall within seven days from the
date of expiry of the said period of 30 days, transfer the total amount of Dividend which remains unpaid and unclaimed
for a period of 30 days, to a special account to be opened in that behalf in any scheduled bank called "Unpaid Dividend
Account." Any money transferred to the Unpaid Dividend Account of the Company which remains unpaid or unclaimed
for a period of seven years from the date of such transfer, shall be transferred by the Company to the fund known as the
"Investor Education and Protection Fund" established under Section 125 of the Act
Any General Meeting declaring a Dividend may make a call on the Members for such amount as the meeting fixes, but
so that the call on each Member shall not exceed the Dividend payable to him and so that the call be made payable at the
same time as the Dividend and the Dividend, may, if so, arranged between the Company and the Members be set off
against the calls
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MATERIAL CONTRACTS AND DOCUMENTS FOR INSPECTION

The following contracts (not being contracts entered in the ordinary course of business carried on by our Company or entered into
more than two years before the date of the Information Memorandum), which are or may be deemed material have been entered or
are to be entered into by our Company. These contracts and also the documents for inspection referred to hereunder, may be
inspected on our website nmdcsteel.nmdc.co.in and at the Registered Office of our Company situated at C/o NMDC Iron & Steel
Plant, Post: Nagarnar, Dist: Bastar, PIN: 494 001, Chhattisgarh from 10:00 a.m. to 3:00 p.m. on working days.

Material contracts and documents for inspection

Fresh Certificate of Incorporation of the Company issued by the Registrar of Companies, Bilaspur, Chhattisgarh dated
04.11.2022.

Memorandum and Articles of Association, as amended till date.

Letter under Regulation 37 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations issued by BSE (DCS/AMAL/PB/R37/2143/2020-21 dated
November 17, 2021), NSE (NSE/LIST/28007 II dated November 17, 2021) and CSE (CSE/LD/15358/2021 dated
November 18, 2021).

Scheme of Arrangement between NMDC Limited, NMDC Steel Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors.
Order dated October 6, 2022 (certified copy received on October 11, 2022) of the Ministry of Corporate Affairs,
Government of India, New Delhi sanctioning the Scheme of Arrangement between NMDC Limited, NMDC Steel
Limited and their respective shareholders and creditors under section 230-232 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Audited Financials of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31, 2022.

Tripartite Agreement dated October 25, 2022 with NSDL, RTA and the Company.

Tripartite Agreement dated October 25, 2022 with CDSL, RTA and the Company.

BSE letter no. DCS/AMAL/MJ/1P/2618/2022-23 dated December 30, 2022 granting in-principle approval for listing.
NSE letter no. NSE/LIST/85 dated January 2, 2023 granting in- principle approval for listing.

CSE letter no. CSE/LD/15753/2023 dated January 6, 2023 granting in-principle approval for listing.

SEBI’s letter no. SEBI/HO/CFD/DCR/RAC-2/P/OW/2023/2574/1 dated January 18, 2023 granting relaxation from the
applicability of Rule 19(2)(b) of SCRR for listing of the shares of the Company.

Any of the contracts or documents mentioned in the Information Memorandum may be amended or modified at any time if so
required in the interest of the Company or if required by the other parties, without reference to the shareholders subject to
compliance with the provisions contained in the Companies Act and other relevant statutes.
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DECLARATION

All relevant provisions of the Companies Act and the guidelines/regulations issued by the Government of India or the
guidelines/regulations issued by the SEBI, established under section 3 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992, as
the case may be, have been complied with and no statement made in this Information Memorandum is contrary to the provisions
of the Companies Act, the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 or rules made or guidelines or regulations issued
there under, as the case may be. We further certify that all statements made in this Information Memorandum are true and correct.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of NMDC Steel Limited

o
Name: Mr. Dilip Kumar Mohanty ':'f J {\\\
Designation: Director i \f—;;)
E{ Nagamar |5 l§
r‘ I
\\ 7 \_ _//C’Jf:
\:\ & ’*’

o -ﬂ.__-»

Place: Hyderabad, Telangana
Date: February 15, 2023
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